
The agenda and supporting documents are available for review during regular business hours at First 5 San Bernardino, 
735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408. 

Interpreters for hearing impaired and Spanish speaking individuals will be made available with forty-eight hours notice. Please 
call Commission staff (909) 386-7706 to request the service. This location is handicapped accessible.   

www.first5sanbernardino.org 

Agenda:  Children and Families Commission 10-2019 

  735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408 

0BMeeting date, time, 
and place –  

October 30, 2019 
3:00 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. 
Executive Conference Room 

Closed Session – 
Adjourn to Closed 
Session 

(NOTE: The public may comment on the closed session agenda prior to the closed 
session by submitting a speaker slip before the closed session convenes) 

Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation (Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

1. Mary L. Jaquish v. County of San Bernardino, et al., San Bernardino Superior
Court Case No. CIVDS1819993

Reconvene 
Regular Meeting 
and Public 
Session 

October 30, 2019 
3:30 p.m. 
Commission Conference Center 

1BPledge of 
Allegiance 

Chair or designee will lead the Pledge of Allegiance 

Swearing-In 
Ceremony 

New Commissioner - Jorge E. Escalante 

4BConflict of Interest 
Disclosure 

Commission members shall review agenda item contractors, subcontractors, and agents, 
which may require member abstentions due to conflict of interest and financial interests.  

A Commission member with conflicts of interests shall state their conflict under the 
appropriate item and abstain or recuse from that item, as appropriate.  A Commission 
member may not participate in or influence the decision on a contract for which their 
abstention or recusal has been recorded.  For conflicts requiring recusal, the Commissioner 
must leave the meeting room during discussion and vote on the item 

1

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Agenda: Children and Families Commission 10-2019 
October 30, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 

The agenda and supporting documents are available for review during regular business hours at First 5 San Bernardino, 735 
East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408. 

Interpreters for hearing impaired and Spanish speaking individuals will be made available with forty-eight hours notice. Please 
call Commission staff (909) 386-7706 to request the service. This location is handicapped accessible.   

6BReport 
Legislative Report by Chekesha Gilliam 
Government Relations Analyst, County Administrative Office 

7BReport Executive Director’s Report by Karen E. Scott 

8BConsent Items 

The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be 
acted upon by the Commission at one time unless any Commissioner directs that an item 
be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion. 

Item No. CONSENT 

1 
Approve Minutes of September 11, 2019 Commission Meeting. 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252)  

2 

A. Approve employment contracts between the County of San Bernardino and Children
and Families Commission with the following individuals, effective November 23, 2019
through November 22, 2022:
1. Deanna Mitchell as Office Assistant II, for the total annual cost of $44,685 ($29,182

Salary, $15,503 Benefits).
2. Alejandro Gutierrez-Chavez as Staff Analyst II, for the total annual cost of $84,643

($58,427 Salary, $26,216 Benefits).
3. Merceides Logans as Staff Analyst II, for the total annual cost of $84,643 ($58,427

Salary, $26,216 Benefits).
B. Approve Amendment No. 1, effective November 23, 2019, to Employment Contract

No. 19-501 with Ronald S. McGrath as Deputy Director of Systems and Impact,
updating salary language with no change to the contract term of August 3, 2019
through August 2, 2022 or the current annual cost of $137,872 ($88,524 Salary,
$49,348 Benefits).

C. Authorize the Assistant Executive Officer of Human Services to execute amendments
to extend the term of the contracts for a maximum of three successive one-year periods
on behalf of the County, subject to County Counsel review.

D. Direct the Assistant Executive Officer of Human Services to transmit all documents in
relation to contract amendments to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors within 30
days of execution.

(Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 

3 
Approve Commission Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2020 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

Item No. DISCUSSION 

4 
Conduct Public Hearing for the Children and Families Commission for San Bernardino 
County’s Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
(Presenter: Debora Dickerson-Sims, Chief Financial Officer, 252-4269) 

5 
Conduct Public Hearing of the Children and Families Commission for San Bernardino 
County’s Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
(Presenter: William Kariuki, Section Manager, Evaluation/Impact, 252-4260) 

6 

Approve Amendment A1 for Contract IC033 with Social Entrepreneurs, Inc., for an increase 
of $45,331 for Fiscal Years 2019-2021 for a cumulative total of $966,661 for Fiscal Years 
2017-2021 to provide capacity building.  
(Presenter: Ronnie Robinson, Section Manager, Systems/Communication, 252-4255) 

2



Agenda: Children and Families Commission 10-2019 
October 30, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 

The agenda and supporting documents are available for review during regular business hours at First 5 San Bernardino, 735 
East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408. 

Interpreters for hearing impaired and Spanish speaking individuals will be made available with forty-eight hours notice. Please 
call Commission staff (909) 386-7706 to request the service. This location is handicapped accessible.   

7 
Approve Contract SI032 with Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition for $43,780 for Fiscal 
Year 2019-2020 to improve breastfeeding rates within San Bernardino County.  
(Presenter: Renee Jones, Staff Analyst II, 252-4273) 

8 

Approve Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) Request 
for Proposal (RFP) 19-02 for Fiscal Year 2020-2023 in an amount not to exceed $4 million 
per year and $12 million for the three year funding cycle. 
(Presenter: Dr. Wendy Lee, Staff Analyst II, 252-4254) 

INFORMATION 

No information items to report. 

16BPublic Comment 
Persons wishing to address the Commission will be given up to three minutes and pursuant 
to Government Code 54954.2(a)(2) “no action or discussion will be undertaken by the 
Commission on any item NOT on the agenda.” 

17BCommissioner 
Roundtable 

Open to comments by the Commissioners. 

18BNext Meeting at 
First 5 San 
Bernardino 

Wednesday, December 4, 2019 
3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

3



CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION 
for San Bernardino County 
AGENDA: OCTOBER 30, 2019 

Subject:  Information Relative to Possible Conflict of Interest 

Instructions: Contractors, subcontractors, principals and agents are listed below for each applicable 
agenda item.  Commissioners are asked to review the items for possible conflicts of interest and to notify 
the Commission secretary prior to the Commission meeting of conflicts concerning items on the meeting’s 
agenda.  This procedure does not relieve the Commissioner of his or her obligations under the Political 
Reform Act. 

Background: The Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code section 87100 et. Seq.) prohibits public 
officials from making, participating in making or in any way attempting to use their official position to 
influence a governmental decision in which they have reason to know they have a “financial interest.”  
Additionally, Government Code section 1090 et seq. prohibits public officers and employees from being 
financially interested in any contract made by them in their official capacity or by the board of which they 
are members.  A limited exception is allowed for County Children’s and Families Commissions.  (See 
Government Code section 1091.3) 

Item 
No. Contractor 

Principals & Agents Subcontractors; 
Principals & 

Agents 

Commissioner 
Abstentions 

1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

2 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

3 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

6 
Social Entrepreneurs, 

Inc., 
Kelly A. Marschall 

President and Principal 
N/A N/A 

7 

Inland Empire 
Breastfeeding 

Coalition 

Tamika Simpson, MPH, 
IBCLC, CHES 

IEBfC Board Chair 
N/A N/A 

8 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

4



    1 
www.first5sanbernardino.org 

Minutes:  Children and Families Commission Meeting 

735 East Carnegie Drive, Suite 150, San Bernardino, California  92408 

Meeting Date, 
Time and 
Location  

Commission Meeting 
September 11, 2019 – 3:30 p.m. 
First 5 San Bernardino 

Pledge of 
Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Ohikhuare. 

SPECIAL 
PRESENTATION 

Dental Transformation Initiative (DTI) Local Dental Pilot Program “IE Smiles” 
Jill Kowalski, DTI Program Manager, First 5 Riverside 
Dr. David M. Kadar, D.D.S., Chief Dental Officer - ParkTree Community Health 
Center 

Conflict of 
Interest 
Disclosure 

Commission members shall review agenda item contractors, subcontractors, and 
agents, which may require member abstentions due to conflict of interest and 
financial interests.  

A Commission member with conflicts of interests shall state their conflict under the 
appropriate item and abstain or recuse from that item, as appropriate.  A Commission 
member may not participate in or influence the decision on a contract for which their 
abstention or recusal has been recorded.  For conflicts requiring recusal, the 
Commissioner must leave the meeting room during discussion and vote on the item. 

Attendees Commissioners Present 

 Margaret Hill

 Maxwell Ohikhuare, M.D.

 CaSonya Thomas

 Elliot Weinstein, M.D.

Staff Present 

 Karen Scott, Executive Director

 Debora Dickerson-Sims, Chief Financial Officer

 Staci Scranton, Business Support Manager

 Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel

 LuCretia Dowdy, Marketing Aide

 Renee Jones, Staff Analyst II

 Wendy Lee, Staff Analyst II

5

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2019    1
September 11, 2019 
Page 2 of 5 

Report – 
Legislative 
Chekesha 
Gilliam 

See attached legislative report. 

9-2019 F5SB.pdf

Report – 
Executive 
Director, 
Karen Scott 

Save The Date 
Wednesday, October 9, 2019 - Regional Commissioner Convening at the Loma 
Linda University Health Access Center located at 125 E. Club Center Drive, San 
Bernardino from 8:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.  

In the spirit of regional collaboration and shared vision for children 0 to 5, Tammi 
Graham, Executive Director for First 5 Riverside and I offer this opportunity for you 
as regional First 5 Commissioners to meet one another, share ideas and strategize 
future partnerships that strengthen our local networks and systems of care for our 
children and build upon the incredible initiatives that you already support regionally 
such as Help Me Grow, the Dental Transformation Initiative and Quality Start.   

The “Regional Commissioner Convening” will be posted as a public meeting but will 
not include any agenda items for consideration at that time.   

Commissioners from First 5 San Bernardino and First 5 Riverside will be introduced 
to key Loma Linda University Children’s Health partners, tour the existing Loma Linda 
University Health Access Call Center, and receive updates on Help Me Grow, the 
Dental Transformation Initiative, and Quality Start. 

Commissioner Vacancy Update 
I have been working with the Clerk of the Board and Board Supervisor staff since 
December 2018 on filling our Commissioner vacancy from the 1st District, created 
when Allen Garrett left us.  It looks like we may have a viable candidate whose name 
and particulars will go to the BOS soon for approval.    

Reading Rally 
On September 10th, First 5 San Bernardino had the pleasure of participating in the 
San Bernardino Superintendent of Schools’ Annual Reading Rally event at Cal State 
San Bernardino. A total of 2,300 kids from different schools from all over the county 
participated.   

Our AmeriCorps team dressed up as Disney Characters and distributed Halloween 
safety bags filled with Potter the Otter Books and other literacy materials.  Potter’s “A 
Tale About Water” was read to children by staff members from DPH and the WIC 
Department. Potter made a special visit to each of those reading sessions and 
greeted children at the First 5 booth. 

F5SB shared 4,800 books, about 2,000 baseball type caps emblazoned with “I Love 
to Read”, and other literacy resources with the children in attendance.  Aligning with 
the County’s “Vision to Read”, this annual event continues to be a great boost in 
informing parents and students of the importance of early literacy.  A special thanks 
to everyone at F5SB that helped with stuffing giveaway bags, and setting up and 

 Ronnie Robinson, Section Manager-Systems and Communication
Changes to the 
Agenda 

Under Agenda Item 5B, the correct Fiscal Year is 2019-2020.  Posted as 2018-2019. 

6



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2019                             1 
September 11, 2019 
Page 3 of 5 
 

breaking down the venue.  Photos from this event can be found on the First 5 
Facebook page. 

 

Consent 

Motion by Commissioner Weinstein and seconded by Commissioner Hill to approve 
the Consent Items.  
 
With Commissioners Gonzales and Ovitt absent and without further comment or 
objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Item No.  CONSENT  

1 
Approve Minutes of August 7, 2019 Commission Meeting. 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant 252-4252) 

2 

Ratify one (1) year contract with Prevent Child Abuse California for six (6) AmeriCorps 
service member positions to provide School Readiness activities at a cost not to 
exceed $127,109 in matching funds for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
(Staci Scranton, Business Support Manager, 252-4282) 

 
Item No.  DISCUSSION 

3 

A. Approve Cooperative Agreement No. SA-20-02 with First 5 Riverside and 
authorize the receipt of up to $144,875 in reimbursement from First 5 Riverside to 
share in the expenses associated with consultant services identified in the 
Contract IC038 with VIVA Strategy & Communications for the implementation and 
launch of Help Me Grow Inland Empire.  

B. Authorize the Executive Director or delegate to execute Cooperative Agreement 
No. SA-20-02 and take such actions as may be necessary to allow for the receipt 
of such reimbursement funds.  

(Presenter: Ronnie Robinson, Section Manager-Systems/Communication, 252-4255) 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Hill and seconded by Commissioner Weinstein to 
approve Item 3.  With Commissioners Gonzales and Ovitt absent and without further 
comment or objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. 

4 

Approve Contract IC038 with VIVA Strategy + Communications (VIVA) for $289,750 
for strategic consultation services with shared financial responsibility with First 5 
Riverside for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
(Presenter: Ronnie Robinson, Section Manager-Systems/Communication, 252-4255) 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
Public Comment 
None  
 
Motion made by Commissioner Weinstein and seconded by Commissioner Hill to 
approve Item 4.  With Commissioners Gonzales and Ovitt absent and without further 
comment or objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. 

7



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2019                             1 
September 11, 2019 
Page 4 of 5 
 

5 

A. Approve Letter of Intent to participate in the First 5 Service Corps Prevent Child 
Abuse Through Home Visitation (PATH) program for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 for 
four (4) 1,700 hours AmeriCorps service member positions to provide home 
visitation program services. 

B. Approve one (1) year contract with Prevent Child Abuse California (PCA CA) for 
four (4) AmeriCorps service member positions to provide home visitation through 
the PATH Program at a cost not to exceed $75,456 in matching funds for Fiscal 
Year  2019-2020. 

C. Approve Memorandum of Understanding with PCA CA for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 
for AmeriCorps service member mileage reimbursement in an amount not to 
exceed $15,000.00. 

(Presenter: Wendy Lee, Psy.D. Staff Analyst II, 252-4254) 
 
Discussion 
Commissioner Thomas asked how this particular home visitation program works with 
the current home visitation program operating under Preschool Services – is there any 
correlation between the two?  Dr. Lee answered there is no correlation due to FCSP 
is parenting education and care management and can be used in home based 
protocol. Commissioner Thomas mentioned there is a home visitation program 
through Public Health which is looking to expand with additional funding earmarked 
from the Governor’s office. Ms. Thomas is excited about the numerous home visitation 
initiatives in our County and hopes for future collaborations among the entities.  
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Hill and seconded by Commissioner Weinstein to 
approve Item 5.  With Commissioners Gonzales and Ovitt absent and without further 
comment or objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. 

6 

A. Ratify letter of intent and application submitted to the California Department of 
Education (CDE), Early Learning and Care Division to continue participation in the 
Quality Counts California Quality Rating and Improvement System (QCC QRIS). 

B. Authorize the Executive Director of First 5 San Bernardino to enter into a contract 
retroactively dated July 1, 2019, with CDE upon approval of the Quality Counts 
California application for $448,541 for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 to support the local 
QRIS. 

Presenter: Tania Offerrall, Staff Analyst II, 252-4262) 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Weinstein and seconded by Commissioner Hill to 
approve Item 6.  With Commissioners Gonzales and Ovitt absent and without further 
comment or objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
Item No. INFORMATION 

7 

Receive information on Family Community Support Partnership for Fiscal Year 2015-
2018 as an evidenced based prevention model that can be replicated in San 
Bernardino County to reduce the risk of child abuse and neglect. 
(Presenter: Wendy Lee, Psy.D. Staff Analyst II, 252-4254) 

8



Minutes: Children and Families Commission 09-2019                             1 
September 11, 2019 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 
16BPublic 
Comment 

None 

 
1Commissioner 
Roundtable 

Vice Chair Weinstein announced that the Southern California Medical Museum is 
seeking a new location after 37 years in existence, the last 5 years being at the 
Western University of Health Sciences in Pomona.  They have been notified to shut 
down within 90 days. This is the only museum of its kind in Southern California. Dr. 
Weinstein asked attendees to contact him if they know of an available location or 
someone who can assist in his search.  An open house and fundraiser is pending for 
early October and invites all to attend and visit this type of museum.  
 
Executive Director Karen Scott thanked Dr. Weinstein for volunteering to represent 
First 5 San Bernardino on the “Hometown Heroes” float at the 2019 L.A. County Fair 
on September 18.  This year, Walmart is sponsoring the fair.  Walmart asked and First 
5 accepted the offer to be highlighted on a float as a hometown hero.  

 

Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn by Commissioner Hill and seconded by Commissioner Weinstein.  
With Commissioners Gonzales and Ovitt absent and without further comment or 
objection, motion carried by unanimous vote. Chair Ohikhuare adjourned the meeting 
at 5:11 p.m. 

 
Next meeting at 
First 5 San 
Bernardino 

NOTE: Meeting falls on last Wednesday in October  
Wednesday, October 30, 2019 

3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 
Attest  

 
 

Maxwell Ohikhuare, M.D., Chair 
 
         

Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant 

 

9



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2 
        October 30, 2019                             

Subject Employment Contracts: Mitchell (OA II), Gutierrez-Chavez (SA II), Logans (SA II) 

Recommendations A. Approve employment contracts between the County of San Bernardino and 
Children and Families Commission with the following individuals, effective 
November 23, 2019 through November 22, 2022: 

B. Deanna Mitchell as Office Assistant II, for the total annual cost of $44,685 
($29,182 Salary, $15,503 Benefits). 

C. Alejandro Gutierrez-Chavez as Staff Analyst II, for the total annual cost of 
$84,643 ($58,427 Salary, $26,216 Benefits).  

D. Merceides Logans as Staff Analyst II, for the total annual cost of $84,643 
($58,427 Salary, $26,216 Benefits). 

E. Approve Amendment No. 1, effective November 23, 2019, to Employment 
Contract No. 19-501 with Ronald S. McGrath as Deputy Director of Systems and 
Impact, updating salary language with no change to the contract term of August 
3, 2019 through August 2, 2022 or the current annual cost of $137,872 ($88,524 
Salary, $49,348 Benefits).  

F. Authorize the Assistant Executive Officer of Human Services to execute 
amendments to extend the term of the contracts for a maximum of three 
successive one-year periods on behalf of the County, subject to County Counsel 
review. 

G. Direct the Assistant Executive Officer of Human Services to transmit all 
documents in relation to contract amendments to the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors within 30 days of execution. 

H. (Presenter: Karen E. Scott, Executive Director, 252-4252) 

Financial Impact The estimated annual cost is $351,843, and is fully reimbursed by the Children and 
Families Commission’s (Commission) Trust Fund.  Adequate appropriation and 
revenue have been included in the Commission’s 2019-20 budget and will be 
included in future recommended budgets.  

Background 
Information 

The Commission has a vacancy for one Office Assistant II position which will provide 
front desk reception coverage, typing, filing and ordering office supplies.  The 
Commission has two vacancies for Staff Analyst II positions which are responsible 
for oversight and monitoring of direct service contracts; performing research and 
analytic oversight; serving as the program representative, and representing the 
Commission at governmental and community meetings.  The recommended 
employment contracts for the Office Assistant II and Staff Analyst II positions shall 
be effective November 23, 2019 and shall remain in effect through November 22, 
2022, subject to the termination provisions of the contracts.  
 
The recommended employment contract amendment with Ronald S. McGrath, 
Deputy Director of Systems and Impact, updates salary language; all other terms 
and conditions of the employment contract remains the same.  
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate the contracts at any time 
without cause upon 14 days prior written notice to the other party.  The County may 
terminate the contracts immediately for just cause.  
 
The Commission uses California’s tax on cigarettes and tobacco products to provide 
services for the State’s youngest residents and their families.  The Commission 

10



 
AGENDA ITEM 2 
October 30, 2019 
PAGE 2                                                                                                                                     
 
 

collaborates with the community and child-serving agencies to fulfill their mission of 
promoting, supporting, and enhancing the health and early development of children 
prenatal through age five and their families.  
 
On January 23, 2001 (Item No. 59), the Board of Supervisors (Board) approved 
Contract No. 01-50 with the Commission to maintain a cooperative working 
relationship to effectively and efficiently implement the Commission’s mission.  The 
terms and conditions of the contract require Human Services (HS) to provide the 
Commission with support for the administration of staff benefits, review and act on 
Board agenda items and personnel-related issues, and provide employment 
contract administration services.  The contract has been amended several times to 
revise language regarding services or to add services provided by the County.  The 
Commission fully reimburses the County for the cost of these services. 
  
PROCUREMENT 
At the request of the Commission, Human Resources provided a certification list of 
58 eligible candidates for the Office Assistant II position.  Twelve candidates were 
contacted and four candidates were interviewed from September 12, 2019 through 
September 13, 2019, by the Business Support Manager and the Executive 
Assistant.  Based on her education and experience, the Commission recommends 
an employment contract with Deanna Mitchell as an Office Assistant II at a starting 
salary of $14.03 per hour, contingent on Board approval. 
  
At the request of the Commission, Human Resources provided a certification list of 
eight eligible candidates to fill the Staff Analyst II positions.  Five candidates were 
interviewed on August 14, 2019 by members of the Commission’s Executive Team. 
Based on their education and experience, the Commission recommends 
employment contracts with Alejandro Gutierrez-Chavez and Merceides Logans as 
Staff Analyst II’s at starting salaries of $28.09 per hour, contingent on Commission 
approval. 
 
On July 23, 2019 (Item No. 20), as the result of a reorganization, the Board 
approved Employment Contract No. 19-501 with Ronald S. McGrath, Deputy 
Director of Systems and Impact, for a total estimated annual cost of $135,709, for 
the contract period August 3, 2019 through August 2, 2022.  Since the approval 
date, the cost of living increase has been applied to the salary for a total annual cost 
of $137,872.  The contract employee was previously vetted through the normal 
process for contract employees.  
 

Review This item has been reviewed by Human Resources (Mark DeBoer, Human 
Resources Division Chief, 387-5564) on October xx, 2019; County Counsel (Cynthia 
O’Neill, Supervising Deputy County Counsel, 387-5455) on October xx, 2019; 
Human Services Contracts (Jennifer Mulhall-Daudel, Contracts Manager, 388-0241) 
on October xx, 2019; Finance (John Hallen, Administrative Analyst, 388-0208) on 
October xx, 2019; and County Finance and Administration (Tanya Bratton, Deputy 
Executive Officer, 388-0332) on October xx 2019. 

 

 

 

 

11



 
AGENDA ITEM 2 
October 30, 2019 
PAGE 3                                                                                                                                     
 
 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 3 
October 30, 2019 

Subject Commission Meeting Schedule for 2020. 

Recommendations Approve Commission Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2020. 
(Presenter: Ann M. Calkins, Executive Assistant, 252-4252) 

Background 
Information 

Each year, the Commission reviews the meeting schedule for the next year.  
Commission Meetings occur on the first Wednesday of each month except for some 
months due to holidays or other previously scheduled commitments.  There is no 
meeting schedule for the month of November. 
 
January 8 
February 12 (due to First 5 Summit on February 5) 
March 4 
April 1 
May 6 
June 3 
July 1 
August 5 
September 2 
October 28 
December 2  

Financial Impact None 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  

 

 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

 

13



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 
October 30, 2019 

Subject Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

Recommendations Conduct Public Hearing for the Children and Families Commission for San 
Bernardino County Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
(Presenter: Debora Dickerson-Sims, Chief Financial Officer, 252-4269) 

Financial Impact None 

Background 
Information 

The California Children and Families Act of 1998 (“Act”) was passed as Proposition 
10 by California voters in November 1998 and enacted by the State Legislature 
through California Health and Safety Code Sections 130100-130155 and Revenue 
and Taxation Code Section 30131. 
 
Section 130150 of the Act requires every County Commission, on or before October 
15th of each year, to “conduct an audit of, and issue a written report on the 
implementation and performance of, its functions during the preceding fiscal year.” 
Section 130140 (a) (1) (G) additionally requires the County Commission to “conduct 
at least one public hearing prior to adopting any annual audit …”. 
 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co. LLP (VTD) conducted an audit of the First 5 San 
Bernardino Commission encapsulating all fiscal activity of the Commission for Fiscal 
Year 2018-2019 and developed an audit report as required by Section 130150. 
 
Audit findings, if applicable, will include auditor’s recommendation and First 5 staff’s 
response to the findings. 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  

 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

14



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
October 30, 2019  

Subject Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

Recommendations Conduct Public Hearing of the Children and Families Commission for San 
Bernardino County’s Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
(Presenter: William Kariuki, Section Manager, Evaluation/Impact, 252-4260) 

Financial Impact None 

Background 
Information 

The California Children and Families Act of 1998 (“Act”) was passed as Proposition 
10 by California voters in November 1998 and enacted by the State Legislature 
through California Health and Safety Code Sections 130100-130155 and Revenue 
and Taxation Code Section 30131. 
 
Section 130150 of the Act requires every County Commission, on or before October 
31st of each year, to issue a written report on the implementation and performance 
of, their respective functions during the preceding fiscal year. Section 130140 (a) (1) 
(G) additionally requires the County Commission to “conduct at least one public 
hearing prior to adopting any . . . report”. 
 
The 2018-2019 Annual Report has been compiled and includes number of children 
and families served, priorities, activities, program highlights and overall 
accomplishments. The report also includes program and fiscal information and an 
analysis of services delivered based on the State’s Desired Results Areas – 
Improved Family Functioning, Improved Child Development, Improved Health and 
Improved Systems of Care. 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  

 

 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

15



 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
October 30, 2019 

Subject Contract IC033 A1 with Social Entrepreneurs, Inc.  

Recommendations Approve Amendment A1 for Contract IC033 with Social Entrepreneurs, Inc., for 
an increase of $45,331 for Fiscal Years 2019-2021 for a cumulative total of 
$966,661 for Fiscal Years 2017-2021 to provide capacity building.  
(Presenter: Ronnie Robinson, Section Manager, 252-4255) 

Financial Impact $45,331 for Fiscal Years 2019-2021. 

Background 
Information 

In February 2010, the Commission approved the release of Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) 10-01 for a Sustainability Project Facilitator. In May 2010, 
the Commission approved contract IC020 with Social Entrepreneurs, Inc., (SEI) 
to facilitate and implement a Sustainability Project, which is the Capacity Building 
Academy (CBA).  
 
In 2012, graduates of CBA II and CBA III formed the Inland Empire Community 
Collaborative (IECC) to implement their sustainability plans by seeking collective 
funding opportunities, as well as develop community projects. 
 
In August 2014, the Commission released RFQ 14-01 for Capacity Building 
Continuum Project, which sought to support the further development of strong, 
adaptive and sustainable organizations that serve the population age 0 to 5. The 
continuum project built on the previous CBAs to increase local agency and system 
capacity over the three-year term, specifically developing leaders and mentors 
and further strengthened the IEC.   
 
On July 12, 2017, the Commission approved Contract IC033 with SEI for 
continued facilitation, capacity building and training the IECC to sustain the 
Capacity Building Academy. In 2018, SEI began coaching IECC to become the 
local facilitator for the CBA. On September 11, 2019, the IECC, who is under 
subcontract with SEI to complete the McKinsey & Company Organizational 
Capacity Assessment Tool (OCAT), notified SEI that the tool is longer available. 
The IECC identified the TCC Core Capacity Assessment Tool (CCAT) as a viable 
replacement for the OCAT. The requested increase of $30,366 for FY 19-20 will 
allow SEI to receive certification to train the IECC members in administering the 

CCAT and would cover CCATs for all eight current CBA IX agencies. 
 
Additionally, SEI’s current scope of work relies on the IECC to complete the 
strategic financing section of the sustainability plan, with coaching from SEI. Two 
trainings with curriculum, worksheets and budgeting tools were provided to the 
IECC. However, the content matter is difficult to master without a finance 
background and each nonprofit has its own accounting system, fiscal year and 
distinct sources of revenue and expenses. Rather than the IECC taking the lead 
on strategic financing from July through September 2019, SEI team members 
completed the strategic financing plans for CBA VIII, whose agencies graduated 
with their completed plans on October 4, 2019. The requested amendment also 
extends the current contract to September 30, 2020 and allocates $14,966 to 
provide SEI additional time and funding to assist IECC and to revise the curriculum 
for strategic financing, simplifying it and creating a user manual and companion 
video training.   
 
 

16



 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

OCTOBER 30, 2019 
PAGE 2                                                                                                                                           
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 
 
 
 

Approval of this item supports the Commission’s Strategic Plan: 
 
SPA 2: Systems and Networks 
Provide leadership within San Bernardino County in the development of support 
systems serving children prenatal through 5, their families, and communities that 
results in sustainable and collective impact.  
 
Goal 2.1 Leadership as a Catalyst, Convener, and Partner:  
Work with the community and stakeholders from multiple sectors in support of the 
countywide goal of supporting all children from cradle-to-career.  
 
Objective 2.1.a  
Systems and services effectively support and engage children, families and 
communities. Identify and strategically align resources countywide.  Identify and 
strategically align resources countywide. 
  
Objective 2.1.b  
Families, providers and stakeholders collaborate effectively to improve the well-being 
of the child. Develop, create, and support or coordinate opportunities for collective 
impact. 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  

17



 
 
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer Tax Collector Use Only 

 Contract Database                      FAS 

Input Date Keyed By 

 

 FOR COMMISSION USE ONLY   
   New Vendor Code SC Dept. 

A 
Contract Number 

 X  Change 10003575 
903 IC033 A1 

   Cancel  

 Organization   Contractor’s License No. 

 Children and Families Commission         

CHILDREN  

AND FAMILIES  

COMMISSION 
FOR 

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 

Commission Representative Telephone Total Contract Amount 

Cindy Faulkner, Assistant Director 909-386-7706 $966,661 
Contract Type 

  Revenue X Encumbered  Unencumbered  Other:   

 
If not encumbered or revenue contract type, provide reason:  

Commodity Code Contract Start Date Contract End Date Original Amount Amendment Amount 

95200 July 13, 2017 September 30, 2020 
 

$921,330 $45,331 

 Cost Center 

9033009900 

GL Account Internal Order No. Amount 

STANDARD CONTRACT 
        53003357  1000733 $293,572 

Cost Center 

      

GL Account 

                   

 

Internal Order No. 

      

 

Cost Center 

      

GL Account 

                   

 

Internal Order No. 

      

Amount 

 Abbreviated Use Estimated Payment Total by Fiscal Year 

     FY  Amount  I/D   FY  Amount  I/D  

  First 5 Capacity Building                

  Systems Strengthening   17-18  $347,084    
  
  

  20-21  $14,966  I  

     18-19  $311,039    
  
  

        

     19-20  $293,572  I         

 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into in the State of California by and between the Children and Families 
Commission for San Bernardino County, hereinafter called the Commission, and 

Legal Name (hereinafter called the Contractor)   

Social Entrepreneurs, Inc.   

Department/Division   

        

Address  Program Address (if different from legal address): 

6548 South McCarran Blvd., Suite B   

Reno, NV 89509   

Phone   

(775) 324-4567   

Federal ID No.   

86-0847995   

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 

 
1. Paragraph A. Contract Amount of Section IV, FISCAL PROVISIONS, is amended to read as follows: 

 
A. Contract Amount 

The maximum amount of reimbursement under this Contract shall not exceed $966,661 for the 
duration of the Contract term subject to the availability of California Children and Families Trust Fund 
monies.  The consideration to be paid to Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in full payment for 
all Contractor’s services and expenses incurred in the performance hereof.  These funds are divided 
as follows:  

  

18



 
2 

 
Fiscal Year 2017-18    $ 347,084_  July 13, 2017 through June 30, 2018   
Fiscal Year 2018-19    $ 311,039    July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 
Fiscal Year 2019-20    $ 293,572  July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 

      Fiscal Year 2020-21    $14,966       July 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020 

        

Initial Here 
           

2. Paragraph M. of Section II, CONTRACTOR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITES is amended to read as 
follows: 

 
N. Confidentiality 

 Contractor shall ensure that all staff, volunteers and/or Subcontractors performing Services under this 
Contract comply with the Commission’s Policy 18-01 Non-public Personally Identifiable Information 
specified at http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx prior to providing any Services.  
Contractor shall immediately notify the Commission of any suspected or actual breach of confidential 
information as further detailed in the requirements. These requirements specified at 
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx are hereby incorporated by this reference. 

 Contractor shall protect from unauthorized use or disclosure names and other identifying information 
concerning persons receiving Services pursuant to this Contract, except for statistical information not 
identifying any participant.  Contractor shall not use or disclose any identifying information for any 
other purpose other than carrying out the Contractor's obligations under this Contract, except as may 
be otherwise required by law.  This provision will remain in force even after the termination of the 
Contract.  

 Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as applicable.  

 
3. Paragraph A. of Section VII, TERM, is amended to read as follows: 

 
A. This Contract is effective commencing July 13, 2017 and expires September 30, 2020, but may be 

terminated earlier in accordance with provisions of paragraph below or Section VII of this Contract.  
 

        
Initial Here 

4. Section IX, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY/CIVIL RIGHTS is amended to read as follows: 
 

X. NONDISCRIMINATION  

A. General 

Contractor agrees to serve all clients without regard to race, color, gender, gender identity, religion, 
marital status, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or mental or physical handicap or disability 
pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C., Section 2000d), Executive Order 
No. 11246, September 24, 1965, as amended, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975. 

Contractor shall not engage in any unlawful discriminatory practices in the admission of beneficiaries, 
assignments of accommodations, treatment, evaluation, employment of personnel, or in any other 
respect on the basis of race, color, gender, gender identity, religion, marital status, national origin, 
age, sexual orientation, or mental or physical handicap or disability. 

B. Americans with Disabilities Act/Individuals with Disabilities 

Contractor agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et 
seq.) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, guidelines and interpretations issued pursuant thereto.  Contractor shall 

19

http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx
https://aspe.hhs.gov/report/health-insurance-portability-and-accountability-act-1996
https://aspe.hhs.gov/report/health-insurance-portability-and-accountability-act-1996


 
3 

report to the applicable Commission representative if its offices/facilities have accommodations for 
people with physical disabilities, including offices, exam rooms, and equipment. 

C. Employment and Civil Rights 

Contractor agrees to and shall comply with the County’s Equal Employment Opportunity Program 
and Civil Rights Compliance requirements: 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity Program 

Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Program of the County of San Bernardino and rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto: 
Executive Orders 11246, 11375, 11625, 12138, 12432, 12250, and 13672; Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (and Division 21 of the California Department of Social Services Manual 
of Policies and Procedures and California Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 10000); the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act; and other applicable Federal, State, and County 
laws, regulations and policies relating to equal employment or social services to welfare 
recipients, including laws and regulations hereafter enacted.  

2. Civil Rights Compliance 

Contractor shall develop and maintain internal policies and procedures to assure compliance 
with each factor outlined by State regulation.  Consistent with the requirements of applicable 
Federal or State law, the Contractor shall not engage in any unlawful discriminatory practices 
in the admission of beneficiaries, assignments of accommodations, treatment, evaluation, 
employment of personnel or in any other respect on the basis of race, color, gender, religion, 
marital status, national origin, age, sexual preference or mental or physical disabilities.  The 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
as amended, pertaining to the prohibition of discrimination against qualified individuals with 
disabilities in all federally assisted programs or activities, as detailed in regulations signed by 
the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, effective June 
2, 1977, and found in the Federal Register, Volume 42, No. 86, dated May 4, 1977.  The 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this Contract in 
all subcontracts to perform work under this Contract.  Notwithstanding other provisions of this 
section, the Contractor may require a determination of medical necessity pursuant to Title 9, 
CCR, Section 1820.205, Section 1830.205 or Section 1830.210, prior to providing covered 
services to a beneficiary.   

D. Sexual Harassment 

Contractor agrees that clients have the right to be free from sexual harassment and sexual contact 
by all staff members and other professional affiliates. 

 
 

continued on next page 

 
 
  

20



 
4 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A – Amended Scope of Work for FY 19-21 

Attachment B – Amended Project Budget for FY 19-21 

 

All other terms and conditions of this contract remain in full force and effect. 

 

   
CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION FOR  
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY    SOCIAL ENTREPENEURS, INC. 

  Legal Entity  

 
  

 
 

 

 
 Authorized Signature   Authorized Signature 

 
Maxwell Ohikhuare, M.D. 

  
Kelly Marschall 

 Printed Name   Printed Name 

 
 

Commission Chair  
 

President 
 Title 

 

 Title 

 
  

 
 

 Dated 

 

 Dated 

 
Official Stamp 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reviewed for Processing   Approved as to Legal Form    Presented to Commission for 
Signature 

       
Cindy Faulkner   Sophie Akins   Karen E. Scott 

Assistant Director   Commission Counsel   Executive Director 

       

Date   Date   Date 

 
 
                 

21



      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Capacity Building Scope of Work Revision Fiscal Year 2019-20 

Organizational Capacity Assessment 

Since 2013, SEI has relied on the free, online McKinsey & Company Organizational Capacity Assessment 

Tool (OCAT) to complete organizational assessments with each Capacity Building Academy (CBA) 

participant. Prior to 2013, SEI relied on the Social Venture Partners (SVP) assessment, which was 

developed through a partnership with McKinsey & Company and Social Venture Partners. This tool was 

available in Excel and was the first iteration of what became the Organizational Capacity Assessment Tool 

(OCAT). Conducting an organizational assessment is evidence-based practice prior to any capacity building, 

and per the original First 5 San Bernardino RFQ 10-02 Sustainability Project that SEI responded to, the SVP 

assessment tool was required as part of the project. SEI had used the SVP tool with over 50 other First 5 

funded grantees prior to the F5SB Capacity Building Pilot in 2010. The original SVP tool is still available but 

significantly out of date in areas of technology, best practices for governance, and the use of social media 

to diversify funding. For example, it asks questions about fax machines and does not address social media 

at all.  

On September 11, 2019, the IECC, who is under subcontract with SEI to complete the OCAT, notified SEI 

that McKinsey & Company was no longer hosting the OCAT at its online site. The IECC had been to the 

OCAT site just days earlier and all was operational. However, when they conducted the OCAT training with 

new CBA 9 participants, the link https://ocat.mckinseyonsociety.com/support/instructions was no longer 

operational.  

SEI and the IECC made multiple efforts to reach a contact at McKinsey & Company. Susan Gomez, CEO 

of IECC did reach staff from McKinsey & Company but neither of the persons she reached were able to give 

a definitive answer of whether we could use the assessment materials they had previously made available.  

SEI conducted a literature review and searched for other free, online or hard copy assessment tools to 

determine if the OCAT could be replaced. No other free, online assessments were found that assessed 

internal systems to the degree necessary to support sustainability of nonprofit organizations.  

The IECC identified the TCC Core Capacity Assessment Tool (CCAT) https://www.tccgrp.com/product/core-

capacity-assessment-tool-ccat/ as a viable replacement for the OCAT. This was discussed at a follow up 

project management meeting between SEI and the IECC and later with First 5.  

The Revised Budget for FY 20-21 would allow two SEI team members to receive certification to train 

the IECC members in administering the CCAT. Further, it would provide a discount to the cost of the 

CCATs, as two are included in the cost of the certifications. There are eight CBA 9 organizations set 

to participate in the Capacity Building Academy. The budget revision would cover CCATs for all 

eight CBA 9 agencies, with two being conducted/covered through the certification process as 

described above and the remaining six being funded separately.  

22

https://ocat.mckinseyonsociety.com/support/instructions
https://www.tccgrp.com/product/core-capacity-assessment-tool-ccat/
https://www.tccgrp.com/product/core-capacity-assessment-tool-ccat/


      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

Strategic Financing Support 2019-20 

The purpose of the Capacity Building Academy is to develop individualized sustainability plans with the 

participants. A formal curriculum based on The Eight Essential Elements of Sustainability is used. One of the 

eight elements is for each organization to implement a strategic financing approach. This includes creating 

a baseline budget for the organization and a three-year financial forecast with budget assumptions. The 

budget assumptions include strategies to manage costs, strategies to enhance revenue, and the specific 

approach each organization will take to diversify its funding.  

The current scope of work relies on the IECC to complete the strategic financing section of the sustainability 

plan, with coaching from SEI. Two trainings with curriculum, worksheets and budgeting tools were provided 

to the IECC. However, the content matter is difficult to master without a finance background and each 

nonprofit has its own accounting system, fiscal year and distinct sources of revenue and expenses. Rather 

than the IECC taking the lead on strategic financing from July through September 2019, SEI team members 

completed the strategic financing plans for CBA 8, whose agencies graduated with their completed plans on 

October 4, 2019.  

 

The Revised Budget would cover the professional fees and expenses needed to complete the CBA 

9 strategic financing budgets and plans.   

Revised Curriculum for Strategic Financing 

The current curriculum for strategic financing was developed by SEI to train the IECC in how to develop long-

range financial forecasts. An Excel spreadsheet was created to allow the IECC to create a baseline budget 

for the organization based on their current revenue and expenditures. It then factors in assumptions for each 

line item and allows for projections either based on a percentage increase or decrease to a line item, or a 

numerical change in the amount of a line item.  Additional materials include a facilitator guide, worksheets 

and presentation materials related to strategic financing.  

The IECC has shared with SEI the need to revise the approach to simplify its application. The goal is to 

provide a tangible manual with instructions and screen shots and a companion video training that the IECC 

will be able to use in the future to complete the strategic financing section of the sustainability plans.  

The Revised Budget for FY 19-20 would cover the professional fees needed to revise the strategic 

financing curriculum and make it more user friendly for the IECC.   

  

23



      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

3 | P a g e  
 

Budget and Deliverables Fiscal Year 2019-20 

In order to accomplish the revisions outlined above, the following budget increases are requested: 

Deliverable 1: CCAT Certification and Assessment 

SEI will execute two CCAT Facilitator Certification Agreements including CCAT for two organizations, 

complete certification, and purchase CCATs to cover the remaining six CBA 9 participants. SEI will 

additionally complete five CCATs with CBA 9 agencies to ensure fidelity to the tool and assist IECC in training 

coaches in the process and elements of the new tool. The remaining CCAT will be facilitated by IECC staff, 

although the cost of the assessment and report is included in the budget revision below.  Costs include: 

Description of Expense Cost 

One CCAT Certification with one agency 

assessment 

$1,750 

One CCAT Certification with one agency 

assessment --discounted from the TCC group 

$1,450 

Six CCAT Assessments and Individual Reports $2,100 

6 x $350 = $2,100 

Professional Fees to complete Certification $3,200 

[(10 x $175 = $1,750) + 

(10 x $145 = $1,450)] = $3,200 

Professional Fees to complete CCAT with five 

CBA 9 agencies 

$2,445 

[($175 x 3 hours x 3 agencies = $1,575) + ($145 x 3 

hours x 2 agencies = $870)] = $2,445 

Professional Fees 

Expenses 

Total Costs:  

$5,645 

$5,300 

$10,945 

 

  

24



      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

4 | P a g e  
 

Deliverable 2: Strategic Financing Support 

SEI will provide additional support to CBA 9 participants to complete the strategic financing section for up 

to eight agencies while the IECC will provide coaches to shadow SEI during the process. Additional costs 

include: 

 

Description of Expense Cost 

Professional Fees for Strategic Financing $10,294.00 

[(10 x $175 = $1,750) + (23 x $175 = $4,025) 

+ (60.25 x $75 = $4,519)] = $10,294.00   

Copies and printing for sustainability plans, 

strategic financing worksheets, budgets and 

curriculum 

$811.00 

($42 + $169 + $600)  

Lodging for strategic financing meetings $794.00 

($198.39 x 4 = $793.56) 

Rental Car $546.00 

($136.59 x 4 = $546.36) 

Professional Fees 

Expenses 

Total Costs:  

$10,294.00 

$2,151.00 

$12,445.00 

  

25



      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

Deliverable 3: Revised Curriculum for Strategic Financing  
SEI will revise training materials, curriculum, facilitator guide, and manual to complete the strategic financing 

section for the IECC. Costs include: 

 

Description of Expense Cost 

Professional Fees to research and create 

revised curriculum including video for 

completing strategic financing 

$6,975 

[(10 x $175 = $1,750) + (5 x $145= $725) + 

(60 x $75 = $4,500)] = $6,975 

Professional Fees 

Expenses 

Total Costs:  

$6,975 

$0 

$6,975 

 

Budget Revision Summary 

 

Professional Fees 

Deliverable 1: CCAT Certification and Assessment      $5,645.00 

Deliverable 2: Strategic Financing Support 2019-20     $10,294.00 

Deliverable 3: Revised Curriculum Strategic Financing     $6,975.00 

Total Professional Fees: $22,914.00 

Expenses 

Deliverable 1: CCAT Certification and Assessment       $5,300.00 

Deliverable 2: Strategic Financing Support 2019-20     $2,151.00 

Deliverable 3: Strategic Financing Curriculum     $0.00 

Total Expenses: $7,451.00 

 

Revision Summary 

Approved Budget: $263,207.00 

Total Budget Adjustment Requested: $30,365.00 

Revised Budget: $293,572.00  

  

26



      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

6 | P a g e  
 

Capacity Building Scope of Work Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Strategic Financing Support 2020-21 

For the past four years, completion of sustainability plans and graduation from the Capacity Building 

Academy has occurred from July to September, with graduation occurring at the IECC annual Capacity 

Building Conference: THRIVE. However, the current contract for the CBC is in its third year and set to expire 

on June 30, 2020. This would necessitate that the IECC either accelerate the CBA, or complete strategic 

financing plans for each CBA 9 participant on their own from July to September 2020. As the curriculum is 

being revised and simplified, implementing the curriculum without coaching would be challenging.  

The requested amendment for FY 2020-2021 is to extend the contract of Social Entrepreneurs, Inc. through 

September 30, 2020 to ensure that all CBA 9 agencies have completed strategic financing plans and 

sustainability plans and the IECC is comfortable with the new curriculum.   

The extension and budget amendment would cover the professional fees and expenses needed to 

complete the 2020-21 CBA 9 strategic financing budgets and plans.   

Deliverable 4: Strategic Financing Support 2020-21 

SEI will provide support to the IECC and CBA 9 participants to complete the strategic financing section for 

up to eight agencies while the IECC will provide coaches to shadow SEI during the process, using the new 

curriculum developed during the 2019-20 contract period. Costs include:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of Expense Cost 

Professional Fees for Strategic Financing $10,294.00 

[(10 x $175 = $1,750) + (23 x $175 = $4,025) 

+ (60.25 x $75 = $4,518.75)] = $10,293.75   

Copies and printing for sustainability plans, 

strategic financing worksheets, budgets and 

curriculum 

$600 

($600) 

Airfare and parking $2,464.00 

($592.00 x 4) + ($24.00 x 4) = $2,464.00) 

Lodging and per diem for strategic financing 

meetings 

$1064.00 

($212.00 x 4) + ($54.00 x 4) = $1064.00) 

Rental Car $544.00 

($136.00 x 4 = $544.00) 

Professional Fees 
Expenses 

Total Costs:  

$10,294.00 
$4,672.00 

$14,966.00 

27



      
 

 Contract IC033 A1 
Attachment A 

7 | P a g e  
 

2020-21 Budget Summary 

Professional Fees 

Deliverable 4: Strategic Financing Support 2020-21      $10,294.00 

Total Professional Fees: $10,294.00 

Expenses 

Deliverable 4: Strategic Financing Support 2020-21      $4,306.64 

Total Expenses: $4,672.00 

2020-21 Budget: $14,966.00  

28



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

1

Total Project and Budget Summary 2019-20 Revised

Expenses

$39,449

$35,569

$39,580

$114,598

Expenses

$25,247

$25,882

$28,074

$79,203

Expenses

$14,202

$9,687

$11,507

$35,396

Budget Summary – Year 1
Total Cost

$50,043

$192,239

$81,352
$23,450

$347,084

Total Cost

$36,148

$125,829

$55,550

$17,950

Total Cost

$235,477

Total Cost

$13,895

$66,410

$25,802

$5,500

$111,607

Budget Summary – Year 2
Total Cost

$46,551

$142,097

$99,941

$22,450

$311,039Totals 3,319.0 $275,470 $35,569

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 1,492.5 $117,217 $24,880

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 1,038.0 $92,100 $7,841

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

245.0 $22,375 $75

Totals 1,771.0 $97,405 $14,202

YEAR 2 - Combined Total 

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 543.5 $43,778 $2,773

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 984.0 $54,120 $12,290

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 438.0 $24,090 $1,712

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

100.0 $5,500 $0

Totals 1,601.0 $210,230 $25,247

YEAR 1 - IECC IECC

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 249.0 $13,695 $200

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 398.0 $47,270 $8,280

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

Communication

110.0 $17,950 $0

YEAR 1 - SEI SEI

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

YEAR 1 - SEI SEI

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 322.0 $35,085 $1,063

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 771.0 $109,925 $15,904

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 836.0 $71,360 $9,992
PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

210.0 $23,450 $0

Totals 3,372.0 $307,635 $39,449

YEAR 1 - Combined Total 

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 571.0 $48,780 $1,263

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 1,755.0 $164,045 $28,194

Year 2 1,951.5 $107,333 $117,020

Year 3 2,077.5 $114,262 $125,769

Totals 5,800 $319,000 $354,396

Totals 4,252 $518,097 $597,300

TOTAL PROJECT - IECC IECC

Hours

Professional

Fees

Total Cost

Year 1 1,771.0 $97,405 $111,607

Year 1 1,601.0 $210,230 $235,477

Year 2 1,367.5 $168,138 $194,020

Year 3 1,283.0 $139,729 $167,803

Year 3 3,360.5 $253,992 $293,572

Totals 10,052 $837,097 $951,695

TOTAL PROJECT - SEI SEI Hours Professional

Fees

Total Cost

TOTAL PROJECT -

Combined

Total 

Hours

Professional

Fees

Total Cost

Year 1 3,372.0 $307,635 $347,084

Year 2 3,319.0 $275,470 $311,039

29



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

2

Total Cost

$30,781

$78,758

$70,831

$13,650

$194,020

Total Cost

$15,770

$63,340

$29,110

$8,800

$117,020

Budget Summary – Year 3
Total Cost

$61,023

$139,267

$72,557

$20,725

$293,572

Total Cost

$38,037

$76,734

$42,207

$10,825

$167,803

Total Cost

$22,985

$62,534

$30,350

$9,900

$125,769

Total Expense Breakdown
Direct expenses reflect the projected SEI out-of-pocket costs for travel, printing, long distance

telephone calls, and other expenses directly related to the project. A breakdown of the estimated expenses is

shown in the table below.

Expense Breakdown – Year 1

Expense Type Total Cost

Airfare $18,600

Mileage $4,023

Total Cost

$3,456

$2,623

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Lodging Estimated 24 room nights at an average cost of $144.00 per night, including room 

taxes and surcharges

Meals Up to 43 travel days at $61.00 per day

Totals 2,077.5 $114,262 $11,507

YEAR 1 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - COMBINED

Expense Calculation

Estimated 24 total plane flights at an average cost of $775.00 per trip

Estimated 94 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80 miles 

roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus any applicable 

road and bridge tolls

YEAR 1 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - COMBINED

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 995.5 $54,752 $7,782

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 550.0 $30,250 $100

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

180.0 $9,900 $0

Totals 1,283.0 $139,729 $28,074

YEAR 3 - IECC IECC

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 352.0 $19,360 $3,625

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 485.0 $55,488 $21,246

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 376.0 $37,880 $4,327

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

75.0 $10,825 $0

Totals 3,360.5 $253,992 $39,580

YEAR 3 - SEI SEI

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 347.0 $35,536 $2,501

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 1,480.5 $110,240 $29,027

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 926.0 $68,130 $4,427

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

255.0 $20,725 $0

Totals 1,951.5 $107,333 $9,687

YEAR 3 - Combined Total 

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 699.0 $54,897 $6,126

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 1,007.5 $55,413 $7,927

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 522.0 $28,710 $400

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

160.0 $8,800 $0

Totals 1,367.5 $168,138 $25,882

YEAR 2 - IECC IECC

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 262.0 $14,410 $1,360

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 485.0 $61,805 $16,953

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 516.0 $63,390 $7,441

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and

  Communication                                                        

85.0 $13,575 $75

YEAR 2 - SEI SEI

Hours

Professional

Fees

Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 281.5 $29,368 $1,413

30



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

3

$1,265

$112

$1,020

$6,000

$150

$50

$1,850

$0

$0

$0

$0

$300

$39,449

Total Cost

$18,600

$0

$3,456

$1,464

$1,265

$112

$150

Total Cost

$50

$50

$100

$25,247

Total Cost

$4,023

$1,159

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 1

YEAR 1 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - IECC

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Mileage Estimated 94 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80

miles roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus any 

applicable road and bridge tolls

Meals Up to 19 travel days at $61.00 per day

YEAR 1 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - SEI

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Teleconference services Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of agendas 

and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks in the 

detailed work plan

Postage and shipping

Lodging Estimated 24 room nights at an average cost of $144.00 per night, including room 

taxes and surcharges

Meals Up to 24 travel days at $61.00 per day

Car rental and gas Estimated 23 days of car rental at an average cost of $55.00 per day for rental 

charges and gas

Airport parking Estimated 4 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average 

cost of $28.00 per day

Long distance phone

  calls                                  

Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 1

YEAR 1 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - SEI

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Airfare Estimated 24 total plane flights at an average cost of $775.00 per trip

Mileage Estimated 0 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80 miles 

roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus any applicable 

road and bridge tolls

THRIVE room rental

THRIVE catering

THRIVE totes

THRIVE Fliers and banners

Postage and shipping

Meeting supplies 12.00 meetings requiring special supplies, at an average cost of

$85.00 per meeting

Meeting refreshments Provide simple refreshments for attendees at up to 20.00 meetings, at an 

average cost of $300.00 per meeting

Long distance phone calls Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

Teleconference services Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of

agendas and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks 

in the detailed work plan

Car rental and gas Estimated 23 days of car rental at an average cost of $55.00 per day for rental 

charges and gas

Airport parking Estimated 4 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average 

cost of $28.00 per day

31



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

4

$1,020

$6,000

$1,800

$0

$0

$0

$0

$200

$14,202

Expense Breakdown – Year 2

Expense Type Total Cost

Airfare $18,600

Mileage $2,268

Lodging $3,456

Meals $2,623

Total Cost

$1,265

$672

$935

$5,025

$200

$75

$150

$0

$0

$0

$0

$300

$35,569

Total Cost

$18,600

$3,456

$1,464

Lodging Estimated 24 room nights at an average cost of $144.00 per night, including room 

taxes and surcharges

Meals Up to 24 travel days at $61.00 per day

Postage and shipping

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 2

YEAR 2 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - SEI

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Airfare Estimated 24 total plane flights at an average cost of $775.00 per trip

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of

agendas and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks 

in the detailed work plan

THRIVE room rental

THRIVE catering

THRIVE totes

THRIVE Fliers and banners

Airport parking Estimated 24 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average 

cost of $28.00 per day

Meeting supplies 11.00 meetings requiring special supplies, at an average cost of

$85.00 per meeting

Meeting refreshments Provide simple refreshments for attendees at up to 16.75 meetings, at an 

average cost of $300.00 per meeting

Long distance phone calls Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

Teleconference services Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

Expense Calculation

Estimated 24 total plane flights at an average cost of $775.00 per trip

Estimated 53 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80 miles 

roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus any applicable 

road and bridge tolls

Estimated 24 room nights at an average cost of $144.00 per night, including 

room taxes and surcharges

Up to 43 travel days at $61.00 per day

YEAR 2 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - COMBINED

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Car rental and gas Estimated 23 days of car rental at an average cost of $55.00 per day for rental 

charges and gas

THRIVE totes

THRIVE Fliers and 

banners

Postage and shipping

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 1

YEAR 2 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - COMBINED

Meeting supplies 12.00 meetings requiring special supplies, at an average cost of

$85.00 per meeting

Meeting refreshments Provide simple refreshments for attendees at up to 20.00 meetings, at an 

average cost of $300.00 per meeting

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of agendas 

and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks in the 

detailed work plan

THRIVE room rental

THRIVE catering

32



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

5

$1,265

$672

$200

$75

$50

$100

$25,882

Total Cost

$2,268

$1,159

$935

$5,025

$100

$0

$0

$0

$0

$200

$9,687

Expense Breakdown – Year 3

Total Cost

$14,725

$1,584

$3,530

$2,318

$1,591

$532

$1,105

$7,200

$225

$209

Meeting supplies 13.00 meetings requiring special supplies, at an average cost of

$85.00 per meeting

Meeting refreshments Provide simple refreshments for attendees at up to 24.00 meetings, at an 

average cost of $300.00 per meeting

Long distance phone 

calls

Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

Teleconference services Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

Mileage Estimated 37 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80 miles 

roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus any applicable 

road and bridge tolls

Lodging Estimated 19 room nights at an average cost of $144.00 per night, including room 

taxes and surcharges plus Four additional nights lodging for strategic financing 

    Meals Up to 38 travel days at $61.00 per day

Car rental and gas Estimated 19 days of car rental at an average cost of $55.00 per day for rental 

charges and gas plus four additional rental car expenses at $136.59 per rental for 

   Airport parking Estimated 19 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average 

cost of $28.00 per day

Postage and shipping

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 2

YEAR 3 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - COMBINED

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Airfare Estimated 19 total plane flights at an average cost of $775.00 per trip

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of

agendas and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks 

in the detailed work plan

THRIVE room rental

THRIVE catering

THRIVE totes

THRIVE Fliers and banners

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Mileage Estimated 53 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80

miles roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus any 

applicable road and bridge tolls

Meals Up to 19 travel days at $61.00 per day

Meeting supplies 11.00 meetings requiring special supplies, at an average cost of

$85.00 per meeting

Meeting refreshments Provide simple refreshments for attendees at up to 16.75 meetings, at an 

average cost of $300.00 per meeting

Teleconference services Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of

agendas and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks 

in the detailed work plan

Postage and shipping

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 2

YEAR 2 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - IECC

Car rental and gas Estimated 23 days of car rental at an average cost of $55.00 per day for rental 

charges and gas

Airport parking Estimated 24 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average 

cost of $28.00 per day

Long distance phone 

calls

Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

33



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

6

Total Cost

$150

3,200$ 

2,100$ 

$812

$300

$39,581

Total Cost

$14,725

$3,530

$1,159

$1,591

$532

$200

$75

$862

3,200$ 

2,100$ 

$100

$28,074

Total Cost

$1,584

$1,159

$1,105

Total Cost

$7,200Meeting refreshments

YEAR 3 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - IECC

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Provide simple refreshments for attendees at up to 24.00 meetings, at an 

average cost of $300.00 per meeting

Meals

Meeting supplies

YEAR 3 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - IECC

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Mileage Estimated 37 trips at an average cost of $42.80 per trip, based on 80 miles 

roundtrip at the current IRS mileage rate of $0.54 per mile plus

any applicable road and bridge tolls

Up to 19 travel days at $61.00 per day

13.00 meetings requiring special supplies, at an average cost of

                                          $85.00 per meeting                                                             

                                           

Teleconference services Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of agendas 

and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks in the 

detailed work plan

Postage and shipping

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 3

CCAT Certification One CCAT Certification with one CBA IX Assessment - full price and one CCAT 

Certification with one CBA IX Assessment - discount

CCAT Assessments Six CCAT Assessments for CBA IX agencies at $350 per agency

Lodging Estimated 19 room nights at an average cost of $144.00 per night, including room 

taxes and surcharges ($2,736) plus Four additional nights lodging for strategic 

financing ($198.39 x 4 = $794)
Meals Up to 19 travel days at $61.00 per day

Car rental and gas Estimated 19 days of car rental at an average cost of $55.00 per day for rental 

charges and gas + Four additional rental car expenses at $136.59 per rental for 

   Airport parking Estimated 19 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average 

cost of $28.00 per day

Long distance phone 

calls

Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

Postage and shipping

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 3

YEAR 3 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - SEI

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Airfare Estimated 19 total plane flights at an average cost of $775.00 per trip

Expense Type Expense Calculation

Copies and printing Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of agendas 

and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks in the 

detailed work plan

CCAT Assessments Six CCAT Assessments for CBA IX agencies at $350 per agency

CCAT Certification One CCAT Certification with one CBA IX Assessment - full price and one CCAT 

Certification with one CBA IX Assessment - discoun

Copies and printing 

Deliverable 2

Copies and printing for sustainability plans, strrategic financing worksheets, 

budgets, and curriculum based on actual expenditures of ($42 + $170 + $600) 

YEAR 3 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - COMBINED

34



SEI Budget ATTACHMENT B

7

$25

$134

$100

$0

$0

$0

$0

$200

$11,507
We propose to perform this project on a not-to-exceed basis, meaning that the cost is limited to the total

amount shown above. If actual hours and expenses required from SEI for the project as a whole are less than

the estimated total amount, the cost will be reduced to reflect the actual hours and expenses incurred.

Invoices are issued monthly for work performed during the month, up to the maximum not-to-exceed

amount for the project. Expenses incurred during each month would be added to the professional fees.

We would be honored to serve First 5 San Bernardino and can assure you that you will receive

responsive, high quality professional services.

We would be honored to serve First 5 San Bernardino and can assure you that you will receive

THRIVE room rental

Allowance for printing costs throughout the project, such as copies of agendas 

and handouts for meetings and other printing needed to complete tasks in the 

detailed work plan

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 3

THRIVE catering

THRIVE totes

THRIVE Fliers and 

Postage and shipping

Long distance phone 

calls

Teleconference services

Allowance for long distance telephone calls throughout the project

Copies and printing

Allowance for teleconference services throughout the project to connect people at 

multiple locations together on conference calls

35



Total Project and Budget Summary 2020-21 Proposed
Expenses

$4,672.00

Total Cost

$0

$0

$14,966.00

$0

Total Expense Breakdown
Direct expenses reflect the projected SEI out-of-pocket costs for travel, printing, long distance

telephone calls, and other expenses directly related to the project. A breakdown of the estimated expenses is

shown in the table below.

Total Cost
$2,368

$848

$216

$544

$96

$600

$4,672

TOTAL PROJECT - SEI SEI Hours Professional Total Cost

Year 4 93.25 $10,294.00 $14,966.00

YEAR 4 - SEI SEI Professional Expenses

PHASE 1. Research and Development 0.0 $0 $0

PHASE 4: Ongoing Coordination and 0.0 $0 $0

PHASE 2: Train the Trainer 0.0 $0 $0

PHASE 3: Targeted Capacity Building 93.3 $10,294.00 $4,672.00

YEAR 1 EXPENSE BREAKDOWN - SEI

Expense Type Expense Calculation
Airfare Estimated 4 total plane flights at an average cost of $592.00 per trip

Lodging Estimated 4 room nights at an average cost of $212.00 per night, including room taxes and surcharges

Meals Up to 4 travel days at $54.00 per day

Car rental and gas Estimated 4 days of car rental at an average cost of $136.00 per day for rental charges and gas

Total Estimated Expenses - Year 4

Airport parking Estimated 4 days of airport parking for trips involving plane flights, at an average cost of $24.00 per day

Meeting supplies Printing of budgets, worksheets, forecast tool, sustainability plan and long range financial forecast for eight 

36



First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategy: Organizational Capacity Building 

IC033 A1 SEI POD FY 19-20.docx    10/25/2019 11:22 AM 
    Page 1 of 3 

                          Program Outline Document 2019-2020 

AGENCY INFORMATION 
  Contract #: IC033 A1 
Legal Entity: Social Entrepreneurs, Inc. 
 
Dept./Division:       
 
Project Name:       
 
Address: 6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Phone #: (775) 324-4567 
 Reno, NV 89509   
 

Website: www.socialent.com  Fax #: (775) 324-4941 
 
Program Site  
Address: 

6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Client Referral  
Phone # 

N/A 

 Choose an item.   
    
 
CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
SIGNING AUTHORITY 
Name: Kelly A. Marschall  Title: President and Principal 
 

Address: 6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Direct Phone #: (775) 324-4567 
 Reno, NV 89509    
 Fax #: (775) 324-4941 
E-Mail: kmarschall9@socialent.com   
 
CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVE 
Name: Kelly A. Marschall  Title: President and Principal 
 

Address: 6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Direct Phone #: (775) 324-4567 
 Reno, NV 89509  Cell # (775) 846-0155 
 Fax #: (775) 324-4941 
E-Mail: kmarschall9@socialent.com   
 
PROGRAM CONTACT 
Name: Sarah Boxx  Title: Principal 
 

Address: 6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Direct Phone #: (775) 324-4567 
 Reno, NV 89509    
 Fax #: (775) 324-4941 
E-Mail: sboxx@socialent.com   
 

FISCAL CONTACT 
Name: Peter Marschall  Title: Operations Associate 
 

37

http://www.socialent.com/
mailto:kmarschall9@socialent.com
mailto:kmarschall9@socialent.com
mailto:sboxx@socialent.com


First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategy: Organizational Capacity Building 

IC033 A1 SEI POD FY 19-20.docx    10/25/2019 11:22 AM 
    Page 2 of 3 

Address: 6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Direct Phone #: (775) 324-4567 
 Reno, NV 89509    
 Fax #: (775) 324-4941 
E-Mail: pmarschall9@socialent.com    
    
ADDITIONAL CONTACT (Describe):  Program 
Name: Lisa Watson  Title: Client Services Manager 
 
Address: 6548 South McCarran Boulevard, Suite B  Direct Phone #: (425) 242-0541 
 Reno, NV 89509    
 Fax #: (775) 324-4941 
E-Mail: lwatson@socialent.com    
 

 

PROGRAM INFORMATION 
 
TYPE OF AGENCY 

 Educational Institution Describe: Choose an item.                                                     
 

 Government Agency Describe: Choose an item. 
 

 Private Entity/Institution Describe: For Profit 
 

 Community-Based Describe: Choose an item.                                                                 
 
FIRST 5 FOCUS AREA STRATEGY 
 

 Health  Early Screening and Intervention  Health & Safety Education 
 Health Care Access  Other:   
 Oral Health        

 

 Education  Early Education Programs  Quality Provider Programs 
 Access to Quality Child Care  Other:   

         
 

 Family  Parent Education  Other: 
 Resource Center & Case 

Management  
       

 

 Systems  Integrated Systems Planning & 
Implementation 

 Community Outreach 

 Countywide Information 
Referral Systems 

 Other: 
      

 Organizational Capacity Building   
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION SERVICE AREA (LOCATIONS) 
Social Entrepreneurs, Inc. provides consultant services to serve as 
Sustainability Project Facilitator of the First 5 Capacity Building 
Systems Strengthening. 
 
 
  

Countywide 

      

      

38

mailto:pmarschall9@socialent.com
mailto:lwatson@socialent.com


First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategy: Organizational Capacity Building 

IC033 A1 SEI POD FY 19-20.docx    10/25/2019 11:22 AM 
    Page 3 of 3 

 
Strategic Priority Area 2: Systems and Network 

GOAL: 2.2 Capacity Building 
 Communities have the capacity to address diverse needs of children. 
 
ASSIGNED ANALYST: Ronnie S. Robinson 
 

CONTRACT AMOUNT 
 
Fiscal Year Amount 

 
2017-2018 $ 347,084  
2018-2019 $ 311,039  
2019-2020 $ 293,572  
2020-2021 $   14,966  
Total $ 966,661  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

39



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
OCTOBER 30, 2019 

Subject Contract SI032 with Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition. 

Recommendations Approve Contract SI032 with Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition for $43,780 for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 to improve breastfeeding rates within San Bernardino County.  
(Presenter: Renee Jones, Staff Analyst II, 252-4273) 

Financial Impact $43,780 for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

Background 
Information 

The Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition (IEBfC) began in 1993 as a volunteer 
group of concerned health care professionals and community members who came 
together to raise awareness of the importance of breastfeeding and to increase 
collaborative efforts among health care agencies.  
 
In November of 2018, First 5 San Bernardino contracted with a consultant to develop 
a Maternal Health Systems framework and identify gaps in service. Through this work 
breastfeeding education and support was identified as a gap in service within San 
Bernardino County.  
 
The Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition will further develop the IEBfC infrastructure 
to sustain, enhance and expand education opportunities for lactation consultants in 
the county. Lactation consultants will mentor clients and encourage knowledge 
acquisition and application of breastfeeding intervention.  
 
In addition, the IEBfC will strengthen and develop the infrastructure of the IEBfC 
Hospital Collaborative as a platform for Baby-Friendly Hospitals seeking designation 
and re-designation to increase and maintain the number of Baby-Friendly hospitals in 
the county.  Baby-Friendly designation means that a maternity facility has successfully 
implemented the Ten Steps to Successful Breastfeeding, which include providing 
appropriate education to enable families to make informed decisions about infant 
feeding, encouraging mother to hold their babies skin-to-skin immediately following 
birth, and offering expert lactation support throughout and beyond the hospital stay.  
 
The IEBfC will expand current evidence-base education interventions, addressing low 
breastfeeding rates through a robust partnership with lactation consultants and 
community members throughout San Bernardino County. This will be achieved by 
increasing awareness, creating community partnerships, and mobilizing resources to 
fill identified gaps and sustain previous First 5 investments in the Baby-Friendly 
Hospital designation program.  
 
Breastfeeding is a crucial first step in protecting the health of mothers and infants.  
Hospital policies and practices have an enormous impact on infant-breastfeeding 
success in not only initial breastfeeding rates but also extended duration for exclusive 
breastfeeding as well.  
 
Pending Commission approval, the Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition will provide 
top-notch, culturally sensitive, and technologically accessible education to health 
professionals working in the field of lactation in order to optimally serve families in San 
Bernardino County during their breastfeeding journeys both within and outside the 
hospital setting.  

40



 
AGENDA ITEM 7 
OCTOBER 30, 2019 
PAGE 2                                                                                                                                      
 
 

 

 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approval of this contract supports the Commission’s Strategic Plan: 
 
SPA 2: Systems and Networks 
Provide leadership within San Bernardino County in the development of support 
systems serving children prenatal through 5, their families and communities that result 
in sustainable and collective impact.  
 
Goal 2.1 Leadership as a Catalyst, Convener, and Partner: 
Work with the community and stakeholders from multiple sectors in support of the 
countywide goal of supporting all children from cradle-to-career.  
 
Objective 2.1.b 
Families, providers and stakeholders collaborate effectively to improve the well-being 
of the child.  
 
Goal 2.2 Capacity Building 
Communities have the capacity to address diverse needs of children. 
 
Objective 2.2.a 
Community organizations and groups are equipped to effectively serve children and 
families.   

 
Review 

Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  

41



 1 

 FOR COMMISSION USE ONLY   
 X  New Vendor Code SC Dept. 

A 
Contract Number 

   Change 10009455 
903 SI032 

   Cancel  

 Organization   Contractor’s License No. 

 Children and Families Commission         

CHILDREN  

AND FAMILIES  

COMMISSION 
FOR 

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 

Commission Representative Telephone Total Contract Amount 

Cindy Faulkner, Assistant Director 909-386-7706 $43,780 

Contract Type 

  Revenue X Encumbered  Unencumbered  Other:   

 
If not encumbered or revenue contract type, provide reason:  

Commodity Code Contract Start Date Contract End Date Original Amount Amendment Amount 

95200 November 1, 2019 June 30, 2020 
 

  

 Cost Center 

9033009900 

GL Account Internal Order No. Amount 

STANDARD CONTRACT 
        53003357  1000734 $43,780 

Cost Center 

      

GL Account 

                   

 

Internal Order No. 

      

 

Cost Center 

      

GL Account 

                   

 

Internal Order No. 

      

Amount 

 Abbreviated Use Estimated Payment Total by Fiscal Year 

     FY  Amount  I/D   FY  Amount  I/D  

  Promoting Breastfeeding   19-20  $43,780  I         

                  

                  

                  

THIS CONTRACT is entered into in the State of California by and between the Children and Families 
Commission for San Bernardino County, hereinafter called the Commission, and 

Legal Name (hereinafter called the Contractor)   

Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition    

Department/Division   

        

Address  Program Address (if different from legal address): 

P.O. Box 642  Community Action Partnership 

Riverside, CA 92502  2038 Iowa Ave. Suite B-101, Riverside CA 9 

Phone   

(951) 288-1920   

Federal ID No.   

71-0875339   

 

WHEREAS, the Commission has been authorized by the State of California under Section 130100 -130155 of the 
Health and Safety Code and Section 30131.2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, in accordance with the Children 
and Families Act of 1998, to promote, support and improve the early development of children prenatal through age 
five, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission has been authorized by these cited references and by County of San Bernardino Code 
under Sections 12.291 – 12.297 to contract with organizations for services to children prenatal through age five and 
their families in San Bernardino County, and  
 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires that such services be provided by Contractor and Contractor agrees to provide 
the services as set forth in this Contract, 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in accordance with the conditions stated herein, the Commission and Contractor mutually 
agree to the following terms and conditions: 

Auditor-Controller/Treasurer Tax Collector Use Only 

 Contract Database                      FAS 

Input Date Keyed By 

42



 2 

I. DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................................. 3 

II. CONTRACTOR’S SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES ...................................................................... 8 

III. CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES .................................................................... 8 

IV.     COMMISSION RESPONSIBILITIES ......................................................................................... 17 

V. FISCAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................................... 17 

VI. RIGHT TO MONITOR AND AUDIT ........................................................................................... 20 

VII.    CORRECTION OF PERFORMANCE DEFICIENCIES AND TERMINATION ............................ 21 

VIII. TERM ........................................................................................................................................ 21 

IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS .......................................................................................................... 22 

X.    NONDISCRIMINATION ............................................................................................................... 23 

XI.     IMPROPER CONSIDERATION ................................................................................................. 24 

XII.     DISCLOSURE OF CRIMINAL AND CIVIL PROCEEDINGS .................................................... 24 

XI. CONCLUSION ........................................................................................................................... 25 
 

 PROGRAM WORK PLAN  ........................................................................................ Attachment A 
 

 PROGRAM BUDGET  ............................................................................................... Attachment B 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 3 

I. DEFINITIONS 

Accessibility: Ease of obtaining services, measured by addressing geographical, travel and other 
barriers. 

Adult-Adolescent Parent Inventory (AAPI):  An inventory designed to assess the parenting and child 
rearing attitudes of adult and adolescent parent and pre-parent populations. Based on the known 
parenting and child rearing behaviors, responses to the inventory provide an index of risk for practicing 
behaviors known to be attributable to child abuse and neglect.   

Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs):  Describes all types of abuse, neglect, and other potentially 
traumatic experiences that occur to people under the age of 18. (CDC). 

Affordable Care Act (ACA):  Health care reform law enacted in March 2010. Affordable Care Act (ACA) 
refers to the final amended version of the law.   

Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ-3):  A developmental screening tool to screen young children to 
easily identify potential delays as early as possible and determine which children need further 
assessment or ongoing monitoring.  The ASQ:Social Emotional (ASQ-SE) tool measures the social and 
emotional competence of children. 

Asthma:  Is a disease/condition that affects the lungs.  It causes repeated episodes of wheezing, 
breathlessness, chest tightness, and nighttime or early morning coughing and is one of the most common 
long-term diseases of children although adults may also have this condition. 

Basic Needs:  Necessities to meet the food, shelter, and immediate safety needs of a parent and/or 
child.  These resources are meant to address an immediate need. 

C4Yourself: A Component to the C-IV System that allows customers to apply for Food Stamps, Medi-
Cal, CalWORKS, and CMSP via the internet.  Customers enter information to apply online and the data 
transfers to the C-IV System automatically.  Customers have the ability to complete and submit their 
annual redeterminations/recertifications, access their quarterly/mid-year status reports and have the 
ability to view the status of their cash/benefits. 

California Evidence-Based Clearinghouse (CEBC) for Child Welfare: Advances the effective 
implementation of evidence-based practices for children and families involved with the child welfare 
system.  

Capital Expenses:  Costs of construction projects, including but not limited to; brick and mortar type 
projects, demolition, room expansion, carpet installation, air-conditioner or water heater 
installation/replacement, wheel-chair access ramps, stationary playgrounds or vehicle purchases. 

Care Coordination:  A service deliverable that includes the following activities: implementing an active 
outreach system to underserved populations, establishing a family's eligibility for services or funding, 
providing information, answering questions and helping people make decisions about services, helping 
families complete paperwork to obtain services, making and following up on referrals to health care 
providers, helping families find interpreters, determining potential barriers for parents and problem-
solving to reduce the barriers, arranging for transportation for medical appointments, scheduling 
appointments and coordinating with other health care appointments if possible, explaining the importance 
of health care and answering some common  health questions, reviewing responsibilities and rights of 
patients and of health care  providers, coordinating with families to facilitate follow-up on 
recommendations and routine care, and providing re-enrollment assistance. 

Caries:  A biofilm (plaque)-induced acid demineralization of enamel or dentin, mediated by saliva. 

Carryover Clients:  A client receiving services across multiple fiscal years. This scenario can only occur 
relative to the FDM only. 

Case Management: Collaborative process of assessment, planning, facilitation, care coordination, 
evaluation and advocacy for options and services to meet an individual’s and family’s comprehensive 
health needs through communication and available resources to promote patient safety, quality of care, 
and cost effective outcomes.  

 

44



 4 

Collaborative: Agencies demonstrates ability working jointly with others, building coalition together. 

Common Indicators:  Common Indicators are a shared set of metrics among affiliates that are heavily 
influenced by local variations in HMG systems and inform local continuous quality improvement and 
system enhancements. 

Connected:  Child or family is receiving a service.  

Cost Effectiveness:  Achieving the desired goal with the minimum of expenditure. 

Child Care Licensing:  Managed by the State of California.  This agency licenses and monitors Family 
Child Care Homes and Child Care Centers in an effort to ensure they provide a safe and healthy 
environment for children who are in day care. 

Child Development Permit Matrix:  Issued through the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
who authorize multiple permit levels for a variety of services in childcare and child development programs. 

Demonstrated Outcomes:  Data supported evidence that indicators addressed through the program 
demonstrate marked improvement. 

Dental Home:  Ongoing relationship between the dentist and the patient, inclusive of all aspects of oral 
health care delivered in a comprehensive, continuously accessible, coordinated, and family-centered 
way. 

Dental Screening:  A visual assessment of the child’s oral health, done without instrumentation or the 
use of x-rays or any other diagnostic equipment. The provider observes, provides fluoride varnish and 
notes the condition of the teeth, surrounding soft tissues, simple jaw relationships and overall oral 
hygiene. 

Dental Treatment:  Includes a thorough dental examination with the use of x-rays and proper instruments 
to diagnose the condition of the teeth and other oral structures. A full scope of treatment may include 
preventative services, such as cleaning and oral hygiene instruction for parent and/or child, as well as 
restoration or removal of damaged teeth and proper space maintenance. Complete treatment results in 
the proper function and comfort of the child’s mouth in a developmentally appropriate way. It anticipates 
the best possible outcome for healthy permanent teeth. 

Direct Costs: Costs that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective, such as a 
particular project, service, or other direct activity of an organization. 

Dosage:  The frequency and level of exposure to services offered to the participant.  

Evidence-Based: Refers to the use of research and scientific studies as a base for determining best 
practices. 

Family Community Support Partnership (FCSP) Model: A prevention model with the objective to 
reduce risk of child abuse/neglect that can be replicated in San Bernardino County. The model 
component includes parent education curriculum (Nurturing Parenting Program) and structured case 
management (Family Development Matrix: Matrix Outcome Model).  

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E): An intentional system designed to 
bridge, support and expand the FCSP model in a manner that aligns with F5SB Strategic Plan and 
systems approach. 

Family Development Matrix (FDM): Tool that is used in partnership with families to assess their 
strengths and issues of concerns and guides the Family Empowerment Plan; facilitates participation by 
the family and the provider.  It measures over time the progress of family outcomes and the effectiveness 
of interventions. 

Family Empowerment Plan: A collaborative process that assesses, plans, implements, coordinates, 
monitors, and evaluates the options and services required to meet the client’s needs in a limited time 
frame based on a service plan and appropriately aligned with the FDM. Characterized by advocacy, 
communication, resource navigation, quality cost-effective interventions and outcomes, and linking the 
client with systems.  

45



 5 

Full Time Equivalent (FTE):  A measurement equal to one staff person employed in a full-time work 
schedule and which is, for purposes relating to this contract, calculated at 2,080 hours in a year.  FTEs 
provide a common unit of measurement for positions budgeted. The number of FTEs is the cumulative 
value expressed, using the full-time equivalent measurement as a baseline, as a total percentage of time 
or as a total percentage of funds related to a particular classification.   

Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC):  Entities as defined by the Social Security Act at section 
1905(l)(2) which, "(i) is receiving a grant under section 330 of the Public Health Service Act, or (ii)(I) is 
receiving funding from such a grant under a contract with the recipient of such a grant and (II) meets the 
requirements to receive a grant under section 330 of the Public Health Service Act, (iii) based on the 
recommendation of the Health Resources and Services Administration within the Public Health Service, 
and is determined by the Secretary to meet the requirements for receiving such a grant including 
requirements of the Secretary that an entity may not be owned, controlled, or operated by another entity; 
or (iv) was treated by the Secretary, for purposes of Part B of title XVIII, as a comprehensive Federally-
funded health center as of January 1, 1990, and includes an outpatient health program or facility operated 
by a tribe or tribal organization under the Indian Self-Determination Act or by an urban Indian organization 
receiving funds under Title V of the Indian Health Care Improvement Act for the provision of primary 
health services." In considering these definitions, it should be noted that programs meeting the FQHC 
requirements commonly include the following (but must be certified and meet all requirements stated 
above): Community Health Centers, Migrant Health Centers, Healthcare for the Homeless Programs, 
Public Housing Primary Care Programs, Federally Qualified Health Center Look-Alikes, and Tribal Health 
Centers. 

Help Me Grow (HMG):  Help Me Grow is a system of coordination used nationally to connect children to 
early screening and community services. The system builds collaboration across sectors, including child 
health care, early care and education, and family support. Through comprehensive  physician and 
community outreach and centralized information and referral centers, families are linked with needed 
programs and services. 

Help Me Grow Evaluation Advisory Board (HMG-EAB):  Shared measurement platform reflects 
diverse organizations tackling complex issues, targeting slightly different groups and employing different 
strategies and activities agreed on a set of common and impact indicators that are shared and adequately 
reflect the important nuances of this work. 

HMG Indicators:  Enables HMG affiliates to monitor progress, share lessons learned, advocate for 
change, and consult with other affiliates. 

Indirect Costs:  Costs that have been incurred for the benefit of multiple projects or activities and cannot 
be readily identified with a particular final cost objective. An organization having several major functions 
may need to accumulate the indirect costs into separate groupings and then allocate proportionally to the 
benefiting functions by means of a base which best measures the relative degree of benefit. The indirect 
cost rate would be used to distribute the proportional amount of indirect costs to the individual projects 
or activities based on a Board approved cost allocation plan.   

Inland Empire Autism Assessment Center of Excellence (AACE):  AACE will be designed to provide 
a comprehensive assessment for all children referred as potentially being diagnosed with Autism 
Spectrum Disorder ASD.  The center will be designed around the child to be child-centric rather than 
agency-centric. 

Inland Empire Community Collaborative (IECC): Consultants for Family Community Support 
Partnership (FCSP) Cooperative Expansion Project. 

Maternal Health Network: A collective of service providers that support the maternal health system 
throughout San Bernardino County and engage in a collaborative process to identifying gaps to address 
in maternal health services.  

Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM):  A model that provides a set of complimentary assessment, case 
management and evaluation tools.   

Mental Health Promotion: Related to improving the quality of life and potential for health rather than 
amelioration of symptoms and deficits. 

46



 6 

Notable Outcomes: Worthy of note to promote a shared countywide data bank of evidenced based child 
abuse risk prevention and early intervention best practices 

Nurturing Parenting Program (NPP) for Parents and their Infants, Toddlers and Preschoolers: A 
family-centered program designed for the prevention and treatment of child abuse and neglect. Both 
parents and their children birth to five years participate in home-based, group-based, or combination 
group-based and home-based program model. Lessons are competency-based ensuring parental 
learning and mastery of skills.  

Optimal Development: A child is most likely to reach his/her full potential if he/she experiences 
consistent, predictable, enriched, and stimulating interactions in a context of attentive and nurturing 
relationships.  

Outcome: The result, which the Commission seeks (as outlined in the Strategic Plan) and to which all 
performance targets must contribute to a measurable change.  

Parent-Child Enrichment Activities: Activities for parents and children to do together depending on 
child’s stages of development and individual interest.  

Parenting Education: Programs that improve knowledge and increase positive parenting skills.  

Parent-Peer:  Parents assisting other parents by advocating, guiding and providing moral support as 
they navigate systems and services. 

Participant: A recipient of funded services in accordance with the target population, are children, 
prenatal through age five and/or pregnant women.  

Participant Support: Budget line item category for items purchased to remove barriers or to provide 
motivation to participants upon completion of the program.  Items purchased should be relative to the 
program objectives.  Gift cards are not an allowable expense. 

Participant Transportation:  Budget line item category for costs involved with transporting participants 
to needed services and/or appointments.   

Perinatal Parent Education Program:  Programs that address the concerns and needs of a pregnant 
woman, her infant child, and the woman’s support system.  These programs address and affect not only 
healthy birth outcomes but improved child well-being and family stability outcomes as well. 

Performance Target:  The specific result that a Contractor seeking investment will commit to achieve. It 
is tangible in the sense that it can be verified and narrow enough to be directly achieved by the Contractor. 
It almost always represents a measurable change in the participant of a program. 

Perinatal Parent Education Program:  Programs that address the concerns and needs of a pregnant 
woman, her infant child, and the woman’s support system.  These programs address and affect not only 
healthy birth outcomes but improved child well-being and family stability outcomes as well. 

Post-Assessment (AAPI-2.1 Form A): Taken after completion of NPP sessions to measure 
effectiveness of NPP based on the risk identified in Pre-Assessment AAPI. 

Pre-Assessment (AAPI-2.1 Form B): Take before NPP sessions begins to identify risk areas/constructs 
as a process to select NPP curriculum topics to target.  

Prevention: Services that mitigate effects of risk and stress and address potential early relationship 
challenges or vulnerabilities that impact early development. 

Professional Services/Consultants:  Independent contractors hired to perform services not related to 
providing direct services. Examples include janitorial services, bookkeeping services, speakers, etc. 

Program Materials/Supplies:  Budget line item category for items directly related to service delivery 
such as course curriculum, children’s books, journals used by participants, child development toys, etc. 

Program Work Plan:  A document containing program expectations and deliverables as agreed upon 
by First 5 San Bernardino and program contractors.  The work plan includes information on the individual 
components of the program in addition to structure including dosage, activities, outcome expectations 
and verification methods.  This document is signed by the contractor leadership and is approved by the 
First 5 San Bernardino Commission. 

47



 7 

Quality Child Care:  Licensed child care and early learning programs (including home-based and center-
based care) are safe, healthy, nurturing, stimulating, supportive, interactive, culturally appropriate and 
sensitive to the needs of all children.  They promote early education and the development of trusting 
relationships to support individual children’s physical, emotional, social and intellectual development. 

Quality Improvement: A systematic, formal approach to the analysis of practice and performance efforts 
to improve performance. 

Quality Start San Bernardino (QSSB):  Local Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS). QSSB is 
a collaborative efforts charged with strengthening the quality of the early childhood education system county 
wide. 

Reasonable Rate of Success:   Total number of program participants expected to successfully complete 
the program meeting the outcome targets. 

Relationship Based Practice/Relational Informed Practice: When you engage with a family, you help 
strengthen the partnership with them. There are six Relationships-Based Practices that can help promote 
family engagement. 1. Observe and describe the child's behavior to open community with the family; 2. 
Reflect on the family's perspective; 3.Support competence; 4. Focus on the family-child relationship; 5. 
Value a family's passion; 6. Reflect on your own perspective. 

Request for Proposal (RFP):  The document used to solicit a solution or solutions from potential 
Contractors to a specific problem or need. 

Researched Based:  See evidence-based: Using research as the basis for determining best practices.   

Resource Center: A facility to which children, prenatal through age five, and families access services 
needed. Two basic program elements must be present at a Resource Center for it to meet the minimal 
definition:  (i) referrals and linkages to critical services and programs, not represented physically at the 
center, and (ii) case management (see definition for Case Management).  

Rural Health Clinic (RHC):  Clinics that are certified under section 1861(aa)(2) of the Social Security 
Act to provide care in underserved areas, and therefore, to receive cost-based Medicare and Medicaid 
reimbursements. 

Satisfaction Survey:  Survey designed to measure the participant’s overall satisfaction with the services 
rendered.  Satisfaction Surveys address specific aspects of service provision in order to identify problems 
and opportunities for improvement. 

Scalable Service: Agencies is capable of expanded or upgraded on demand to meet increase 
service needs. 

Special Needs:  Children having an identified disability, health, or mental health condition(s) that require 
early interventions, special education services, or other specialized supports. 

Staff Development/Training:  Budget line item category for expenses associated with staff training, 
conferences, retreats, classes, and any other staff development activities related to the funded program. 

Staff Mileage/Travel:   Budget line item category for employee mileage and travel costs (including 
lodging and food) for travel related to the program, based on the current IRS allowable rate.  

Sten Scores: The data are plotted on the profile using sten scores as the unit of measurement. Sten 
scores are "standard ten scores" that are built for a normal distribution. Responses to the AAPI-2.1 for 
each of the subscales are categorized as Low Risk, Moderate Risk or High Risk for Child Maltreatment. 

Strengthening Families Framework: The Strengthening Families framework is a research-informed 
approach to increase family strengths, enhance child development, and reduce the likelihood of child 
abuse and neglect. It is based on engaging families, programs, and communities in building five key 
Protective Factors. 1.) Parental resilience; 2.) Social connections; 3.) Knowledge of parenting and child 
development; 4.) Concrete support in times of need; 5.) Social and emotional competence of children. 

Subcontractor:  Agencies contracted by the primary Contractor to provide direct services for which they 
will be responsible for achieving the performance targets for the portion of services they are providing.  
Contractor shall be responsible for the performance of any subcontractor.   

48



 8 

Trauma Informed Practice: Strengths based framework that is grounded in an understanding of and 
responsiveness to the impact of trauma, that emphasis physical, psychological and emotional safety for 
both providers and survivors, and that creates opportunities for survivors to rebuild a sense of control 
and empowerment.  

Unduplicated Clients:  Clients who are counted as receiving service for the first time. 

Uninsured: Individuals not covered by health insurance.  

Verification: Validates that something represented to happen does in fact take place. The verification 
tools must be approved by the Commission.   

Women, Infants, and Children (WIC):  The Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, 
and Children - better known as the WIC Program - serves to safeguard the health of low-income pregnant, 
postpartum, and breastfeeding women, infants, and children up to age 5 who are at nutritional risk by 
providing nutritious foods to supplement diets, information on healthy eating including breastfeeding 
promotion and support, and referrals to health care. Is maintained by the Food and Nutrition Service 
(FNS), a Federal agency of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, responsible for administering the WIC 
Program at the national and regional levels. 

 
II. CONTRACTOR’S SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. Contractor shall provide all program services identified in this Contract, including Attachment A – 
Program Work Plan and Attachment B – Program Budget. Pursuant to Section II, paragraphs D & F, 
and Section III, paragraph BB, and Section VIII, paragraph D of the Contract, Attachment A will be 
amended to list the specific quantitative targets for the respective year.   
              
                    

             Initial Here 

B. Contractor shall provide services in a manner consistent with the Principles on Equity as adopted by 
the Commission and as available by the Commission.  

C. Contractor shall coordinate with appropriate agencies to enhance service provision and to maximize 
usage of California Children and Families Trust Fund monies available. 

D. Contractor shall deliver performance targets as specified in the Contract and provide evidence of 
achievement as identified in the verification. The verification tools must be approved by the 
Commission. When specified by the Commission, verification tools must be developed in 
collaboration with staff or agencies as designated by Commission. 

E. Contractor shall cooperate with any consultant, technical advisor, or committee as designated by the 
Commission to support the evaluation system development and implementation process. 

F. Contractor’s Program Work Plan (Attachment A) and other program specific data collection information 
requested by the Commission will be placed in the Commission’s web based data system. Contractor is 
bound by the information contained in the data collection system.  If there is a discrepancy between the 
Contractor’s Program Work Plan (Attachment A) and the data collection system, the information in the 
system will take precedence over the Program Work Plan and will be used to evaluate Contractor’s 
performance under the Contract.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that the information 
entered into the data system, as it relates to the Performance Program Work Plan and/or other program 
specific data collection information requested by the Commission, fully captures the intent of the 
program/project for the term identified in Section VIII.        

       
               Initial Here 

III. CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Participants 

Contractor understands and acknowledges that the services under this Contract are for the purposes 
of promoting, supporting and improving the early development of children prenatal through age five. 
As such, services provided under this Contract shall offer a direct benefit to this population. Any 
service provided beyond this limitation, unless as agreed upon in this Contract, is a breach of contract 
and an unauthorized expenditure of Children and Families First Act funds. Services to siblings and 

49



 9 

family members who are not parents or primary caregivers may only be incidental to services 
provided to children prenatal through age five. 

B. Contractor Capacity 

In the performance of this Contract, Contractor its agents and employees shall act in an independent 
capacity and not as officers, employees, or agents of the Commission.  

C. Contract Assignability 

Without the prior written consent of the Commission, the Contract is not assignable by Contractor 
either in whole or in part. 

D. Conflict of Interest 

Contractor shall make all reasonable efforts to ensure that no conflict of interest exists between its 
officers, employees, subcontractors, independent contractors, consultants, professional service 
representatives, volunteers and the Commission.  Contractor shall make a reasonable effort to prevent 
employees, consultants, or members of governing bodies from using their positions for purposes that 
are, or give the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others such 
as those with whom they have family, business, or other ties.  In addition, Contractor’s employees shall 
not simultaneously receive payment for work done as an independent contractor without obtaining prior 
approval from the Executive Director of the Commission, or authorized designee. In the event that the 
Commission determines that a conflict of interest situation exists, the Commission may disallow any 
increase in costs associated with the conflict of interest situation and such conflict may constitute 
grounds for termination of this Contract. 

E. Former Commission Administrative Officials 

Contractor agrees to provide or has already provided information on former Commission 
administrative officials (as defined below) who are employed by or represent Contractor.  The 
information provided includes a list of former Commission administrative officials who terminated 
Commission employment within the last five (5) years and who are now officers, principals, partners, 
associates or members of the business. The information also includes the employment with or 
representation of Contractor.  For purposes of this provision, “Commission Administrative Official” is 
defined as a member of the Commission or such Administrative Staff. 

If during the course of the administration of this Contract, the Commission determines that the Contractor 
has made a material misstatement or misrepresentation or that materially inaccurate information has 
been provided to the Commission, this Contract may be immediately terminated.  If this Contract is 
terminated according to this provision, the Commission is entitled to pursue any available legal remedies. 

F. Subcontracting 

Contractor agrees not to enter into any subcontracting agreements for work contemplated under this 
Contract without first obtaining written approval from the Commission. Any subcontractor shall be subject 
to the same provisions as the Contractor. Contractor shall be ultimately responsible for the performance 
of any subcontractor.   

G. Recordkeeping 

Contractor shall maintain all records and books pertaining to the delivery of services under this Contract 
and demonstrate accountability for contract performance. All records shall be complete and current and 
comply with all Contract requirements.  Failure to maintain acceptable records per the preceding 
requirements shall be considered grounds for withholding of payments for billings submitted and for 
termination of the Contract. 

Fiscal records shall be kept in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and must 
account for all funds, tangible assets, revenue and expenditures.  Fiscal records must also comply with 
the appropriate Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars that state the administrative 
requirements, cost principles and other standards for accountancy. 

The Commission shall have the right upon reasonable notice and at reasonable hours of business to 
examine and inspect such records and books. 

 

50



 10 

H. Change of Address 

Contractor shall notify the Commission in writing of any change in mailing and/or service address. 
Notification shall occur in advance of the address change. At a minimum, notification must occur within 
five (5) days of the address change.  Change of address shall not interrupt service deliverables outlined 
in Attachment A. 

I. Staffing and Notification 

Contractor shall notify Commission of any continuing vacancies beyond thirty (30) days and any 
positions that become vacant during the term of this Contract that may result in reduction of services 
to be provided under this Contract.  Upon notices of vacancies, the Contractor shall apprise 
Commission of the steps being taken to provide the services without interruption and to fill the position 
as expeditiously as possible.  Vacancies and associated problems shall be reported to the 
Commission on each periodically required report for the duration of said vacancies and/or problems. 

In the event of a problem or potential problem that will severely impact the quality or quantity of service 
delivery, or the level of performance under this Contract, Contractor will notify the Commission within 
one (1) working day, in writing and by telephone.  

J. Contractor Primary Contact 

The Contractor will designate one individual to serve as the primary contact and one to serve as the 
alternate contact, if primary contact is unavailable, on behalf of the Contractor and will notify the 
Commission of these designees within fifteen (15) days after Contract approval. The primary contact 
shall have the authority to identify, on behalf of the Contractor, other parties able to give or receive 
information on behalf of this Contract.  

Contractor shall notify the Commission when the primary contact will be unavailable or out of the office 
for two (2) weeks or more or if there is any change in either the primary or alternate contact. 

K. Responsiveness 

Contractor or a designee must respond to Commission inquiries within five (5) business days.  

L. Grievance Policy 

Contractor shall provide a system, approved by the Commission, through which participants of services 
shall have an opportunity to express their views and complaints regarding the delivery of service.  
Grievance procedure must be posted prominently in English and Spanish at service sites for participants 
to review. 

M. Governing Board  

Contractor shall provide the Commission with a listing identifying the members of the Board of 
Directors or other governing party, written schedule of all Board of Directors or other governing party 
meetings and provide the Commission with copies of the Board of Directors’ minutes when 
discussions or actions taken during these meetings may impact on the Contract. All Board of 
Directors’ minutes shall be submitted to the Commission with each periodically required report 
submitted following approval of the minutes. Contractor’s governing board must meet not less than 
four times per year. No board member may be an employee of the organization and no paid staff 
member may serve as a voting member of the governing board. Further, the Commission 
representative shall have the option of attending Board meetings during the term of this Contract. 

N. Confidentiality 

 Contractor shall ensure that all staff, volunteers and/or Subcontractors performing Services under this 
Contract comply with the Commission’s Policy 18-01 Non-public Personally Identifiable Information 
specified at http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx prior to providing any Services.  
Contractor shall immediately notify the Commission of any suspected or actual breach of confidential 
information as further detailed in the requirements. These requirements specified at 
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx are hereby incorporated by this reference. 

 Contractor shall protect from unauthorized use or disclosure names and other identifying information 
concerning persons receiving Services pursuant to this Contract, except for statistical information 

51

http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx


 11 

not identifying any participant.  Contractor shall not use or disclose any identifying information for 
any other purpose other than carrying out the Contractor's obligations under this Contract, except as 
may be otherwise required by law.  This provision will remain in force even after the termination of 
the Contract.  

 Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as applicable.  

O. Child Abuse Reporting  

Contractor shall ensure that all known or suspected instances of child abuse or neglect are reported 
to the appropriate law enforcement agency and/or to the appropriate Child Protective Services 
agency.  This responsibility shall include: 

 Assurance that all employees, agents, consultants or volunteers who perform services under this 
Contract and are mandated by Penal Code Sections 11164 et seq. to report child abuse or 
neglect, sign a statement, upon the commencement of their employment, acknowledging their 
reporting requirements and their compliance with them; 

 Development and implementation of procedures for employees, agents, consultants, or 
volunteers who are not subject to the mandatory reporting laws for child abuse to report any 
observed or suspected incidents of child abuse to a mandated reporting party, within the program, 
who will ensure that the incident is reported to the appropriate agency;  

 Provision of or arrangement of training in child abuse reporting laws (Penal Code, Sections 11164 
et seq.) for all employees, agents, consultants, and volunteers, or verification that such persons 
have received training in the law within thirty (30) days of employment/volunteer activity.   
          

            
             Initial Here 

P. Department of Justice Clearance 

Contractor shall obtain from the Department of Justice, records of all convictions involving any sex 
crimes, drug crimes, or crimes of violence of a person who is offered employment, or volunteers, for 
all positions in which he or she would have contact with a minor, the aged, the blind, the disabled or 
a domestic violence client, as provided for in Penal Code Section 11105.3.  This includes licensed 
personnel who are not able to provide documentation of prior Department of Justice clearance.  A 
copy of a license from the State of California is sufficient proof.  

Contractor must have on file for review upon request a signed statement verifying Department of 
Justice clearance for all appropriate individuals.        

       
                   Initial Here 

Q. Conditions of Employment 

Contractor shall notify the Commission of any staff member, paid intern or volunteer who is knowingly 
or negligently employed who has been convicted of any crime of violence or of any sexual crime.  
Contractor shall investigate all incidents where an applicant, employee, or intern or volunteer has been 
arrested and/or convicted for any crime listed in Penal Code Section 11105.3 and shall notify the 
Commission.  In the Commission’s discretion, the Commission may instruct Contractor to take action to 
either deny/terminate employment or terminate internship and/or volunteer services where the 
investigation shows that the underlying conduct renders the person unsuitable for employment, 
internship or volunteer services. 

R. Meeting Attendance 

Contractor will be required to attend meetings, workshops and training sessions around issues 
related to Contractor’s particular region or directly related to the type of services being provided by 
Contractor as determined by the Commission. Notifications of such meetings will be provided to 
Contractor at least ten (10) business days prior to the meeting. 

S. Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 

Contractor agrees to and shall comply with the following indemnification and insurance requirements: 

52

https://aspe.hhs.gov/report/health-insurance-portability-and-accountability-act-1996
https://aspe.hhs.gov/report/health-insurance-portability-and-accountability-act-1996
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3


 12 

1. Indemnification – The Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably 
approved by the Commission) and hold harmless the Commission and its authorized 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all claims, actions, losses, 
damages, and/or liability arising out of this Contract from any cause whatsoever, including 
the acts, errors or omissions of any person and for any costs or expenses incurred by the 
Commission on account of any claim except where such indemnification is prohibited by 
law. This indemnification provision shall apply regardless of the existence or degree of 
fault of indemnitees. The Contractor’s indemnification obligation applies to the 
Commission’s “active” as well as “passive” negligence but does not apply to the 
Commission’s “sole negligence” or “willful misconduct” within the meaning of Civil Code 
Section 2782.  

2. Additional Insured – All policies, except for the Workers’ Compensation, Errors and 
Omissions and Professional Liability policies, shall contain endorsements naming the 
Commission and its officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds 
with respect to liabilities arising out of the performance of services hereunder. The 
additional insured endorsements shall not limit the scope of coverage for the Commission 
to vicarious liability but shall allow coverage for the Commission to the full extent provided 
by the policy. Such additional insured coverage shall be at least as broad as Additional 
Insured (Form B) endorsement form ISO, CG 2010.11 85.  

3. Waiver of Subrogation Rights – The Contractor shall require the carriers of required 
coverages to waive all rights of subrogation against the Commission, its officers, 
employees, agents, volunteers, contractors and subcontractors. All general or auto liability 
insurance coverage provided shall not prohibit the Contractor and Contractor’s employees 
or agents from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss or claim. The Contractor 
hereby waives all rights of subrogation against the Commission.  

4. Policies Primary and Non-Contributory – All policies required herein are to be primary and 
non-contributory with any insurance or self-insurance programs carried or administered 
by the Commission.  

5. Severability of Interests – The Contractor agrees to ensure that coverage provided to meet 
these requirements is applicable separately to each insured and there will be no cross 
liability exclusions that preclude coverage for suits between the Contractor and the 
Commission or between the Commission and any other insured or additional insured 
under the policy. 

6. Proof of Coverage – The Contractor shall furnish Certificates of Insurance to the 
Commission Department administering the Contract evidencing the insurance coverage 
at the time the Contract is executed, additional endorsements, as required, shall be 
provided prior to the commencement of performance of services hereunder, which 
certificates shall provide that such insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty 
(30) days written notice to the Department, and Contractor shall maintain such insurance 
from the time Contractor commences performance of services hereunder until the 
completion of such services. Within fifteen (15) days of the commencement of this 
Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a copy of the Declaration page for all applicable 
policies and will provide complete certified copies of the policies and endorsements 
immediately upon request. 

7. Acceptability of Insurance Carrier – Unless otherwise approved by Risk Management, 
insurance shall be written by insurers authorized to do business in the State of California 
and with a minimum “Best” Insurance Guide rating of “A- VII”. 

8. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention - Any and all deductibles or self-insured retentions 
in excess of $10,000 shall be declared to and approved by Risk Management.  

9. Failure to Procure Coverage – In the event that any policy of insurance required under this 
Contract does not comply with the requirements, is not procured, or is canceled and not 
replaced, the Commission has the right but not the obligation or duty to cancel the contract 
or obtain insurance if it deems necessary and any premiums paid by the Commission will 

53



 13 

be promptly reimbursed by the Contractor or Commission payments to the Contractor will 
be reduced to pay for Commission purchased insurance.  

10. Insurance Review – Insurance requirements are subject to periodic review by the 
Commission. The Director of Risk Management or designee is authorized, but not 
required, to reduce, waive or suspend any insurance requirements whenever Risk 
Management determines that any of the required insurance is not available, is 
unreasonably priced, or is not needed to protect the interests of the Commission. In 
addition, if the Department of Risk Management determines that heretofore unreasonably 
priced or unavailable types of insurance coverage or coverage limits become reasonably 
priced or available, the Director of Risk Management or designee is authorized, but not 
required, to change the above insurance requirements to require additional types of 
insurance coverage or higher coverage limits, provided that any such change is 
reasonable in light of past claims against the Commission, inflation, or any other item 
reasonably related to the Commission’s risk.  

Any change requiring additional types of insurance coverage or higher coverage limits 
must be made by amendment to this Contract. Contractor agrees to execute any such 
amendment within thirty (30) days of receipt.  

Any failure, actual or alleged, on the part of the Commission to monitor or enforce 
compliance with any of the insurance and indemnification requirements will not be deemed 
as a waiver of any rights on the part of the Commission.  

11. The Contractor agrees to provide insurance set forth in accordance with the requirements 
herein. If the Contractor uses existing coverage to comply with these requirements and 
that coverage does not meet the specified requirements, the Contractor agrees to amend, 
supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so. The type(s) of insurance required 
is determined by the scope of the contract services.  

Without in anyway affecting the indemnity herein provided and in addition thereto, the 
Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the contract term the following types of 
insurance with limits as shown:  

a. Workers’ Compensation/Employers Liability – A program of Workers’ 
Compensation insurance or a state-approved, self-insurance program in an 
amount and form to meet all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the 
State of California, including Employer’s Liability with $250,000 limits covering all 
persons including volunteers providing services on behalf of the Contractor and all 
risks to such persons under this Contract.  

If Contractor has no employees, it may certify or warrant to the Commission that it 
does not currently have any employees or individuals who are defined as 
“employees” under the Labor Code and the requirement for Workers’ 
Compensation coverage will be waived by the Commission’s Director of Risk 
Management. 

With respect to Contractors that are non-profit corporations organized under 
California or Federal law, volunteers for such entities are required to be covered 
by Workers’ Compensation insurance.  

b. Commercial/General Liability Insurance – The Contractor shall carry General 
Liability Insurance covering all operations performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor providing coverage for bodily injury and property damage with a 
combined single limit of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000), per 
occurrence. The policy coverage shall include:  

1) Premises operations, fixed assets and mobile equipment.  

2) Products and completed operations.  

3) Broad form property damage (including completed operations).  

54



 14 

4) Explosion, collapse and underground hazards.  

5) Personal injury  

6) Contractual liability.  

7) $2,000,000 general aggregate limit.  

c. Automobile Liability Insurance – Primary insurance coverage shall be written on 
ISO Business Auto coverage form for all owned, hired and non-owned automobiles 
or symbol 1 (any auto). The policy shall have a combined single limit of not less 
than one million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage, per 
occurrence.  

If the Contractor is transporting one or more non-employee passengers in 
performance of contract services, the automobile liability policy shall have a 
combined single limit of two million dollars ($2,000,000) for bodily injury and 
property damage per occurrence.  

If the Contractor owns no autos, a non-owned auto endorsement to the General 
Liability policy described above is acceptable.  

d. Umbrella Liability Insurance – An umbrella (over primary) or excess policy may be 
used to comply with limits or other primary coverage requirements. When used, 
the umbrella policy shall apply to bodily injury/property damage, personal 
injury/advertising injury and shall include a “dropdown” provision providing primary 
coverage for any liability not covered by the primary policy. The coverage shall 
also apply to automobile liability. 

 

e. Professional Liability – Professional Liability Insurance with limits of not less than 
one million ($1,000,000) per claim or occurrence and two million ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limits  

or 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance with limits of not less than one million 
($1,000,000) and two million ($2,000,000) aggregate limits  

or 
Directors and Officers Insurance coverage with limits of not less than one million 
($1,000,000) shall be required for Contracts with charter labor committees or other 
not-for-profit organizations advising or acting on behalf of the County.  

If insurance coverage is provided on a “claims made” policy, the “retroactive date” 
shall be shown and must be before the date of the start of the contract work. The 
claims made insurance shall be maintained or “tail” coverage provided for a 
minimum of five (5) years after contract completion. 

f. Cyber Liability Insurance - Cyber Liability Insurance with limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 for each occurrence or event with an annual aggregate of $2,000,000 
covering privacy violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic 
information, intentional and/or unintentional release of private information, 
alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security.  The policy shall 
protect the involved Commission entities and cover breach response cost as well 
as regulatory fines and penalties. 

g. Abuse/Molestation Insurance – Contractor shall have abuse or molestation 
insurance providing coverage for all employees for the actual or threatened abuse 
or molestation by anyone of any person in the care, custody, or control of any 
insured, including negligent employment, investigation and supervision.  The 
policy shall provide coverage for both defense and indemnity with liability limits of 
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) with a two million dollars 
($2,000,000) aggregate limit. 
 

55



 15 

 

T. Licenses and Permits 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, administrative orders, rules or 
regulations relating to its duties, obligations and performance under the terms of the Contract shall 
ensure that it has all necessary licenses, permits and/or certifications required by the laws of Federal, 
State, County, and municipal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and agrees to pay all fees and 
other charges required thereby. The Contractor shall maintain these licenses, permits and/or 
certifications in effect for the duration of this Contract  Contractor will notify the Commission immediately 
of loss or suspension of any such licenses and permits.  Failure to comply with the provisions of this 
section may result in immediate termination of this Contract. 

U. Health and Safety 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal to safety and health ordinances and 
statutes, including fire clearances, for each site where program services are provided under the terms 
of the Contract. 

V. Contract Compliance/Equal Employment Opportunity  

Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of all applicable Federal, State, and County Laws, 
regulations and policies relating to equal employment or social services to Participant(s), including laws 
and regulations hereafter enacted.  Contractor shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee, 
applicant for employment, or service Participant(s) on the basis of race, national origin or ancestry, 
religion, sex, marital status, age, political affiliation, sexual orientation, or disability.  Information on the 
above rules and regulations may be obtained from the Commission. 

W. Attorney’s Fees and Costs 

Contractor understands and agrees that any and all legal fees or costs associated with lawsuits 
concerning this Contract against the Commission shall be the Contractor’s sole expense and shall not 
be charged as a cost under this Contract.  In the event of any Contract dispute hereunder, each party to 
this Contract shall bear its own attorney’s fees and costs regardless of who prevails in the outcome of 
the dispute. 

X. 2-1-1 Registration 

Contractor shall register with 2-1-1 San Bernardino County Inland Empire United Way within thirty 
(30) days of Contract’s effective date and follow necessary procedures to be included in the 2-1-1 
database.  The Contractor shall notify the 2-1-1 San Bernardino County Inland Empire United Way 
of any changes in program services, location or contact information within ten (10) days of any 
change.  Services performed as a result of being included in the 2-1-1 database, are separate and 
apart from the services being performed under this Contract and payment for such services will not 
be the responsibility of the Commission. 

Y. Ownership Rights 

The Commission shall have a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to publish, disclose, 
copy, translate, and otherwise use, copyright or patent, now and hereafter, all reports, studies, 
information, data, statistics, forms, designs, plans, procedures, systems, and any other materials or 
properties developed under this Contract including those covered by copyright, and reserves the right to 
authorize others to use or reproduce such material. All such materials developed under the terms of this 
Contract shall acknowledge the Commission as the funding agency and Contractor as the creator of the 
publication. 

Z. Attribution  

 Contractor shall properly acknowledge the Commission per the requirements stated in the First 5 San 
Bernardino Media Guidelines http://first5sanbernardino.org/Portals/39/pdf/media_guidelines.pdf .  

AA. Incongruous Activities 

 Contractor agrees it will not perform or permit any political promotion or religious proselytizing 
activities in connection with the performance of this Contract. Contractor will ensure no staff will 

56

http://first5sanbernardino.org/Portals/39/pdf/media_guidelines.pdf


 16 

conduct activity intended to influence legislation, administrative rule making or the election of 
candidates for public office during the time compensated under this Contract or under representation 
such activity is being performed under this Contract.  

BB. Reports 

 Contractor, in a timely and accurate manner, shall submit reports on designated key aspects of the 
project as required by the Commission. Instructions, format and required information for the content 
will be provided by the Commission and available on the website: www.first5sanbernardino.org.  
FAILURE TO SUBMIT REPORTS IN A TIMELY AND ACCURATE MANNER SHALL BE A MATERIAL 
BREACH OF THIS CONTRACT. 

 Report requirements include, but are not limited to, the following and may be subject to change. 

 Program Reports 

 Contractor will submit Program Reports which include monthly and year-to-date progress on 
actual achievement of program targets compared to projected achievements as detailed in 
Program Work Plan (Attachment A) and other data collection information as requested by the 
Commission. Program Reports will include data on participants served as well as narrative 
information on lessons learned, course corrections and client success stories for the quarter. 
Contractor is required by the Commission to complete and submit Program Reports electronically 
via the Commission’s web based data system.  For each calendar month, Contractor shall provide 
the Commission with a Monthly Program Report within fifteen (15) calendar days from the end of 
the reporting period.   

 Contractor agrees that failure to submit reports as specified will be sufficient cause for the 
Commission to withhold any payment due until reporting requirements have been fulfilled. 

 
      

                 Initial Here 
 

 Fiscal Reports 

 For each calendar month, Contractor shall provide the Commission with a Monthly Fiscal Request 
for Reimbursement/Invoice within fifteen (15) calendar days from the end of the reporting period.   

 Contractor shall submit any and all Final/Revised Fiscal Reports by July 31 for the previous fiscal 
year period or part thereof during the Contract term.  All reports submitted by July 31 will be 
considered final and no additional reports will be accepted after this date. 

  Contractor will fulfill evaluation and other reporting requirements as mandated by the Commission 
and the California Children and Families Commission.       

                      
                    Initial Here 

 Asset Report 

Contractor shall report all assets worth $500 or more purchased with First 5 funds utilizing tools 
provided by the Commission for that purpose.  The Straight Line method of depreciation will be 
applied to determine value.  Closing Asset reports shall be submitted to the Commission staff no 
less than thirty (30) days prior to the normal conclusion of a Contract.  If the Contract is terminated 
early under any fiscal provision or due to correction of performance deficiencies, Contractor shall 
submit the Closing Asset report within ten (10) business days of receiving notice of Contract 
termination. 
 

Contractor agrees that failure to submit reports as specified will be sufficient cause for the 
Commission to withhold any payment due until reporting requirements have been fulfilled. 
             
                   
                                   Initial Here 

CC. Pro-Children Act of 1994 

 Contractor will comply with the Environmental Tobacco Smoke Act, also known as the Pro-Children Act 
of 1994 (20 U.S.C. 6081 et seq.). 

57

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2011-title20/html/USCODE-2011-title20-chap68-subchapX.htm


 17 

DD. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters  

 As required by Executive Order 12549 [51 Fed. Reg. 6370 (Feb. 18, 1986)] and Debarment and 
Suspension, And Other Responsibility Matters (45 C.F.R., section 76): 

a. The Contractor certifies that neither it, its principals, nor any potential subcontractors:  

1)  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions (as defined at 45 C.F.R. section 76.200) by 
any federal department or agency; 

2)  Have not within a three (3)-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had 
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction, violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction 
of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

3)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (a) (2) of this certification; and  

4)  Have not within a three (3)-year period preceding this application had one or more public 
transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default; and  

b. Where the Contractor is unable to certify as true any of the statements in this certification, 
he or she shall provide a written explanation to the Commission prior to the execution of this 
Contract.  A failure to comply with this section may constitute grounds for termination of this 
Contract. 

EE. Environmental Requirements 

The Commission has adopted a recycled product purchasing standards policy (San Bernardino 
County Policy 11-08), which requires Contractors to use recycled paper for proposals and for any 
printed or photocopied material created as a result of a Contract with the Commission.  The policy 
also requires Contractors to use both sides of the paper sheets for reports submitted to the 
Commission whenever practicable. 

 
IV.     COMMISSION RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Commission shall verify performance results of Contractor according to the Program Work Plan and 
other data collection information requested by the Commission in meeting terms of this Contract and the 
quality and effectiveness of services provided, based on criteria agreed upon, as delineated in this 
Contract. 

B. Commission shall compensate Contractor for approved expenses in accordance with Section V of this 
Contract. 

C. Commission shall specify all reports and deliverables required from the Contractor. 

D. Commission shall provide technical assistance as deemed necessary. 

E. The Commission will designate one individual to serve as the primary contact for the Contract and will 
notify the Contractor of this designee within fifteen (15) days of the Contract approval date. 

 
V.      FISCAL PROVISIONS 

A. Contract Amount 

The maximum amount of reimbursement under this Contract shall not exceed $43,780 for the duration 
of the Contract term subject to the availability of California Children and Families Trust Fund monies.  
The consideration to be paid to Contractor, as provided herein, shall be in full payment for all  
 

58

https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/codification/executive-order/12549.html
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-sec76-200
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-sec76-200


 18 

Contractor’s services and expenses incurred in the performance hereof.  These funds are divided as 
follows:  

  
Fiscal Year 2019-20    $ 43,780    November 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020   
 

          
                     Initial Here 

   

B. Payment Provisions 

The Commission will disburse funds on a reimbursement payment process based on the Contract 
budget amount for the applicable fiscal year and monthly report submissions.  

If requested in writing, a one-time advance of funds in an amount not to exceed 15% of the annual 
contract amount may be issued the first month of the contract only. All subsequent monthly 
reimbursements will be determined by actual expenditures reflected on the monthly reports, projected 
costs and cash on hand collectively.  

If an advance is requested and approved, 10% of the total advanced amount will be withheld from 
the monthly reimbursements to recover the advanced funds over a ten (10) month period. 

The Commission reserves the right to reduce or withhold any payments from the Contractor for failure 
to submit reports in a timely and accurate manner or when the Contractor is not in compliance with 
the Contract.  Final payment under this Contract may be withheld until all requirements, including 
reports, for contract closure have been fulfilled by Contractor. 

C. EFT Payments 
Contractor shall accept all payments from the Commission via electronic funds transfers (EFT) 
directly deposited into the Contractor’s designated checking or other bank account.  Contractor shall 
promptly comply with directions and accurately complete forms provided by the Commission required 
to process EFT payments. 

D. Allowable Costs 

 Funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be expended by Contractor in accordance with the 
Attachment B – Program Budget.  

 Such specified expenditures will be further limited to those that are considered both reasonable and 
necessary as determined by the Commission. Contractor agrees Commission may recover any 
payments for services or goods, including rental of facilities, which were not reasonable and necessary 
or which exceeded the fair market value. The recovery shall be limited to payments over and above 
reasonable or fair market amounts and any costs of recovery. 

 The reasonable and allowable reimbursement rate for use of motor vehicles, travel expenses and food 
is based on the current IRS allowable rate.  

 Costs must be incurred only during the Contract term, except when specifically approved by the 
Commission.  Contractor shall not use current year funds to pay prior or future year obligations. 
Contractor will not be reimbursed for expenditures incurred after the expiration or termination of this 
Contract.   

 Contractor shall obtain Commission approval for all overnight travel and out of State travel as it relates 
to services provided in this Contract.  Reimbursement as it relates to pre-approved travel will be based 
on the Federal allowable rate. Request must be submitted in writing thirty (30) days in advance of travel 
date and travel must be approved in advance by the Program Manager.   

 
Contractor shall adhere to the County’s Travel Management Policy (8-02) when travel is pursuant to this 
contract and for which reimbursement is sought from the Commission.  In addition, Contractor shall, to 
the fullest extent practicable, utilize local transportation services, including but not limited to Ontario 
Airport, for all such travel.  

 
   
                      

    Initial Here 

59



 19 

E. Supplanting of Funds 

In accordance with the Commission’s Supplantation Policy, Contractor shall not supplant any Federal, 
State or County funds intended for the purposes of this Contract with any funds made available under 
this Contract.  Contractor shall not claim reimbursement from Commission for, or apply sums received 
from Commission with respect to that portion of its obligations, which have been paid by another source 
of revenue.  Contractor agrees that it will not use funds received pursuant to this Contract, either directly 
or indirectly, as a contribution or compensation for purposes of obtaining from finds another revenue 
source without prior written approval of the Commission.  

F. Payment of Taxes 

Commission is not liable for the payments of any taxes, other than applicable sales or use tax, 
resulting from this Contract however designated, levied or imposed, unless Commission would 
otherwise be liable for the payment of such taxes in the course of its normal business operations. 

G. Budget Line Item Changes 

A Budget Revision Request may be submitted by the Contractor to the Commission to modify a line or 
lines of the approved budget.  The request must indicate the proposed line item changes, the budget as 
amended applying the requested changes and a written justification for each requested change.  The 
request cannot result in any alteration or degradation to the program services and performance target 
as specified in this Contract.   

The Executive Director, on behalf of the Commission, has the authority to approve (or deny) the request, 
provided that the modification does not deviate from the original intent of the contract or increase the 
total Contract amount.  Contractor is limited to two (2) Budget Revision Requests per fiscal year.  

The Contractor must submit any Budget Revision Requests to the Commission no later than February 
28th of the fiscal year.  Budget Revision Requests may be submitted in hard copy form with original 
signatures or electronically in a PDF format.  Postmarked envelopes received after February 28th will 
not be accepted in lieu of receipt. 

H. Budget Line Item Variance 

Variances to the individual line items of Section A: Salaries and Benefits may be allowed if deemed 
reasonable and does not increase the total budgeted amount of Section A: Salaries and Benefits.  

Annual variances of up to 10% of individual line items within Section  B: Services and Supplies are 
allowable provided that the variance shall not result in a change to the total Contract amount or an 
increase to the administrative cost allocation of the approved budget. Annual variances in excess of 10% 
of line item cannot be made by the Contractor without prior approval of a Budget Revision Request by 
the Commission in accordance with Section V, Paragraph G of this contract. 

I. Procurement 

 Contractor shall procure services or goods required under this Contract on a competitive basis, unless 
otherwise provided by law, and make selections based on obtaining the best value possible. When a 
non-competitive procurement is used, a written justification must be maintained and be made 
available upon request. 

J. Fixed Assets 

 The purchase of any equipment, materials, supplies or property of any kind, including items such as 
publications and copyrights, which have a single unit cost of $5000 or more, including tax, and was 
not included in Contractor's approved budget, shall require the prior written approval of the Executive 
Director of the Commission. Any such purchase shall directly relate to Contractor's services or 
activities under the terms of the Contract.  

 Any item with a single unit cost of $500 or more, including tax, purchased with funds received under 
the terms of this Contract must undergo a 3-bid process. Items not fully consumed during the Contract 
term shall revert to be the property of the Commission, unless otherwise specified by the Commission. 
The disposition of such equipment or property must be approved by the Executive Director of the 
Commission upon Contract termination.  If the reversion of any asset is demanded and not made to 

60



 20 

First 5 San Bernardino, the Commission reserves the right to reduce or withhold the value of the asset 
from any payments due to the Contractor for non-compliance. 

Contractor shall maintain insurance against the loss, theft, or damage to any item with a single unit 
cost of $500 or more, including tax, purchased with Commission funds for the full replacement value 
thereof in accordance with the provisions of Section III, subdivision S (Indemnification and Insurance 
Requirements). 

K. Payor of Last Resort 

 Contractor shall attain funding through other sources than the Commission to provide services or support 
to participants whenever possible. 

 In cases where a participant is qualified for benefits from another source (such as MediCal, Healthy 
Families, federal or state funded programs, personal insurance, etc.), costs relating to services provided 
to that participant should be paid for by the primary payor first. Only the costs not covered will be 
allowable under this Contract. Written verification shall be provided upon request.  

L. Fiscal Record Keeping 

 Fiscal records shall be kept in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
and must account for all funds, tangible assets, revenue and expenditures.       

                      

Initial Here 
 

VI. RIGHT TO MONITOR AND AUDIT 

A. Right to Monitor and Audit 

The Commission or any subdivision or appointee thereof, and the State of California or any subdivision 
or appointee thereof, including the Auditor General, shall have absolute right to monitor and audit all 
records, books, papers, documents, corporate minutes, and other pertinent items as requested, and 
shall have absolute right to monitor the performance of Contractor in the delivery of services provided 
under this Contract.  Contractor shall give full cooperation during any auditing or monitoring conducted. 

Contractor shall cooperate with Commission in the implementation and evaluation of this Contract and 
comply with any and all reporting requirements established by Commission. 

B. Availability of Records 

All records pertaining to service delivery and all fiscal, statistical and management books and records 
shall be available for examination and audit by the Commission, and State representatives for a period 
of five (5) years after final payment under the Contract or until all pending Commission and State audits 
are completed, whichever is later.  Records, should include, but are not limited to participant files, 
monthly summary sheets, sign-in sheets, and other primary source documents. Contractor will have 
available for Commission review, all relevant financial records for the fiscal year being audited 
including documentation to verify shared costs or costs allocated to various funding sources as well 
as the basis for which the shared cost was allocated.  

Program data shall be retained locally in San Bernardino County and made available upon request or 
turned over to Commission. If said records are not made available at the scheduled monitoring visit, 
Contractor may, at Commission's option, be required to reimburse Commission for expenses incurred 
due to required rescheduling of monitoring visit(s).  Such reimbursement will not exceed $50 per hour 
(including travel time) and be deducted from the invoiced monthly payment.  

C. Assistance by Contractor 

Contractor shall provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of 
Commission's representatives in the performance of their duties. All inspections and evaluations shall 
be performed in such a manner as will not unduly delay the work of the Contractor. 

 

 

 

61



 21 

D. Independent Audit Provisions 
 

On an annual basis, Contractor is required to hire an independent licensed Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA), who shall prepare and file with the Commission, an Independent Auditor’s Report for the term of 
the Contract.   
                       

                                                                               Initial Here 

E. Recovery of Investigation and Audit Costs  

Contractor shall reimburse the Commission for all direct and indirect expenditures incurred in 
conducting an audit/investigation when Contractor is found in violation of the terms of the Contract. 
Reimbursement for such costs will be withheld from any amounts due to Contractor. 

When additional information (receipts, paperwork, etc.) is requested of the Contractor as a result of 
any audit or monitoring, Contractor must provide all information requested by the deadline specified 
by the Commission.  A failure to provide the information by the specified deadline, will subject the 
Contractor to the provisions of Section VII (Correction of Performance Deficiencies and Termination). 

 

VII.    CORRECTION OF PERFORMANCE DEFICIENCIES AND TERMINATION 

A. Failure by Contractor to comply with any of the provisions, covenants, requirements, or conditions of this 
Contract shall be a material breach of this Contract.  In such event the Commission, in addition to any 
other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this Contract, may: 

 Afford Contractor a time period within which to cure the breach, which period shall be established at 
the sole discretion of the Executive Director; and/or 

 Request Contractor provide and implement an action plan to correct breach within a reasonable 
timeframe; and/or 

 Discontinue reimbursement to the Contractor for and during the period in which the Contractor is in 
breach, which reimbursement shall not be entitled to later recovery; and/or; 

 Withhold funds pending duration of the breach; and/or 

 Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by the Commission those monies 
disallowed pursuant to bullet 3 of this paragraph; and/or 

 Immediately terminate this Contract with just cause and be relieved of the payment of any 
consideration to the Contractor should the Contractor fail to perform the covenants herein contained 
at the time and in the manner herein provided.  In the event of such termination, the Commission 
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the Commission.  The cost to the 
Commission shall be deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under this Contract and the 
balance, if any, shall be paid by the Contractor upon demand.  

B. The Executive Director of the Commission, shall give Contractor notice of any action pursuant to this 
section, which notice shall be effective when given. 

C. The Executive Director of the Commission is authorized to exercise Commission’s rights with respect to 
initiating any remedies or termination of this Contract in his/her sole discretion and to give notice as set 
forth below in this Contract. 

 

VIII. TERM  

A. This Contract is effective commencing November 1, 2019 and expires June 30, 2020, but may be 
terminated earlier in accordance with provisions of paragraph below or Section VII of this Contract. 
  

      
Initial Here 

B. Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, this Contract may be terminated by either party by serving a 
written notice thirty (30) days in advance of termination. The Executive Director of the Commission has 
the authority and discretion to exercise this right on behalf of the Commission.  

 

62



 22 

C. The contract term may be extended for two (2) additional one (1)-year periods by mutual agreement of 
the parties. 

 

D. Continuation of this Contract for each fiscal year after June 30, 2020 is contingent on a Program Work 
Plan and a Program Budget being submitted by Contractor and approved by the Commission.  
Continuation of this Contract is also contingent on the priorities, direction, and vision for investments of 
the Commission.   

 
IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Notices 

 When notices are required to be given pursuant to this Contract, the notices shall be in writing and mailed 
to the following respective addresses listed below.  

  
 Contractor:  Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition  

    PO Box 642     
    Riverside, CA 92502  
 
 

 Commission:  First 5 San Bernardino  
 735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 150 
 San Bernardino, CA  92408 
 

B. Commission shall have Power of Attorney to pay delinquent debts and unpaid wages from accounts 
payable to Contractor in the event debts and wages have not been paid on a current basis. 

C. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed as creating a joint venture, partnership or 
employment arrangement between the parties hereto, nor shall either party have the right, power or 
authority to create an obligation or duty, expressed or implied, on behalf of the party hereto. 

D. Contractor agrees any alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of the provisions of the Contract, 
shall be valid only when reduced to writing, executed and attached to the original Contract and approved 
by the person(s) authorized to do so on behalf of Contractor and Commission. 

E. Any alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of provisions of the Contract, unless specifically 
allowed in the Contract, shall be valid only when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed and 
approved by the authorized representatives of both parties as an amendment to this Contract.  No oral 
understanding or contract not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto.   No 
course of dealing and no delay or failure of a party in exercising any right under any contract shall affect 
any other or future exercise of that right or any exercise of any other right.  A party shall not be precluded 
from exercising a right by its having partially exercised that right or its having previously abandoned or 
discontinued steps to enforce that right.       
                      

               Initial Here 

F. If any provision of the Contract is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or contrary 
to law, it shall be modified where practicable to the extent necessary so as to be enforceable, giving 
effect to the intention of the parties, and the remaining provisions of the Contract shall not be affected. 

G. The parties acknowledge and agree that this Contract was entered into and intended to be performed in 
San Bernardino County, California.  The parties agree that the venue of any action or claim brought by 
any party to this Contract will be the Superior Court of California, County of San Bernardino, San 
Bernardino District.  Each party hereby waives any law or rule of the court, which would allow them to 
request or demand a change of venue.  If any action or claim concerning this Contract is brought by any 
third party and filed in another venue, the parties hereto agree to use their best efforts to obtain a change 
of venue to the Superior Court of California, County of San Bernardino, San Bernardino District. 

H. Contractor understands and agrees that any and all legal fees or costs associated with lawsuits against 
Commission concerning this Contract shall be Contractor's sole expense and shall not be charged as a 

63



 23 

cost under this Contract. In the event of any contract dispute hereunder, each party to this Contract shall 
bear its own attorneys' fees and costs regardless of who prevails in the outcome of the dispute. 

 
X.    NONDISCRIMINATION  

A. General 

Contractor agrees to serve all clients without regard to race, color, gender, gender identity, religion, 
marital status, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or mental or physical handicap or disability 
pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C., Section 2000d), Executive Order 
No. 11246, September 24, 1965, as amended, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975. 

Contractor shall not engage in any unlawful discriminatory practices in providing services, 
employment of personnel, or in any other respect on the basis of race, color, gender, gender identity, 
religion, marital status, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or mental or physical handicap or 
disability. 

B. Americans with Disabilities Act/Individuals with Disabilities 

Contractor agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et 
seq.) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, guidelines and interpretations issued pursuant thereto.  Contractor shall 
report to the applicable Commission Staff if its offices/facilities have accommodations for people with 
physical disabilities, including offices, exam rooms, and equipment. 

C. Employment and Civil Rights 

Contractor agrees to and shall comply with the County’s Equal Employment Opportunity Program 
and Civil Rights Compliance requirements: 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity Program 

Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Program of the County of San Bernardino and rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto: 
Executive Orders 11246, 11375, 11625, 12138, 12432, 12250, and 13672; Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (and Division 21 of the California Department of Social Services Manual 
of Policies and Procedures and California Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 10000); the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act; and other applicable Federal, State, and County 
laws, regulations and policies relating to equal employment or social services to welfare 
recipients, including laws and regulations hereafter enacted.   

2. Civil Rights Compliance 

Contractor shall develop and maintain internal policies and procedures to assure compliance 
with each factor outlined by State regulation.  Consistent with the requirements of applicable 
Federal or State law, the Contractor shall not engage in any unlawful discriminatory practices 
in the admission of beneficiaries, assignments of accommodations, treatment, evaluation, 
employment of personnel or in any other respect on the basis of race, color, gender, religion, 
marital status, national origin, age, sexual preference or mental or physical disabilities.  The 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
as amended, pertaining to the prohibition of discrimination against qualified individuals with 
disabilities in all federally assisted programs or activities, as detailed in regulations signed by 
the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, effective June 
2, 1977, and found in the Federal Register, Volume 42, No. 86, dated May 4, 1977.  The 
Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this Contract in 
all subcontracts to perform work under this Contract.   

D. Sexual Harassment 

Contractor agrees that clients have the right to be free from sexual harassment and sexual contact 
by all staff members and other professional affiliates. 

64



 24 

 

XI.     IMPROPER CONSIDERATION 

Contractor shall not offer (either directly or through an intermediary) any improper consideration such as, but 
not limited to, cash, discounts, service, the provision of travel or entertainment, or any items of value to any 
officer, employee or agent of the Commission in an attempt to secure favorable treatment regarding this 
Contract. 

The Commission, by written notice, may immediately reject any proposal or terminate any Contract if it 
determines that any improper consideration as described in the preceding paragraph was offered to any 
officer, employee or agent of the Commission with respect to this Contract.  This prohibition shall apply to 
any amendment, extension or evaluation process once a Contract has been awarded. 

Contractor shall immediately report any attempt by a Commission officer, employee or agent to solicit (either 
directly or through an intermediary) improper consideration from Contractor.  The report shall be made to 
the supervisor or manager charged with supervision of the employee or to the Commission.  In the event of 
a termination under this provision, the Commission is entitled to pursue any available legal remedies. 

 
XII.     DISCLOSURE OF CRIMINAL AND CIVIL PROCEEDINGS 

The Commission reserves the right to request the information described herein from the Contractor.  
Failure to provide the information may result in termination of the Contract.  The Commission also 
reserves the right to obtain the requested information by way of a background check performed by an 
investigative firm.  The Contractor also may be requested to provide information to clarify initial 
responses.  Negative information provided or discovered may result in termination of the Contract. 

The Contractor may be asked to disclose whether the firm or any of its partners, principals, members, 
associates or key employees (as that term is defined herein), within the last ten years, has been indicted 
on or had charges brought against it or them (if still pending) or convicted of any crime or offense arising 
directly or indirectly from the conduct of the firms business, or whether the firm, or any of its partners, 
principals, members, associates or key employees, has within the last ten years, been indicted on or had 
charges brought against it or them (if still pending) or convicted of any crime or offense involving financial 
misconduct or fraud.  If the response is affirmative, the Contractor will be asked to describe any such 
indictments or charges (and the status thereof), convictions and the surrounding circumstances in detail. 

In addition, the Contractor may be asked to disclose whether the firm, or any of its partners, principals, 
members, associates or key employees, within the last ten years, has been the subject of legal 
proceedings as defined herein arising directly from the provision of services by the firm or those 
individuals.  “Legal proceedings” means any civil actions filed in a court of competent jurisdiction, or any 
matters filed by an administrative or regulatory body with jurisdiction over the firm or the individuals.  If 
the response is affirmative, the Contractor will be asked to describe any such legal proceedings (and the 
status and disposition thereof) and the surrounding circumstances in detail. 

For the purposes of this provision “key employees” includes any individuals providing direct service to 
the Commission.  “Key employees” do not include clerical personnel providing service at the Contractor’s 
offices or locations. 

 

 
continued on next page 

65



 25 

XI. CONCLUSION 

A. This Contract, consisting of 25 pages and Attachments A and B inclusive, is the full and complete 
document describing services to be rendered by Contractor to Commission, including all covenants, 
conditions, and benefits.  Attachments A and B are attached hereto and incorporated herein as though 
set forth in full. 

B. The signatures of the parties affixed to this Contract affirm that they are duly authorized to commit and 
bind their respective institutions to the terms and conditions set forth in this document. 

 

 

   
CHILDREN & FAMILIES COMMISSION FOR  
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY    Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition 

  Legal Entity  

 
  

 
 

 

 
 Authorized Signature   Authorized Signature 

 
Maxwell Ohikhuare, M.D. 

  
Tameka Simpson, MPH  

 Printed Name   Printed Name 

 
 

Commission Chair  
 

Board Chair 
 Title 

 

 Title 

 
  

 
 

 Dated 

 

 Dated 

 
Official Stamp 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reviewed for Processing   Approved as to Legal Form    Presented to Commission for 
Signature 

       
Cindy Faulkner   Sophie Akins   Karen E. Scott 

Assistant Director   Commission Counsel   Executive Director 

       

Date   Date   Date 

 
 
                 

66



 
SPA 2: Systems and Networks ATTACHMENT A 
Goal 2.1: Leadership as a Convener and Partner   PROGRAM WORKPLAN 
Objective 2.1.b: Families, providers and stakeholders collaborate effectively to improve the well-being of the child 
 
   
 

  
 

 
Program Description: 
The Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition (IEBfC) and its sub-committee IEBfC Hospital Network Collaborative will work to expand current evidence-based education interventions addressing the problem of low 
rates of breastfeeding in the Inland Empire through a more robust partnership of community members and healthcare professionals countywide.  
 

  
 
 

Agency Name: Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition Contract #: SI032 

Program Name: IEBfC Fiscal Year: 2019-2020 

Service Area: Countywide 

Expectation(s): (1) Develop Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition (IEBfC) infrastructure to sustain, enhance and strengthen education opportunities for breastfeeding healthcare 
professionals. (2) Develop and strengthen infrastructure of the IEBfC Hospital Network Collaborative (HNC) hospitals seeking to designate or re-designate as Baby-
Friendly Hospital. (3) Develop and distribute State of the County Breastfeeding Briefs 
 

Outcome(s):   Marketing Campaign, Breastfeeding Briefs and Breastfeeding Educational Seminars 

 
Objective 

 
Activity 

 
Dosage 

 
Verification 

Support ongoing learning and professional development of lactation 
consultants and related professionals. 

Planning and follow up Quarterly Quarterly report (Persimmony) detailing type of workshop(s) held 
and/or continuing educational programs covered Completed 
marketing campaign 

Two half day clinical seminar Bi-Annualy Proof of seminar attendance (Narrative) 

Supplemental needs assessment report (Narrative) 

Develop IEBfC Hospital Network Collaborative (HNC) Platform Implement Baby-Friendly 
Strategy 

Ongoing Quarterly report (Persimony-December, March, June) demonstrating 
progress to satisfaction of commission 

 

Develop State of the County Breastfeeding Briefs Create Breastfeeding Brief Bi-Annualy Completed State of the County Breastfeeding brief 

Supplemental survey report (Narrative) 

Agency Rep Name: _____________________________________ Data Type: Narrative 

Agency Signature: _____________________________________ Reporting Period: Bi-Annually and  Quarterly Due: On the 15th of the following month 

Date Signed: _____________________________________ Period: November 2019 – June 2020 

67



ATTACHMENT B

1 of 4

FIRST 5 SAN BERNARDINO
PROGRAM BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR:

ORGANIZATION: GRANT MANAGER: PROGRAM YEAR: 2019-2020

PROGRAM TITLE: GRANT PROJECT CO TOTAL BUDGET: 43,780

INITIATIVE: FINANCE OFFICER: RFP/CONTRACT #: SI032

LI
N

E

BUDGET CATEGORY FTE PAY RATE
# OF 

HOURS
BENEFIT 

RATE
F5SB 

SALARY
F5SB 

BENEFITS F5SB BUDGET TOTAL SALARY
First 5 % of 

TOTAL SALARY

I. SALARIES & BENEFITS A B C D E F G H I
Name: Position:

1 Grant Manager 0.13 35.00 260 9,100          -                  9,100               72,800               13%

2 Grant Project Coordinator 0.25 30.00 520 15,600        -                  15,600             62,400               25%

24,700$      -$               24,700$           135,200$          

Laurie Haessly, MA, RDN, IBCLC

2019-2020

 Grant Manager to manage, plan and oversee the 
grant deliverables. 
(5 hours per week)

Total Salaries & Benefits

Inland Empire BF  Coalition

Promoting Breastfeeding through Professional 
Mentorship

Child Health, Leadership and Capacity Building

DESCRIPTION/ JUSTIFICATION

J

Mandy Lindberg, IBCLC

Laurie Haessly, MA, RDN, IBCLC

Grant Project Coordinator to participate in and the 
planning and oversee the coordination and 
documentation of work plan and deliverables 
associated with the grant. (15 hours per week)

68



ATTACHMENT B

2 of 4

FIRST 5 SAN BERNARDINO
PROGRAM BUDGET

ORGANIZATION: GRANT MANAGER: Laurie Haessly, MA, RDN, IBCLC PROGRAM YEAR:

PROGRAM TITLE: GRANT PROJECT COORDINAT TOTAL BUDGET:

INITIATIVE: FINANCE OFFICER: RFP/CONTRACT #:

II.
TOTAL F5SB 
BUDGET ($)

1 200$                         

2 480$                         

3 7,000$                      

Laurie Haessly, MA, RDN, IBCLC

Mandy Lindberg, IBCLC

Child Health, Leadership and Capacity Building

Inland Empire BF  Coalition

Promoting Breastfeeding through Professional Mentorship


FISCAL YEAR: 2019-2020

SERVICES & SUPPLIES

Expense: % of Allocation: Description/Justification:

Supplies such as folders for events, 
pens, membership cards, etc. 

1%

16%

Contract Consultant to assist in the 
development of the education 
programs described in Goal 2. Ms. 
Melcher is familiar with the Baby-
Friendly Hospital Initiative and Process 
and has previously worked with all the 
hospitals in SB County.

Agency that processes employee 
payroll and W-2s. 

General Supplies 

Rapid Data 

Carol Melcher, MPH, RN

0%

69



ATTACHMENT B

3 of 4

4 4,000$                      

5 2,000$                      

6 2,000$                      

7 500$                         

Consulting Fees and Travel. Consultants 
will provide an In-service/training for 
IEBfC Hospitals on California data 
collection methods to ensure 
consistency in collecting and 
interpreting data with updates on 
recent California and county data. 
Included in the in-service/training will 
be the information included in their 
most recent reports “Using Data to 
Drive Change- A Policy Update on 
California Breastfeeding and Hospital 
Performance”, “Charting a New Course 
to Improve the Quality of Prenatal Care 
- California Hospitals Lead the Nation in 
Breastfeeding Support” and “Sustaining 
Change In Challenging Times - 
California Needs Innovative 
Breastfeeding Strategies”.

Consultant Fee and Travel. Consultant 
will provide education on the Baby 
Friendly USA goals as described in Goal 
2. 

1%

Consultant Fee to facilitate IEBfC Board 
Retreat to strengthen coalition and 
board and to firmly establish each 
board members' role in the F5SB grant 
deliverables.

Purchase a platform which can host 
webinars and teleconferences for both 
monthly General Education and 
Hospital Collaborative Meetings with 
the ability to serve more users than the 

Baby Friendly USA 5%

Learning Management System 5%

UC Davis - Jane Heinig/California WIC Association - Karen Farley/
California Breastfeeding Coalition - Robbie Gonzalez-Dow

9%

Ernelyn Navarro, RN, IBCLC

70



ATTACHMENT B

4 of 4

8

16,180$                   

III.   
BUDGET

1 1,300                        

2

3

1,300$                      

IV.   
BUDGET

1 1,600                        
1,600                        

V.   
BUDGET

1

2

3

4

5

-                            

VI.

Percent:

Basis:

-                            

TOTAL FIRST 5 BUDGET 43,780$                   

  
Breastfeeding 
Summit

Destination:

Total Food

TRAVEL

0%

Description/Justification:

Paid staff will attend regional collaboration events and annual California Breastfeeding Summit to build collaboration and 
sharing power and to share our grant successes. 

Total Travel

Description/Justification:
FOOD

Mileage/Airfare/Hotel/Meals/ 
Conference Registration 

Food for 1 Kick-Off event and 3 In-
Person Hospital Collaborative Meetings 

Purpose:

Total Services & Supplies

Collaborative Events 

Event(s):

Total Subcontractors

SUBCONTRACTORS
Description/Justification:Organization Name:

INDIRECT COSTS

Total Indirect Costs

71



First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategy: Systems and Networks 

SI032 Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition IEBfC POD FY 19-20.docx      10/28/2019 2:33 PM 
    Page 1 of 3 

                          Program Outline Document 2019-2020 

AGENCY INFORMATION 
  Contract #: SI032 
Legal Entity: Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition 
 
Dept./Division:       
 
Project Name: Promoting Breastfeeding Through Professional Mentorship  
 
Address: P.O. Box 642  Phone #: 951.288.1920 
 Riverside, CA 92502   
 

Website: Iebreastfeeding.org  Fax #: N/A 
 
Program Site  
Address: 

Community Action Partnership 
2038 Iowa Ave. Suite B-101, Riverside CA 9 

 Client Referral  
Phone # 

      

 No additional sites   
    
 
CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
SIGNING AUTHORITY/ CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVE 
Name: Tamika Simpson, MPH, IBCLC,CHES  Title: IEBfC Board Chair and Webmaster 
 

Address: Inland Behavioral Health-WIC Program  Direct Phone #: 909.708.8158 x159 
 665 North D Street 

San Bernardino, CA 92401 
   

 Fax #: N/A 
E-Mail: TSimpson@ibhealth.org   
 
CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVE 
Name:      Sharlene Mracek,RN, IBCLC  Title: IEBfC Boardmember 
 
Address: Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition  Direct Phone #: 909.583.3555 
 PO Box 642, Riverside, CA 92502    
 Fax #:       
E-Mail: sharlenern@gmail.com   
 
PROGRAM CONTACT 
Name: Pat Spier   Title: IEBfC Board Member  
 
Address: PAC/LAC Regional Perinatal Programs  Direct Phone #: 909.882.7469 
 1010 N Central Ave. Glendale, CA 91202    
 Fax #: 844.332.4295 
E-Mail: pspier@paclac.org    
 
 
 

72

mailto:pspier@paclac.org


First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategy: Systems and Networks 

SI032 Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition IEBfC POD FY 19-20.docx      10/28/2019 2:33 PM 
    Page 2 of 3 

FISCAL CONTACT 
Name: Laurie Hassley  Title: IEBfC Board Member 
 
Address: Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition   Direct Phone #: 951.288.1920 
 PO Box 642 Riverside CA 92502    
 Fax #:       
E-Mail: Laurie@iebreastfeeding.org    
    
ADDITIONAL CONTACT (Describe):  Program 
Name: Diane Mejia   Title: IEBfC Board Member  
 

Address: 15028 Spruce Street  Direct Phone #: 760.221.1022 
 Hesperia CA 92345    
 Fax #:       
E-Mail: Dianemejia08@gmail.com    
 

 

PROGRAM INFORMATION 
 
TYPE OF AGENCY 

 Educational Institution Describe: Choose an item.                                                     
 

 Government Agency Describe: Choose an item. 
 

 Private Entity/Institution Describe: Choose an item. 
 

 Community-Based Describe: Non Profit 
 
FIRST 5 FOCUS AREA STRATEGY 
 

 Health  Early Screening and Intervention  Health & Safety Education 
 Health Care Access  Other:   
 Oral Health   

 

 Education  Early Education Programs  Quality Provider Programs 
 Access to Quality Child Care  Other:   

    
 

 Family  Parent Education  Other: 
 Resource Center & Case 

Management  
       

 

 Systems  Integrated Systems Planning & 
Implementation 

 Community Outreach 

 Countywide Information 
Referral Systems 

 Other: 
      

 Organizational Capacity Building   
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION SERVICE AREA (LOCATIONS) 

Countywide 
The Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition (IEBfC) and its sub-committee 
IEBfC Hospital Network Collaborative will work to expand current evidence-

 

 

73

mailto:Laurie@iebreastfeeding.org
mailto:Dianemejia08@gmail.com


First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategy: Systems and Networks 

SI032 Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition IEBfC POD FY 19-20.docx      10/28/2019 2:33 PM 
    Page 3 of 3 

based education interventions addressing the problem of low rates of 
breastfeeding in the Inland Empire through a more robust partnership of 
community members and healthcare professionals countywide.  
 

 

 
COMMISSION LEVEL OUTCOMES 
SPA 2: Systems and Networks 
Goal 2.1 Leadership as a Catalyst, Convener and Partner 
Objective 2.1b Families, providers and stakeholders collaborate effectively to improve the well-being of the child  
Objective 2.2a Community organizations and groups are equipped to effectively serve children and families  
 
 

 

 
ASSIGNED ANALYST: Renee Jones 
 
CONTRACT AMOUNT 
 
Fiscal Year Amount 
2019-2020 $ $43,780  
Total $ $43,780  

 

 

74



 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8 
October 30, 2019 

Subject 
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 19-02. 

Recommendation 
Approve Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 
Request for Proposal (RFP) 19-02 for Fiscal Year 2020-2023 in an amount not to 
exceed $4 million per year and $12 million for the three year funding cycle. 
(Presenter: Dr. Wendy Lee, Staff Analyst II, 252-4254) 

Financial Impact $12 million for Fiscal Year 2020-2023. 

Background 
Information 

Through the Investing in Children RFP, released in 2011, First 5 San Bernardino 
(F5SB) sought to support improved parenting and family self-sufficiency outcomes for 
parents and caregivers of children 0-5.  
 
In June 2014, First 5 San Bernardino revised their 2015-2020 Strategic Plan to 
reaffirm goals, objectives and priority outcomes. The Commission approved the FCSP 
initiative for Family Support Services FCSP-FSS RFP (14-02) released in 9/2014.  
 
The FCSP model will utilize the evidence-based Nurturing Parenting Program (NPP) 
as the primary parenting education curriculum coupled with the structured Case 
Management (CM) using the Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM) Family Development 
Matrix (FDM) tool. Implementation of FCSP is achieved through following the formats: 
Group; Home-Based; and Combination of group and home-based. 
 
In 2015, the Commission approved three-year contracts to provide FCSP framework 
and support to improve parenting and family self-sufficiency outcomes for parents and 
caregivers of children 0-5 in San Bernardino County. During the initial three-year 
contract period, FCSP contracted agencies served 3,100 parents. The outcome data 
showed significant improvement in the parenting constructs overall. In structured case 
management, data indicates significant improvement in increasing Community 
Resources Knowledge, Social Interaction and Basic Household Necessities. FCSP 
data demonstrates potential impact to decrease the child abuse/neglect rate in San 
Bernardino County through increasing positive parenting practices.  
 
In 2017, FCSP was extended two additional years until 2020 for a cumulative 
investment of approximately $20 million. The justification for this extension was to 
ensure a multi-year data set was reliable to move forward with an expansion. 
 
In August 2019, the Commission selected the Inland Empire Community Collaborative 
(IECC) to assist with the expansion of the FCSP model. The IECC is comprised of 
thirty-one (31) non-profit agencies that utilizes capacity building tools and coaching to 
create strong relationships that further collective impact and sustainability by working 
collaboratively. To date the IECC has secured over $15 million in funding to respond 
to the needs and priorities of local communities. 
 
IECC seeks to achieve the following deliverables in support of the FCSP-E initiative: 

 Countywide expansion and will leverage First 5’s investment to engage other 
funders to bring the model to scale. 

 Promote countywide data bank of evidenced based child abuse risk prevention 
and early intervention best practices. 

75



 
AGENDA ITEM 8 
October 30, 2019 
PAGE 2                                                                                                                                     
 
 

 

 

Report on Action as taken 

Action:  

Moved:  Second:   

In Favor:        

Opposed:        

Abstained:        

Comments:  

  

Witnessed:  

 

 Increase a collective amount of resources and funding for expansion. 

 Build a coalition of sustainable FCSP providers in order to reduce the risk of 
child abuse in San Bernardino County. 

 
FCSP-E RFP (19-02) is an intentional system component designed to bridge, support 
and expand the FCSP model in a manner that aligns with F5SB Strategic Plan and 
systems approach. This expansion will operate in tandem with the IECC – FCSP 
Cooperative Expansion Project. IECC will serve as consultants for the project.  
 
The FCSP-E objective is to build an evidence based prevention model that can be 
replicated for access to all parents in San Bernardino County and to continue to build 
upon successful outcomes that will reduce the incidence of child abuse, improve 
parenting, family functioning and create healthy environments for the optimal 
development of children 0-5. 
 
Pending Commission approval, this RFP will be released on October 31, 2019 for 
interested organizations to join in this effort.  
 
This item supports the following F5SB Strategic Plan Priority Areas: 
 
Strategic Priority Area 1 Children and Families:  
 Goal 1.3: (a) Children are free from abuse and neglect;  
 Goal 1.3: (b) Parents provide developmentally appropriate care; and  
 Goal 1.3: (c) Families are resilient. 
 
Strategic Priority Area 2 Systems and Networks:  
 Goal 2.2: Capacity Building 

Review Sophie Akins, Commission Counsel  

76



 

Page 1 of 42 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Request for Proposals 

(RFP 19-02) 
 

Family and Community Support and 
Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

 
for 

Children and Families 

 
utilizing  

Nurturing Parenting Programs and  
Matrix Outcomes Model 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 First 5 San Bernardino 

735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 150 

San Bernardino, CA  92408 

(909) 386-7706 

www.first5sanbernardino.org 
 

77

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 1 of 41 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Attachments: ............................................................................................................................ 2 

I. PROCUREMENT TIMELINE ............................................................................................. 3 

A. Questions ...................................................................................................................................... 3 
B. Correspondence ........................................................................................................................... 3 
C. Admonition to Proposers .............................................................................................................. 4 
D. Mandatory Proposal Conference .................................................................................................. 4 
E. Proposal Submission Deadline ..................................................................................................... 4 

II. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................... 4 

A. Background ................................................................................................................................... 4 
B. Announcement .............................................................................................................................. 5 
C. Period of Contract ......................................................................................................................... 6 
D. Minimum Proposer Requirements ................................................................................................ 6 

III. PROCUREMENT CONDITIONS ....................................................................................... 6 

A. Contingencies ................................................................................................................................ 6 
B. Acceptance or Rejection of Proposals .......................................................................................... 6 
C. Best Value Evaluation Process ...................................................................................................... 7 
D. Modifications .................................................................................................................................. 7 
E. Proposal Submission ..................................................................................................................... 7 
F. Local Preference Policy ................................................................................................................ 7 
G. Incurred Costs ............................................................................................................................... 8 
H. Public Inspection ............................................................................................................................ 8 
I. Clarifications .................................................................................................................................. 8 
J. Negotiations ................................................................................................................................... 8 
K. Formal Agreement ......................................................................................................................... 8 
L. Use of Proposal Received.............................................................................................................. 8 
M. Independent Contractor Status ...................................................................................................... 8 
N. Pre-Award On-Site Visits ............................................................................................................... 9 
O. Level of Service ............................................................................................................................. 9 
P. Termination of Contract.................................................................................................................. 9 
Q. Target Population .......................................................................................................................... 9 
R. Final Authority ................................................................................................................................ 9 

IV. PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................... 9 

A. Definitions ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
B. Reference Documents ................................................................................................................ 14 
C. Program Description ................................................................................................................... 15 

V. CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................17 

A. CONTRACTOR SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES ....................................................................... 17 
B. CONTRACTOR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................... 18 
C. COMMISSION RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................................................................... 29 
D. FISCAL PROVISIONS ................................................................................................................ 29 
E. RIGHT TO MONITOR AND AUDIT ............................................................................................ 32 
F. CORRECTION OF PERFORMANCE DEFICIENCIES AND TERMINATION ............................ 33 

VI. NONDISCRIMINATION ....................................................................................................33 

A. General ....................................................................................................................................... 33 
B. Americans with Disabilities Act/Individuals with Disabilities ....................................................... 34 
C. Employment and Civil Rights ...................................................................................................... 34 
D. Sexual Harassment..................................................................................................................... 34 

VII. EMPLOYMENT OF FORMER COMMISSION ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS ...............35 

VIII. IMPROPER CONSIDERATION .......................................................................................35 

78



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 2 of 41 

IX. DISCLOSURE OF CRIMINIAL AND CIVIL PROCEEDINGS ...........................................35 

X. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT ..........................................................................36 

XI. SUBCONTRACTOR STATUS .........................................................................................36 

XII. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION ..............................................................................................37 

A. General ....................................................................................................................................... 37 
B. Proposal Presentation ................................................................................................................ 37 
C. Proposal Format .......................................................................................................................... 38 

XIII. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION ...............................................................40 

A. Evaluation Process ...................................................................................................................... 40 
B. Evaluation Criteria ........................................................................................................................ 40 
C. Contract Award ............................................................................................................................ 41 
D. Appeals ....................................................................................................................................... 41 
E.  Final Authority ............................................................................................................................. 41 

 

Attachments: 

Exhibit A – FCSP-E Program Funding Requirements and Expectations 

Exhibit B – FCSP Program Model 

Exhibit C – FCSP Expansion Model 

Attachment A – Proposal Submission Checklist  

Attachment B – Statement of Certification 

Attachment C – Proposal Narrative Application Template 

Attachment D – Contract History 

Attachment E – Reportable Conditions 

Attachment F – Exceptions and Disclosures 

Attachment G – Subcontractor Information 

Attachment H – Financial Capacity (with Audit Reports) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 3 of 41 

 

I. PROCUREMENT TIMELINE 

ACTIVITY DATE 

A. RFP Release   Thursday, October 31, 2019 

B. Mandatory Proposal Conference Tuesday, November 12, 2019 

9:00 A.M. PST – 12:00 P.M. PST 

C. Deadline for Question Submissions Friday, November  15, 2019 

No later than 12:00 P.M., PST 

D. Deadline for Proposal Submission Friday, January 31, 2020 

No later than 4:00 P.M., PST 

E. Tentative date to inform of Unsuccessful 
Proposals at the Administrative Phase (No 
Appeal) 

February 14, 2020 

F. Tentative date to inform of Award or 
Unsuccessful Proposal at the Fiscal and/or 
Program Phase (Opportunity to Appeal) 

March 27, 2020 

G. Tentative Deadline to request Appeal April 6, 2020 

H. Tentative date for Commission Approval of 
Contracts   

May 6, 2020 

I. Tentative Start Date for Contract(s) July 1, 2020 

The above dates are subject to change as deemed necessary by the First 5 San Bernardino 
Commission. 

A. Questions 

 Questions regarding the contents of this RFP must be submitted in writing on or before 
12:00 P.M. (Pacific Standard Time [PST]), Friday, November 15, 2019 and directed 
to the individual listed in Section I, Paragraph B.  All questions will be answered and 
both the question and answer will be posted on the First 5 San Bernardino Website as an 
addendum to this RFP. 

B. Correspondence 

 All correspondence, including proposals and questions, are to be submitted to: 

 First 5 San Bernardino 
 ATTN: RFP 19-02 FCSP-Expansion 
 735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 150 
 San Bernardino, CA  92408 

 Contact Person: Dr. Wendy Lee, Staff Analyst II 

 E-Mail: wendy.lee@cfc.sbcounty.gov 

80

mailto:wendy.lee@cfc.sbcounty.gov


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 4 of 41 

C. Admonition to Proposers 

 Once the RFP has been issued, the individual identified above is the sole contact point 
for any inquiries or information relating to this RFP.  Failure to adhere to this policy 
may result in disqualification of the Proposer and rejection of the proposal. 

D. Mandatory Proposal Conference 

1. A mandatory proposal conference will be held on:  

Tuesday, November 12, 2019 at 9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M. (PST).   

Please print a copy of the RFP and any other corresponding documents, as these 
documents will not be available at the proposal conference. 

  ADDRESS: First 5 San Bernardino 

    735 E. Carnegie Drive, Suite 150 

    San Bernardino, CA 92408  

Attendance at the conference is mandatory.  For compliance and formal 
documentation purposes, all attendees must provide photo ID and their name, 
agency and title. No proposal will be accepted from any Proposer who fails to attend 
the proposal conference.  No make-up sessions will be held.  To attend, please 
RSVP at: 

https://first5sanbernardino.wufoo.com/forms/mandatory-proposal-conference-for-

rfp-1902/ 

E. Proposal Submission Deadline 

All proposals must be received at the address listed in Paragraph B above no later 
than 4:00 PM (PST) on Friday, January 31, 2020.  Facsimile or electronically 
transmitted proposals will not be accepted since they do not contain original 
signatures.  Postmarks will not be accepted in lieu of actual receipt.  Late proposals 
will not be considered. 

II. INTRODUCTION 

A. Background  

The Children and Families Commission for San Bernardino County (First 5 San 
Bernardino) was created in December 1998 in order to realize the benefits 
of Proposition 10 (California Children and Families Act) for the County's youngest 
residents and their families. The act created a program for the purpose of promoting, 
supporting, and improving the early development of children from the prenatal stage to 
five years of age, under the guidance of the Children and Families Commission for 
San Bernardino, and in collaboration with the community and agencies providing 
services to children.  Since 1998, First 5 San Bernardino (F5SB) has invested more 
than $187 million dollars to ensure a better future for children age 0-5 and their 
families. 

In June 2014, First 5 San Bernardino revised their Strategic Plan to reaffirm goals, 
objectives and priority outcomes that extend to the year 2020.    

With the Investing in Children RFP, (released 11/2011) the First 5 San Bernardino 
(F5SB) Commission sought to support parenting education, family resource centers 
and case management, aimed at promoting improved parenting and family self-
sufficiency outcomes for parents and long term safety and healthy developmental 
outcomes for children 0-5 in San Bernardino County. 

81

https://first5sanbernardino.wufoo.com/forms/mandatory-proposal-conference-for-rfp-1902/
https://first5sanbernardino.wufoo.com/forms/mandatory-proposal-conference-for-rfp-1902/
http://first5sanbernardino.org/Portals/39/pdf/CaChildrenandFamilyCommission.pdf


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 5 of 41 

Analysis of data from the most recent Commission investments indicates that the 
greatest positive gains for families were attained from the parenting education 
component.  

With many years of data collected and analyzed, F5SB is able to articulate specific 
needs of children and their families from a systems building perspective.  This has 
guided not only the revision of the F5SB Strategic Plan but also development of the 
initiative to assist families and communities in being engaged, supported and 
strengthened through culturally effective resources and opportunities that assist them 
in nurturing, caring, and providing for their children’s success and well-being.   

In 2014, the Commission approved the initiative FCSP-FSS RFP (14-02) for Family 
Community Support Partnership-Family Support Services, the Commission approved 
three-year contracts to improve parenting and family self-sufficiency outcomes for 
parents and caregivers of children 0-5 in San Bernardino County. During the initial 
three-year contract period, FCSP contracted agencies served 3,100 parents. The 
outcome data showed significant improvement in the parenting constructs overall. In 
structured case management, data indicates significant improvement in increasing 
Community Resources Knowledge, Social Interaction and Basic Household 
Necessities. FCSP data demonstrates potential impact to decrease the rate of child 
abuse/neglect in San Bernardino County such as positive parenting practices. In 2017, 
FCSP was extended two additional years until 2020 for a cumulative investment of 
approximately $20 million. This extension was to ensure that we had a multi-year data 
set that was reliable to move forward with an expansion. 

The Commission has invested in a regional capacity and sustainability project known 
as Capacity Building Academy (CBA) since 2010. The CBA, facilitated by Social 
Entrepreneurs, Inc. (SEI), works with agencies to build their capacity through coaching 
to develop individual strategic plans, sustainability plans, long-range approaches to 
financing and development of best practices. One of the results of the CBA was the 
formation of the Inland Empire Community Collaborative (IECC), which is comprised of 
thirty-one (31) non-profit agencies that completed CBA. The IECC built upon the skills 
learned in CBA to create strong relationships that furthered their collective impact and 
sustainability by working collaboratively to secure over $15 million in funding to 
respond to the needs and priorities of local communities 

RFP 19-02 FCSP-E is an intentional system components designed to bridge, support 
and expand the FCSP model in a manner that aligns with F5SB Strategic Plan and 
systems approach. This expansion will operate in tandem with the Inland Empire 
Community Collaborative (IECC) – Family Community Support Partnership (FCSP) 
Cooperative Expansion Project. IECC will serve as consultants for the FCSP 
Cooperative Expansion Project. FCSP system expansion will allow F5SB to continue 
to build upon successful outcomes that can contribute to the reduction of child abuse 
and neglect, improve parenting, family functioning and create healthy environments for 
the optimal development of children. 

B. Announcement 

First 5 San Bernardino, hereafter referred to as the “Commission or F5SB,” is seeking 
proposals from qualified organizations, hereinafter referred to as “Proposers,” 
“Contractors,” or “Vendors,” to provide services for parents and families of children age 
0-5 as identified in the accompanying Exhibit A and the First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategic Plan. An amount of $4 million dollars per year, not to exceed $12 million 
dollars for the 3-year period, has been allocated for family related services for the 
period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023.  Said services will occur under a 
reimbursement contract.  The most important expectation of funding under this RFP is 

82



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 6 of 41 

positive, immediate and documentable outcomes for children age 0-5, as defined by 
First 5 San Bernardino’s established strategic priority areas (SPAs) and indicators.  
This is a competitive procurement. The number of contracts will be determined by the 
types and quality of proposals received, the evaluation of these proposals, and the 
feasibility that the service can and will “move the needle” towards positive outcomes 
for children.  

C. Period of Contract 

Contracts awarded for services to be funded through this RFP are proposed to be for 
the three (3) year period commencing July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023, subject to 
the availability of California Children and Families Trust Fund monies, however, the 
Commission reserves the right to negotiate contracts for a shorter period of time, 
based on the specific project, need for service, coordination of existing services, 
changes in demographics, etc.  The Commission may, but is not obligated to, extend 
the awarded contract(s) for one (1) or more additional years as needed.  The 
Commission reserves the right, after contract award, to amend the resulting contract 
as needed through the term of the contract to best meet the needs of all parties.    

D. Minimum Proposer Requirements 

  Proposers must: 

1. Have a minimum of 2 year-history of demonstrated capacity providing Nurturing 
Parenting Program services as proposed, serving children 0-5 and their families. 

2. Have agency representatives (such as management, program and fiscal staff) at 
the mandatory proposal conference as referenced in Section I in this Request for 
Proposal (RFP). 

3. Have no record of unsatisfactory performance.  Contractors who are or have been 
seriously deficient in current or recent contract performance shall be presumed to 
be unable to meet this requirement. 

4. Have the ability to maintain adequate files and records and meet statistical reporting 
requirements. 

5. Have the administrative and fiscal capacity to provide and manage the proposed 
services under a reimbursement contract and to ensure an adequate audit trail. 

6. Meet other presentation and participation requirements listed in this RFP. 

7. Have the capacity to effectively outreach, advocate and market program services. 

III. PROCUREMENT CONDITIONS 

A. Contingencies 

 Funding for these services is contingent on the availability of California Children and 
Families Trust Fund monies.  This RFP does not commit the Commission to award a 
contract.  Cost, while not necessarily the primary factor used in the selection process, is 
an important factor.  The Commission will award a contract(s) based on the proposal(s) 
that best meets the needs of the Commission through meeting the needs of children 
age 0–5 and their families, alignment with the First 5 San Bernardino Strategic Plan 
and ability to obtain measurable outcomes. 

B. Acceptance or Rejection of Proposals 

 The Commission reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals if the 
Commission determines it is in the best interest of the Commission to do so.  The 
Commission will notify all Proposers, in writing, if the Commission rejects all proposals.  

83



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 7 of 41 

The Commission also reserves the right to terminate this procurement process at any 
time.   

 Proposals shall remain valid and subject to acceptance anytime between the proposal 
opening and the awarding of the contract(s), up to one hundred eighty (180) days. 

C. Best Value Evaluation Process 

 Cost is an important factor in the evaluation process, but the Commission is not obligated 
to accept the lowest cost proposal.  The Commission will award a contract(s) based on 
the proposal(s) that best meets the needs of children age 0-5 and their families as 
demonstrated through reliable data sources, alignment with the First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategic Plan and ability to obtain and demonstrate measurable outcomes. At the 
Commission’s discretion, considerations such as population demographics and 
geography may also factor into a decision as to which services and/or products provide 
the best value to the Commission.  Other considerations may include: 

 Fiscal Capacity of proposing organization 

 Qualifications of key staff 

 Relevant program/service experience 

 Past performance demonstrated by reliable outcomes data 

 Strength of outreach and marketing strategies 

 Any other relevant factors listed in the RFP, as listed in Section XIII, Proposal 
Evaluation and Selection. 

D. Modifications 

 The Commission has the right to issue addenda or amendments to this RFP if the 
Commission considers that additional clarifications are needed.  Addenda or 
amendments to this RFP will be posted on the First 5 San Bernardino website at 
http://www.first5sanbernardino.org 

E. Proposal Submission 

To be considered, all proposals must be submitted in the manner set forth in this RFP.  It 
is the Proposer’s responsibility to ensure that its proposal arrives on or before the 
specified deadline.  All proposals and materials submitted become the property of First 
5 San Bernardino. 

F. Local Preference Policy 

The County and the Commission have adopted a preference for Vendors whose principal 
place of business is located within the boundaries of the County.  A five percent (5%) 
preference may be applied prior to approval of any contract, purchase or acquisition of 
services, equipment, goods, or supplies. 

For the purposes of applying the local preference policy (County Policy 11-10), “principal 
place of business” is defined as the Vendor’s main office (or headquarters) or a major 
regional office.  A “major regional office” is defined as a business location apart from the 
vendor’s main office (or headquarters) which: 

 Has been issued a business license, if required, and has been established and open 
for a minimum of six months prior to the date that the approval authority authorizes 
the circulation of any procurement, contract, agreement, or purchase order to which 
the Vendor responds; and 

84

http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 8 of 41 

 Can demonstrate on-going business activity in the field of endeavor on which the 
Vendor is proposing, from that office during the preceding six (6) months; and 

 Has a minimum of twenty-five percent (25%) of the vendor’s full-time management 
employees and twenty-five percent 25% of its full-time regular employees working 
from the San Bernardino County location(s). 

The County’s Local Preference Policy means, for example, if two (2) Vendors respond to 
this RFP and if quality, service and ability to meet the Commission’s needs are equal, 
Commission staff must determine if one of the Vendors is a local Vendor.  If one of the 
Vendors is a local vendor, and its quoted price or cost for services, equipment, goods or 
supplies does not exceed five percent (5%) of the other Vendor’s quoted price or cost, 
unless it is determined that an exemption applies, staff should recommend the local 
Vendor for the contract award. 

G. Incurred Costs 

The Commission is not obligated to pay any costs incurred by Proposers in the 
preparation of a proposal in response to this RFP.  Proposers agree that all costs 
incurred in developing this proposal are the Proposer’s responsibility. 

H. Public Inspection 

 Proposals submitted in response to this RFP become the property of First 5 San 
Bernardino and are subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act.  This 
Act is designed to give reasonable public access to information in the possession of 
public agencies. 

I. Clarifications 

 The Commission may require the Proposer(s) selected as a potential Contractor(s) to 
provide additional information or clarifications on any area contained in this RFP or which 
might be used to evaluate proposals.  This may include cost, technical, or other 
clarifications needed to make a decision. 

J. Negotiations 

 The Commission may require the potential Proposer(s) selected to participate in 
negotiations.  This may include cost, technical information, or other clarifications needed 
to make a decision. 

K. Formal Agreement 

 Proposer(s) will be required to enter into a formal agreement with the Commission.  This 
RFP sets forth some of the general provisions which will be included in the final contract.  
In submitting to this RFP, Proposer(s) will be deemed to have agreed to each clause 
unless the proposal identifies an objection and the Commission agrees to a change of 
language in writing.  All objections to any provisions of the final contract should be listed 
on Attachment F – Exceptions and Disclosures to RFP. 

L. Use of Proposal Received 

 All proposals received shall become the property of the Commission.  

M. Independent Contractor Status 

 Any Proposer that is awarded a Contract will be considered an independent 
Contractor(s), wholly responsible for the manner in which it performs, and will assume 
exclusively the responsibility for the acts of its employees who will not be entitled to any 
rights and privileges of Commission employees nor be considered in any manner to be 
Commission employees.  

85



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 9 of 41 

N. Pre-Award On-Site Visits 

 Site visits may be conducted to verify information submitted in the RFP and to determine 
if the proposed facilities are appropriate for the proposed services provided. 

O. Level of Service 

 For any Contract awarded through this RFP, no minimum or maximum number of 
referrals or enrollments can be guaranteed by the Commission.  However, Contractor is 
expected to meet contracted number of referrals and enrollments as agreed upon to meet 
satisfactory performance. 

P. Termination of Contract 

 The Contract between the Commission and selected Proposer(s) will contain specific 
language which addresses the Commission’s option for terminating the Contract with or 
without cause. 

Q. Target Population 

 It is mandated through the Children and Families Trust Fund Act (Prop 10) that funds are 
allocated to services for the purpose of promoting, supporting and improving the early 
development of children age 0-5.  As such, services proposed shall offer a direct benefit 
to this population.  Any services provided beyond this limitation, such as services to 
siblings and family members who are not parents or primary caregivers may only be 
incidental to services provided to children prenatal through age five. 

R. Final Authority 

 The final authority to award a Contract rests solely with the Commission.  

IV. PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 

A. Definitions  

Accessibility: Ease of obtaining services, measured by addressing geographical, 
travel and other barriers. 

Adult-Adolescent Parent Inventory (AAPI): An inventory designed to assess the 
parenting and child rearing attitudes of adult and adolescent parent and pre-parent 
populations. Based on the known parenting and child rearing behaviors, responses to 
the inventory provide an index of risk for practicing behaviors known to be attributable 
to child abuse and neglect.   

Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs): Describe all types of abuse, neglect, and 
other potentially traumatic experiences that occur to people under the age of 18. 
(CDC). 

Ages and Stages Questionnaire (ASQ-3):  A developmental screening tool to screen 
young children to easily identify potential delays as early as possible and determine 
which children need further assessment or ongoing monitoring.  The ASQ:Social 
Emotional (ASQ-SE) tool measures the social and emotional competence of children. 

Basic Needs:  Necessities to meet the food, shelter, and immediate safety needs of a 
parent and/or child.  These resources are meant to address an immediate need. 

California Evidence-Based Clearinghouse (CEBC) for Child Welfare: Advance the 
effective implementation of evidence-based practices for children and families involved 
with the child welfare system.  

Capital Expenses:  Costs of construction projects, including but not limited to; brick 
and mortar type projects, demolition, room expansion, carpet installation, air-

86



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 10 of 41 

conditioner or water heater installation/replacement, wheel-chair access ramps, 
stationary playgrounds or vehicle purchases. 

Carryover Clients: A client receiving services across fiscal years. 

Case Management: Collaborative process of assessment, planning, facilitation, care 
coordination, evaluation and advocacy for options and services to meet an individual’s 
and family’s comprehensive health needs through communication and available 
resources to promote patient safety, quality of care, and cost effective outcomes.  

Collaborative: Demonstrated ability to work jointly with others, building coalition 
together. 

Common Indicators:  Common Indicators are a shared set of metrics among affiliates 
that are heavily influenced by local variations in HMG systems and inform local 
continuous quality improvement and system enhancements. 

Connected:  Child or family is receiving a service.  

Cost Effectiveness: Achieving the desired goal with the minimum of expenditure. 

Demonstrated Outcomes:  Data supported evidence that indicators addressed 
through the program demonstrate marked improvement. 

Direct Costs: Costs that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost 
objective, such as a particular project, service, or other direct activity of an 
organization. 

Dosage:  The frequency and level of exposure to services offered to the participant.  

Evidence-Based: Refers to the use of research and scientific studies for determining 
best practices. 

Family Community Support Partnership (FCSP) Model: A prevention model with 
the objective to reduce risk of child abuse/neglect that can be replicated in San 
Bernardino County. The model component includes parent education curriculum 
(Nurturing Parenting Program) and structured case management (Family Development 
Matrix: Matrix Outcome Model).  

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E): An intentional 
system component designed to bridge, support and expand the FCSP model in a 
manner that aligns with F5SB Strategic Plan and systems approach. 

Family Development Matrix (FDM):  Tool that is used in partnership with families to 
assess their strengths and issues of concerns and guides the Family Empowerment 
Plan; facilitates participation by the family and the provider.  It measures over time the 
progress of family outcomes and the effectiveness of interventions. 

Family Empowerment Plan: A collaborative process that assesses, plans, 
implements, coordinates, monitors, and evaluates the options and services required to 
meet the client’s needs in a limited time frame based on a service plan and 
appropriately aligned with the FDM. Characterized by advocacy, communication, 
resource navigation, quality cost-effective interventions and outcomes, and linking the 
client with systems.  

Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC):  Entities as defined by the Social 
Security Act at section 1905(l)(2) which, "(i) is receiving a grant under section 330 of 
the Public Health Service Act, or (ii)(I) is receiving funding from such a grant under a 
contract with the recipient of such a grant and (II) meets the requirements to receive a 
grant under section 330 of the Public Health Service Act, (iii) based on the 

87



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 11 of 41 

recommendation of the Health Resources and Services Administration within the 
Public Health Service, and is determined by the Secretary to meet the requirements for 
receiving such a grant including requirements of the Secretary that an entity may not 
be owned, controlled, or operated by another entity; or (iv) was treated by the 
Secretary, for purposes of Part B of title XVIII, as a comprehensive Federally-funded 
health center as of January 1, 1990, and includes an outpatient health program or 
facility operated by a tribe or tribal organization under the Indian Self-Determination 
Act or by an urban Indian organization receiving funds under Title V of the Indian 
Health Care Improvement Act for the provision of primary health services." In 
considering these definitions, it should be noted that programs meeting the FQHC 
requirements commonly include the following (but must be certified and meet all 
requirements stated above): Community Health Centers, Migrant Health Centers, 
Healthcare for the Homeless Programs, Public Housing Primary Care Programs, 
Federally Qualified Health Center Look-Alikes, and Tribal Health Centers. 

Full Time Equivalent (FTE): A measurement equal to one staff person employed in a 
full-time work schedule and which is, for purposes relating to this contract, calculated 
at 2,080 hours in a year.  FTEs provide a common unit of measurement for positions 
budgeted. The number of FTEs is the cumulative value expressed, using the full-time 
equivalent measurement as a baseline, as a total percentage of time or as a total 
percentage of funds related to a particular classification.   

Help Me Grow (HMG):  A system of coordination used nationally to connect children 
to early screening and community services. The system builds collaboration across 
sectors, including child health care, early care and education, and family support. 
Through comprehensive  physician and community outreach and centralized 
information and referral centers, families are linked with needed programs and 
services. 

Help Me Grow Evaluation Advisory Board (HMG-EAB):  Individuals using a shared 
measurement platform which reflects diverse organizations tackling complex issues, 
targeting slightly different groups and employing different strategies and activities 
agreed on a set of common and impact indicators that are shared and adequately 
reflect the important nuances of this work. 

Help Me Grow Indicators:  Enables HMG affiliates to monitor progress, share lessons 
learned, advocate for change, and consult with other affiliates. 

Indirect Costs: Costs that have been incurred for the benefit of multiple projects or 
activities and cannot be readily identified with a particular final cost objective. An 
organization having several major functions may need to accumulate the indirect costs 
into separate groupings and then allocate proportionally to the benefiting functions by 
means of a base which best measures the relative degree of benefit. The indirect cost 
rate would be used to distribute the proportional amount of indirect costs to the 
individual projects or activities based on a Board approved cost allocation plan.   

Inland Empire Autism Assessment Center of Excellence (AACE):  Provides a 
comprehensive assessment for all children referred as potentially being diagnosed 
with Autism Spectrum Disorder ASD.  The center is designed around the child to be 
child-centric rather than agency-centric. 

Inland Empire Community Collaborative (IECC): Consultants for Family Community 
Support Partnership (FCSP) Cooperative Expansion Project. 

Maternal Health Network: A collective of service providers that support the maternal 
health system throughout San Bernardino County and engage in a collaborative 
process to identifying gaps to address in maternal health services.  

88



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 12 of 41 

Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM):  A model that provides a set of complimentary 
assessment, case management and evaluation tools.   

Mental Health Promotion: Related to improving the quality of life and potential for 
health rather than amelioration of symptoms and deficits. 

Notable Outcomes: For the purpose of the FCSP-E system framework, Worthy of 
note to promote a shared countywide data bank of evidenced based child abuse risk 
prevention and early intervention best practices 

Nurturing Parenting Program (NPP) for Parents and their Infants, Toddlers and 
Preschoolers: A family-centered program designed for the prevention and treatment 
of child abuse and neglect. Both parents and their children birth to five years 
participate in home-based, group-based, or combination group-based and home-
based program model. Lessons are competency-based ensuring parental learning and 
mastery of skills.  

Optimal Development: A child is most likely to reach his/her full potential if he/she 
experiences consistent, predictable, enriched, and stimulating interactions in a context 
of attentive and nurturing relationships.  

Parent-Child Enrichment Activities: Activities for parents and children to do together 
depending on child’s stages of development and individual interest.  

Parent-Peer:  Parents assisting other parents by advocating, guiding and providing 
moral support as they navigate systems and services. 

Parenting Education: Programs that improve knowledge and increase positive 
parenting skills.  

Participant: A recipient of funded services in accordance with the target population, 
parents of children through age five and/or pregnant women.  

Participant Support: Budget line item category for items purchased to remove 
barriers or to provide motivation to participants upon completion of the program.  Items 
purchased should be relative to the program objectives.  Gift cards are not an 
allowable expense. 

Participant Transportation:  Budget line item category for costs involved with 
transporting participants to needed services and/or appointments.   

Performance Outcome: The result, which the Commission seeks (as outlined in the 
Strategic Plan) and to which the Contractor will commit to achieve. It is verifiable and 
must yield to a measurable change of the participant of a program. 

Perinatal Parent Education Program:  Programs that address the concerns and 
needs of a pregnant woman, her infant child, and the woman’s support system.  These 
programs address and affect not only healthy birth outcomes but improved child well-
being and family stability outcomes as well. 

Post-Assessment (AAPI-2.1 Form B): Taken after completion of NPP lessons to 
measure effectiveness of NPP based on the risk identified in Pre-Assessment AAPI. 

Pre-Assessment (AAPI-2.1 Form A): Take before NPP lessons begins to identify risk 
areas/constructs as a process to select NPP curriculum topics to target.  

Prevention: Services that mitigate effects of risk and stress and address potential 
early relationship challenges or vulnerabilities that impact early development. 

89



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 13 of 41 

Professional Services/Consultants:  Independent contractors hired to perform 
services not related to providing direct services. Examples include janitorial services, 
bookkeeping services, speakers, etc. 

Program Materials/Supplies:  Budget line item category for items directly related to 
service delivery such as course curriculum, children’s books, journals used by 
participants, child development toys, etc. 

Program Work Plan: A document containing program expectations and deliverables 
as agreed upon by First 5 San Bernardino and program contractors.  The work plan 
includes information on the individual components of the program in addition to 
structure including dosage, activities, outcome expectations and verification methods.  
This document is signed by the contractor leadership and is approved by the First 5 
San Bernardino Commission. 

Quality Child Care:  Licensed child care and early learning programs (including 
home-based and center-based care) are safe, healthy, nurturing, stimulating, 
supportive, interactive, culturally appropriate and sensitive to the needs of all children.  
They promote early education and the development of trusting relationships to support 
individual children’s physical, emotional, social and intellectual development. 

Quality Improvement: A systematic, formal approach to the analysis of practice and 
performance efforts to improve performance. 

Quality Start San Bernardino (QSSB):  Local Quality Rating and Improvement System 
(QRIS). QSSB is a collaborative efforts charged with strengthening the quality of the early 
childhood education system county wide. 

Reasonable Rate of Success:   Total number of program participants expected to 
successfully complete the program meeting the performance outcomes. 

Relationship Based Practice/Relational Informed Practice: When you engage with 
a family, you help strengthen the partnership with them. There are six Relationships-
Based Practices that can help promote family engagement. 1. Observe and describe 
the child's behavior to open communication with the family; 2. Reflect on the family's 
perspective; 3.Support competence; 4. Focus on the family-child relationship; 5. Value 
a family's passion; 6. Reflect on your own perspective. 

Request for Proposal (RFP): The document used to solicit a solution or solutions from 
potential Contractors to a specific problem or need. 

Research Based:  See evidence-based.  Using research for determining best 
practices.   

Satisfaction Survey: Designed to measure the participant’s overall satisfaction with 
the services rendered.  Satisfaction Surveys address specific aspects of service 
provision in order to identify problems and opportunities for improvement. 

Scalable Service: Agency capable of expanded or upgraded on demand to meet 
increase service needs. 

Special Needs: Children having an identified disability, health, or mental health 
condition(s) that require early interventions, special education services, or other 
specialized supports. 

Staff Development/Training:  Budget line item category for expenses associated with 
staff training, conferences, classes, and any other staff development activities related 
to the funded program. 

90



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 14 of 41 

Staff Mileage/Travel:  Budget line item category for employee mileage and travel 
costs (including lodging and food) for travel related to the program, based on the 
current IRS allowable rate. 

Sten Scores: The data are plotted on the profile using sten scores as the unit of 
measurement. Sten scores are "standard ten scores" that are built for a normal 
distribution. Responses to the AAPI-2.1 for each of the subscales are categorized as 
Low Risk, Moderate Risk or High Risk for Child Maltreatment. 

Strengthening Families Framework: A research-informed approach to increase 
family strengths, enhance child development, and reduce the likelihood of child abuse 
and neglect. It is based on engaging families, programs, and communities in building 
five key Protective Factors. 1.) Parental resilience; 2.) Social connections; 3.) 
Knowledge of parenting and child development; 4.) Concrete support in times of need; 
5.) Social and emotional competence of children. 

Subcontractor: Agencies contracted by the primary Contractor to provide direct 
services for which they will be responsible for achieving the performance outcomes for 
the portion of services they are providing.  Contractor shall be responsible for the 
performance of any subcontractor.   

Sustainable: Agencies demonstrate capability of being sustained through collective 
amount of resources and funding for the cooperative expansion to grow FCSP. 

Trauma Informed Practice: Strengths based framework that is grounded in an 
understanding of and responsiveness to the impact of trauma, that emphasis physical, 
psychological and emotional safety for both providers and survivors, and that creates 
opportunities for survivors to rebuild a sense of control and empowerment.  

Unduplicated Clients:  Clients who are counted as receiving service for the first time. 

Verification: Validates that something represented to happen does in fact take place. 
The verification tools must be approved by the Commission. 

Women, Infants, and Children (WIC):  The Special Supplemental Nutrition Program 
for Women, Infants, and Children - better known as the WIC Program - serves to 
safeguard the health of low-income pregnant, postpartum, and breastfeeding women, 
infants, and children up to age 5 who are at nutritional risk by providing nutritious foods 
to supplement diets, information on healthy eating including breastfeeding promotion 
and support, and referrals to health care. Is maintained by the Food and Nutrition 
Service (FNS), a Federal agency of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, responsible for 
administering the WIC Program at the national and regional levels. 

B. Reference Documents 

The Commission has copies of the following materials available for review:   

1. Americans with Disabilities Act [http://www.ada.gov/] 

2. California Department of Social Services Manual of Policies and Procedures 
Divisions 21 and 23, sections 600, 602, and 604 
[http://www.cdss.ca.gov/ord/entres/getinfo/pdf/ops0102.pdf] 

3. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. section 7606) 
[http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode42/usc_sec_42_00007606----000-
.html] 

4. Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. section 1368) 
[http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode33/usc_sec_33_00001368----000-
.html] 

91

http://www.ada.gov/
http://www.cdss.ca.gov/ord/entres/getinfo/pdf/ops0102.pdf
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode42/usc_sec_42_00007606----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode42/usc_sec_42_00007606----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode33/usc_sec_33_00001368----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode33/usc_sec_33_00001368----000-.html


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 15 of 41 

5. Environmental Tobacco Smoke (20 U.S.C. section 6081 et seq.), also known as the 
Pro-Children Act of 1994 [http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2011-
title20/html/USCODE-2011-title20-chap68-subchapX.htm] 

6. Executive Order 11246 [30 Fed. Reg. 12319 (Sept. 24, 1965)], as amended by 
Executive Orders 11375, 11625, 12138, 12432, and 12250  
[http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/statutes/eo11246.htm] 

7. Executive Order 11738 [38 Fed. Reg. 25161 (Sept. 10, 19730] and 
Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 C.F.R., part 32)] 
[http://www.epa.gov/isdc/eo11738.htm] 

8. Executive Order 12549 [51 Fed. Reg. 6370 (Feb. 18, 1986] and Debarment, 
Suspension, And Other Responsibility Matters (45 C.F.R, part 76) 
[https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/codification/executive-order/12549.html]  

9. California Government Code section 6250 et seq. 
[https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=7.&cha
pter=3.5.&lawCode=GOV&title=1.&article=1.] 

10. California Government Code section 87100 et seq. 
[https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV
&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=7.&article=1.] 

11. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars 
[http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/] 

12. California Penal Code section 11105.3 
[https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PE
N&sectionNum=11105.3] 

13. State Energy Conservation Plan (California Code of Regulations Title 20, section 
1401 et seq.) 

[https://ww2.energy.ca.gov/2014publications/CEC-140-2014-002/CEC-140-2014-
002.pdf] 

14. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 [http://www.eeoc.gov/policy/vii.html]  

15. California Welfare and Institutions Code section 10000 et seq. 
[http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codesTOCSelected.xhtml?tocCode=wic] 

16. First 5 San Bernardino [http://www.first5sanbernardino.org] 

17. Nurturing Parents Program [http://www.nurturingparenting.com//] 

18. Strengthening Families Protective Factors Framework  
[http://www.cssp.org/reform/strengthening-families/the-basics/protective-factors] 

19. Matrix Outcomes Model [http://matrixoutcomesmodel.com/] 

20. Inland Empire Community Collaborative FCSP Collaborative Expansion Project 
[http://first5sanbernardino.org/Portals/39/Commission/Agendas/2019/AgendaPacke
t08072019.pdf?ver=2019-08-05-104417-690]  

C. Program Description 

1. Program Objectives 

The objective of this RFP is to support and scale a system that improves family 
outcomes for parents/caregivers of children age 0-5 and reduces the incidence of 
child abuse and neglect by investing in services to families in need. Family and 

92

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2011-title20/html/USCODE-2011-title20-chap68-subchapX.htm
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2011-title20/html/USCODE-2011-title20-chap68-subchapX.htm
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/statutes/eo11246.htm
http://www.epa.gov/isdc/eo11738.htm
https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/codification/executive-order/12549.html
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=7.&chapter=3.5.&lawCode=GOV&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=7.&chapter=3.5.&lawCode=GOV&title=1.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=7.&article=1.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&division=&title=9.&part=&chapter=7.&article=1.
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3
https://ww2.energy.ca.gov/2014publications/CEC-140-2014-002/CEC-140-2014-002.pdf
https://ww2.energy.ca.gov/2014publications/CEC-140-2014-002/CEC-140-2014-002.pdf
http://www.eeoc.gov/policy/vii.html
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codesTOCSelected.xhtml?tocCode=wic
http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/
http://www.nurturingparenting.com/
http://www.cssp.org/reform/strengthening-families/the-basics/protective-factors
http://matrixoutcomesmodel.com/


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 16 of 41 

Community Support and Partnerships - Expansion (FCSP-E) covers two of the 
F5SB Strategic Plan goals:  

SPA 1: Children and Families: 

Goal 1.3 Family and Community Support and Partnerships: 

  Objective 1.3 a) Children are free from abuse and neglect,  

Objective 1.3 b) Parents provide developmentally appropriate care, and  

Objective 1.3 c) Families are resilient.   

These objectives support Goal 1.3 that “Families and communities are engaged, 
supported, and strengthened through culturally effective resources and 
opportunities that assist them in nurturing, caring, and providing for their 
children’s success and well-being.”  The results will indicate the following: 

 Enter program at High-Risk in any/all Five Constructs, must exit out of High-
Risk range in all Five Constructs. 

 Enter program at Medium-Risk in any/all Five Constructs, must demonstrate 

an average improvement of at least 1.5 sten score from AAPI-2.1 Form A to 

AAPI-2.1 Form B excluding Low-Risk scores.  

 Families will reach a status level of at least safe on all indicators of the FDM.    

SPA 2: Systems and Networks: 

Goal 2.2 Capacity Building: 

Objective 2.2 a) Community organizations and groups are equipped to 

effectively serve children and families. 

Objective 2.2 b) Workforce is developed to effectively serve children and 

families.  

The FCSP-E initiative will utilize the evidence-based Nurturing Parenting Program as 
the primary service delivery coupled with the Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM) and 
accompanying Family Development Matrix (FDM) to assess the family’s needs and 
to reduce the incidence of child abuse, improve parenting, family functioning and 
create healthy environments for the optimal development of all children. 

The Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM) utilized with the Family Development Matrix, 
serves as the guide to triage the service delivery needs in support of families who 
are participating in the NPP and are experiencing challenges.     

F5SB has adopted the Strengthening Families Framework to be integrated into 
programs for its design to utilize the Five Protective Factors that contribute to 
families being safe, healthy, nurturing and self-sustaining. This framework is included 
in the initiative. When these Five Protective Factors are present and robust, families 
are less likely to experience child abuse or neglect and are more equipped to create 
environments for young children’s optimal development.  The Strengthening Families 
Framework is in alignment with the First 5 San Bernardino Mission and Vision and 
First 5 San Bernardino Strategic Plan. 

To support and expand the FCSP model in a manner that aligns with F5SB Strategic 
Plan and systems approach, FCSP-E system expansion will allow F5SB to continue 
to build upon successful outcomes that are accessible to every parent in the county 

93



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 17 of 41 

regardless of socio-economic status, parenting status, relationship with children and 
family serving agencies or physical location. The goal is to reduce the incidence of 
child abuse, improve parenting, family functioning and create healthy environments 
for the optimal development of children in a manner that is sustainable through 
Countywide collaboration.  

As First 5 San Bernardino’s funding for these programs becomes more limited, 
organizations and agencies are pushed to streamline services and work 
collaboratively to support the families they serve through interconnected systems 
wide sectors serving children and families that are efficient, effective and culturally 
sensitive. 

2. Program Requirements 

Recognizing that all young children and their families deserve the same opportunities 
to succeed, regardless of demographic, geographic or economic considerations, 
First 5 San Bernardino will invest in FCSP-E programs that support improved family 
outcomes throughout the county to strengthening the families of children 0-5.  From 
a targeted, systematic approach, these programs support the goal that “Families and 
communities are engaged, supported, and strengthened through culturally effective 
resources and opportunities that assist them in nurturing, caring, and providing for 
their children’s success and well-being.” In addition to the minimum requirements 
outlined in Section II., Paragraph D., Minimum Proposer Requirements, program 
specific requirements for proposed services and strategies are attached to this RFP 
as Exhibit A, which includes the expected goals, service delivery approach and 
outcomes and indicators.  

3. Program Restrictions 

a. Board of Directors: 1) Organization’s governing board must meet not less 
than four times per year, and 2) No board member shall be an employee of 
the organization, and 3) No paid staff member shall serve as a voting 
member of the governing board. 

b. Programs cannot include capital improvements or renovation attached to 
private real property or the purchase of vehicles. 

c. Programs must be in good standing with the Commission with no history of 
operational deficiencies, performance deficiencies, and/or auditing concerns. 

V. CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

Contracts funded through this RFP may include the terms contained below. 

A. CONTRACTOR SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Contractor shall provide all program services identified in this Contract, including 
Program Work Plan and Program Budget. 

2. Contractor shall provide services in a manner consistent with the Principles on 
Equity as adopted by the Commission and as available by the Commission.  

3. Contractor shall coordinate with appropriate agencies to enhance service 
provision and to maximize usage of California Children and Families Trust Fund 
monies available. 

4. Contractor shall deliver performance outcomes as specified in the Contract and 
provide evidence of achievement as identified in the verification. The verification 
tools must be approved by the Commission. When specified by the Commission, 

94



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 18 of 41 

verification tools must be developed in collaboration with staff or agencies as 
designated by Commission. 

5. Contractor shall cooperate with any consultant, technical advisor, or committee as 
designated by the Commission to support the evaluation, systems development 
and implementation process. 

6. Contractor’s Program Work Plan and other program specific data collection 
information requested by the Commission will be placed in the Commission’s web 
based data system. Contractor is bound by the information contained in the data 
collection system.  If there is a discrepancy between the Contractor’s Program 
Work Plan and the data collection system, the information in the system will take 
precedence over the Program Work Plan and will be used to evaluate 
Contractor’s performance under the Contract.  It is the responsibility of the 
Contractor to ensure that the information entered into the data systems, as it 
relates to the Performance Program Work Plan and/or other program specific data 
collection information requested by the Commission, fully captures the intent of 
the program/project for the term identified in the Contract.  

B. CONTRACTOR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Participants 

Contractor understands and acknowledges that the services under this Contract are 
for the purposes of promoting, supporting and improving the early development of 
children prenatal through age five. As such, services provided under this Contract 
shall offer a direct benefit to this population. Any service provided beyond this 
limitation, unless as agreed upon in this Contract, is a breach of contract and an 
unauthorized expenditure of Children and Families First Act funds. Services to 
siblings and family members who are not parents or primary caregivers may only be 
incidental to services provided to children prenatal through age five. 

2. Contractor Capacity 

In the performance of this Contract, Contractor its agents and employees shall act in 
an independent capacity and not as officers, employees, or agents of the 
Commission.  

3. Contract Assignability 

Without the prior written consent of the Commission, the Contract is not assignable 
by Contractor either in whole or in part. 

4. Conflict of Interest 

Contractor shall make all reasonable efforts to ensure that no conflict of interest exists 
between its officers, employees, subcontractors, independent contractors, consultants, 
professional service representatives, volunteers and the Commission.  Contractor shall 
make a reasonable effort to prevent employees, consultants, or members of governing 
bodies from using their positions for purposes that are, or give the appearance of being 
motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others such as those with 
whom they have family, business, or other ties.  In addition, Contractor’s employees 
shall not simultaneously receive payment for work done as an independent contractor 
without obtaining prior approval from the Executive Director of the Commission, or 
authorized designee. In the event that the Commission determines that a conflict of 
interest situation exists, the Commission may disallow any increase in costs associated 
with the conflict of interest situation and such conflict may constitute grounds for 
termination of this Contract. 

95



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 19 of 41 

5. Former Commission Administrative Officials 

Contractor agrees to provide or has already provided information on former 
Commission administrative officials (as defined below) who are employed by or 
represent Contractor.  The information provided includes a list of former Commission 
administrative officials who terminated Commission employment within the last five 
(5) years and who are now officers, principals, partners, associates or members of 
the business. The information also includes the employment with or representation of 
Contractor.  For purposes of this provision, “Commission Administrative Official” is 
defined as a member of the Commission or such Administrative Staff. 

If during the course of the administration of this Contract, the Commission determines 
that the Contractor has made a material misstatement or misrepresentation or that 
materially inaccurate information has been provided to the Commission, this Contract 
may be immediately terminated.  If this Contract is terminated according to this 
provision, the Commission is entitled to pursue any available legal remedies. 

6. Subcontracting 

Contractor agrees not to enter into any subcontracting agreements for work 
contemplated under this Contract without first obtaining written approval from the 
Commission. Any subcontractor shall be subject to the same provisions as the 
Contractor. Contractor shall be ultimately responsible for the performance of any 
subcontractor.   

7. Recordkeeping 

Contractor shall maintain all records and books pertaining to the delivery of services 
under this Contract and demonstrate accountability for contract performance. All 
records shall be complete and current and comply with all Contract requirements.  
Failure to maintain acceptable records per the preceding requirements shall be 
considered grounds for withholding of payments for billings submitted and for 
termination of the Contract. 

Fiscal records shall be kept in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles and must account for all funds, tangible assets, revenue and expenditures.  
Fiscal records must also comply with the appropriate Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circulars that state the administrative requirements, cost principles and 
other standards for accountancy. 

The Commission shall have the right upon reasonable notice and at reasonable hours 
of business to examine and inspect such records and books. 

8. Change of Address 

Contractor shall notify the Commission in writing of any change in mailing and/or 
service address. Notification shall occur in advance of the address change. At a 
minimum, notification must occur within five (5) days of the address change.  Change of 
address shall not interrupt service deliverables outlined in the Program Work Plan. 

9. Staffing and Notification 

Contractor shall notify Commission of any continuing vacancies beyond thirty (30) 
days and any positions that become vacant during the term of this Contract that may 
result in reduction of services to be provided under this Contract.  Upon notices of 
vacancies, the Contractor shall apprise Commission of the steps being taken to 
provide the services without interruption and to fill the position as expeditiously as 
possible.  Vacancies and associated problems shall be reported to the Commission 

96



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 20 of 41 

on each periodically required report for the duration of said vacancies and/or 
problems. 

In the event of a problem or potential problem that will severely impact the quality or 
quantity of service delivery, or the level of performance under this Contract, Contractor 
will notify the Commission within one (1) working day, in writing and by telephone.  

10. Contractor Primary Contact 

The Contractor will designate one individual to serve as the primary contact and one to 
serve as the alternate contact, if primary contact is unavailable, on behalf of the 
Contractor and will notify the Commission of these designees within fifteen (15) days 
after Contract approval. The primary contact shall have the authority to identify, on 
behalf of the Contractor, other parties able to give or receive information on behalf of 
this Contract.  

Contractor shall notify the Commission when the primary contact will be unavailable or 
out of the office for two (2) s or more or if there is any change in either the primary or 
alternate contact. 

11. Responsiveness 

Contractor or a designee must respond to Commission inquiries within five (5) business 
days.  

12. Grievance Policy 

Contractor shall provide a system, approved by the Commission, through which 
participants of services shall have an opportunity to express their views and complaints 
regarding the delivery of service.  Grievance procedure must be posted prominently in 
English and Spanish at service sites for participants to review. 

13. Governing Board  

Contractor’s governing board must meet not less than four times per year. No board 
member may be an employee of the organization and no paid staff member may 
serve as a voting member of the governing board. Contractor shall provide the 
Commission with a listing identifying the members of the Board of Directors or other 
governing party, written schedule of all Board of Directors or other governing party 
meetings and provide the Commission with copies of the Board of Directors’ minutes 
when discussions or actions taken during these meetings may impact on the 
Contract. All Board of Directors’ minutes shall be submitted to the Commission with 
each periodically required report submitted following approval of the minutes. 
Further, the Commission representative shall have the option of attending Board 
meetings during the term of this Contract. 

14. Confidentiality 

 Contractor shall ensure that all staff, volunteers and/or Subcontractors performing 
Services under this Contract comply with the Commission’s Policy 18-01 Non-public 
Personally Identifiable Information specified at 
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx prior to providing any 
Services.  Contractor shall immediately notify the Commission of any suspected or 
actual breach of confidential information as further detailed in the requirements. 
These requirements specified at 
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx are hereby incorporated by 
this reference. 

97

http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx
http://first5sanbernardino.org/CommissionPolicies.aspx


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 21 of 41 

 Contractor shall protect from unauthorized use or disclosure names and other 
identifying information concerning persons receiving Services pursuant to this 
Contract, except for statistical information not identifying any participant.  Contractor 
shall not use or disclose any identifying information for any other purpose other than 
carrying out the Contractor's obligations under this Contract, except as may be 
otherwise required by law.  This provision will remain in force even after the 
termination of the Contract.  

 Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as applicable.  

15. Child Abuse Reporting  

Contractor shall ensure that all known or suspected instances of child abuse or 
neglect are reported to the appropriate law enforcement agency and/or to the 
appropriate Child Protective Services agency.  This responsibility shall include: 

 Assurance that all employees, agents, consultants or volunteers who perform 
services under this Contract and are mandated by Penal Code Sections 11164 et 
seq. to report child abuse or neglect, sign a statement, upon the commencement 
of their employment, acknowledging their reporting requirements and their 
compliance with them; 

 Development and implementation of procedures for employees, agents, 
consultants, or volunteers who are not subject to the mandatory reporting laws 
for child abuse to report any observed or suspected incidents of child abuse to a 
mandated reporting party, within the program, who will ensure that the incident is 
reported to the appropriate agency;  

 Provision of or arrangement of training in child abuse reporting laws (Penal 
Code, Sections 11164 et seq.) for all employees, agents, consultants, and 
volunteers, or verification that such persons have received training in the law 
within thirty (30) days of employment/volunteer activity.   

16. Department of Justice Clearance 

Contractor shall obtain from the Department of Justice, records of all convictions 
involving any sex crimes, drug crimes, or crimes of violence of a person who is 
offered employment, or volunteers, for all positions in which he or she would have 
contact with a minor, the aged, the blind, the disabled or a domestic violence client, 
as provided for in Penal Code Section 11105.3.  This includes licensed personnel 
who are not able to provide documentation of prior Department of Justice clearance.  
A copy of a license from the State of California is sufficient proof.  

Contractor must have on file for review upon request a signed statement verifying 
Department of Justice clearance for all appropriate individuals.    
       

17. Conditions of Employment 

Contractor shall notify the Commission of any staff member, paid intern or volunteer 
who is knowingly or negligently employed who has been convicted of any crime of 
violence or of any sexual crime.  Contractor shall investigate all incidents where an 
applicant, employee, or intern or volunteer has been arrested and/or convicted for any 
crime listed in Penal Code Section 11105.3 and shall notify the Commission.  In the 
Commission’s discretion, the Commission may instruct Contractor to take action to 
either deny/terminate employment or terminate internship and/or volunteer services 
where the investigation shows that the underlying conduct renders the person 
unsuitable for employment, internship or volunteer services. 

98

https://aspe.hhs.gov/report/health-insurance-portability-and-accountability-act-1996
https://aspe.hhs.gov/report/health-insurance-portability-and-accountability-act-1996
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&division=&title=1.&part=4.&chapter=2.&article=2.5
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=PEN&sectionNum=11105.3


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 22 of 41 

18. Meeting Attendance 

Contractor will be required to attend meetings, workshops and training sessions 
around issues related to Contractor’s particular region or directly related to the type 
of services being provided by Contractor as determined by the Commission. 
Notifications of such meetings will be provided to Contractor at least ten (10) 
business days prior to the meeting. 

19. Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 

Contractor agrees to and shall comply with the following indemnification and insurance 
requirements: 

a) Indemnification – The Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend (with 
counsel reasonably approved by the Commission) and hold harmless the 
Commission and its authorized officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers from any and all claims, actions, losses, damages, and/or 
liability arising out of this Contract from any cause whatsoever, including 
the acts, errors or omissions of any person and for any costs or expenses 
incurred by the Commission on account of any claim except where such 
indemnification is prohibited by law. This indemnification provision shall 
apply regardless of the existence or degree of fault of indemnitees. The 
Contractor’s indemnification obligation applies to the Commission’s 
“active” as well as “passive” negligence but does not apply to the 
Commission’s “sole negligence” or “willful misconduct” within the meaning 
of Civil Code Section 2782.  

b) Additional Insured – All policies, except for the Workers’ Compensation, 
Errors and Omissions and Professional Liability policies, shall contain 
endorsements naming the Commission and its officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers as additional insureds with respect to liabilities 
arising out of the performance of services hereunder. The additional 
insured endorsements shall not limit the scope of coverage for the 
Commission to vicarious liability but shall allow coverage for the 
Commission to the full extent provided by the policy. Such additional 
insured coverage shall be at least as broad as Additional Insured (Form 
B) endorsement form ISO, CG 2010.11 85.  

c) Waiver of Subrogation Rights – The Contractor shall require the carriers 
of required coverages to waive all rights of subrogation against the 
Commission, its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, contractors and 
subcontractors. All general or auto liability insurance coverage provided 
shall not prohibit the Contractor and Contractor’s employees or agents 
from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss or claim. The 
Contractor hereby waives all rights of subrogation against the 
Commission.  

d) Policies Primary and Non-Contributory – All policies required herein are to 
be primary and non-contributory with any insurance or self-insurance 
programs carried or administered by the Commission.  

e) Severability of Interests – The Contractor agrees to ensure that coverage 
provided to meet these requirements is applicable separately to each 
insured and there will be no cross liability exclusions that preclude 
coverage for suits between the Contractor and the Commission or 
between the Commission and any other insured or additional insured 
under the policy. 

99



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 23 of 41 

f) Proof of Coverage – The Contractor shall furnish Certificates of Insurance 
to the Commission Department administering the Contract evidencing the 
insurance coverage at the time the Contract is executed, additional 
endorsements, as required, shall be provided prior to the commencement 
of performance of services hereunder, which certificates shall provide that 
such insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days 
written notice to the Department, and Contractor shall maintain such 
insurance from the time Contractor commences performance of services 
hereunder until the completion of such services. Within fifteen (15) days 
of the commencement of this Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a copy 
of the Declaration page for all applicable policies and will provide 
complete certified copies of the policies and endorsements immediately 
upon request. 

g) Acceptability of Insurance Carrier – Unless otherwise approved by Risk 
Management, insurance shall be written by insurers authorized to do 
business in the State of California and with a minimum “Best” Insurance 
Guide rating of “A- VII”. 

h) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention - Any and all deductibles or self-
insured retentions in excess of $10,000 shall be declared to and 
approved by Risk Management.  

i) Failure to Procure Coverage – In the event that any policy of insurance 
required under this Contract does not comply with the requirements, is 
not procured, or is canceled and not replaced, the Commission has the 
right but not the obligation or duty to cancel the contract or obtain 
insurance if it deems necessary and any premiums paid by the 
Commission will be promptly reimbursed by the Contractor or 
Commission payments to the Contractor will be reduced to pay for 
Commission purchased insurance.  

j) Insurance Review – Insurance requirements are subject to periodic 
review by the Commission. The Director of Risk Management or designee 
is authorized, but not required, to reduce, waive or suspend any 
insurance requirements whenever Risk Management determines that any 
of the required insurance is not available, is unreasonably priced, or is not 
needed to protect the interests of the Commission. In addition, if the 
Department of Risk Management determines that heretofore 
unreasonably priced or unavailable types of insurance coverage or 
coverage limits become reasonably priced or available, the Director of 
Risk Management or designee is authorized, but not required, to change 
the above insurance requirements to require additional types of insurance 
coverage or higher coverage limits, provided that any such change is 
reasonable in light of past claims against the Commission, inflation, or 
any other item reasonably related to the Commission’s risk.  

Any change requiring additional types of insurance coverage or higher 
coverage limits must be made by amendment to this Contract. Contractor 
agrees to execute any such amendment within thirty (30) days of receipt.  

Any failure, actual or alleged, on the part of the Commission to monitor or 
enforce compliance with any of the insurance and indemnification 
requirements will not be deemed as a waiver of any rights on the part of 
the Commission.  

100



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 24 of 41 

k) The Contractor agrees to provide insurance set forth in accordance with 
the requirements herein. If the Contractor uses existing coverage to 
comply with these requirements and that coverage does not meet the 
specified requirements, the Contractor agrees to amend, supplement or 
endorse the existing coverage to do so. The type(s) of insurance required 
is determined by the scope of the contract services.  

Without in anyway affecting the indemnity herein provided and in addition 
thereto, the Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the contract 
term the following types of insurance with limits as shown:  

a. Workers’ Compensation/Employers Liability – A program of 
Workers’ Compensation insurance or a state-approved, self-
insurance program in an amount and form to meet all applicable 
requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California, 
including Employer’s Liability with $250,000 limits covering all 
persons including volunteers providing services on behalf of the 
Contractor and all risks to such persons under this Contract.  

If Contractor has no employees, it may certify or warrant to the 
Commission that it does not currently have any employees or 
individuals who are defined as “employees” under the Labor Code 
and the requirement for Workers’ Compensation coverage will be 
waived by the Commission’s Director of Risk Management. 

With respect to Contractors that are non-profit corporations 
organized under California or Federal law, volunteers for such 
entities are required to be covered by Workers’ Compensation 
insurance.  

b. Commercial/General Liability Insurance – The Contractor shall 
carry General Liability Insurance covering all operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor providing coverage for 
bodily injury and property damage with a combined single limit of 
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000), per occurrence. The 
policy coverage shall include:  

1) Premises operations, fixed assets and mobile equipment.  

2) Products and completed operations.  

3) Broad form property damage (including completed 
operations).  

4) Explosion, collapse and underground hazards.  

5) Personal injury  

6) Contractual liability.  

7) $2,000,000 general aggregate limit.  

c. Automobile Liability Insurance – Primary insurance coverage shall 
be written on ISO Business Auto coverage form for all owned, 
hired and non-owned automobiles or symbol 1 (any auto). The 
policy shall have a combined single limit of not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage, 
per occurrence.  

101



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 25 of 41 

If the Contractor is transporting one or more non-employee 
passengers in performance of contract services, the automobile 
liability policy shall have a combined single limit of two million 
dollars ($2,000,000) for bodily injury and property damage per 
occurrence.  

If the Contractor owns no autos, a non-owned auto endorsement 
to the General Liability policy described above is acceptable.  

d. Umbrella Liability Insurance – An umbrella (over primary) or 
excess policy may be used to comply with limits or other primary 
coverage requirements. When used, the umbrella policy shall 
apply to bodily injury/property damage, personal injury/advertising 
injury and shall include a “dropdown” provision providing primary 
coverage for any liability not covered by the primary policy. The 
coverage shall also apply to automobile liability. 

 

e. Professional Liability – Professional Liability Insurance with limits 
of not less than one million ($1,000,000) per claim or occurrence 
and two million ($2,000,000) aggregate limits 

or 

Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance with limits of not less 
than one million ($1,000,000) and two million ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limits  

or 

Directors and Officers Insurance coverage with limits of not less 
than one million ($1,000,000) shall be required for Contracts with 
charter labor committees or other not-for-profit organizations 
advising or acting on behalf of the County.  

If insurance coverage is provided on a “claims made” policy, the 
“retroactive date” shall be shown and must be before the date of 
the start of the contract work. The claims made insurance shall be 
maintained or “tail” coverage provided for a minimum of five (5) 
years after contract completion. 

f. Cyber Liability Insurance - Cyber Liability Insurance with limits of 
no less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence or event with an 
annual aggregate of $2,000,000 covering privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic 
information, intentional and/or unintentional release of private 
information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and 
network security.  The policy shall protect the involved 
Commission entities and cover breach response cost as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties. 

g. Abuse/Molestation Insurance – Contractor shall have abuse or 
molestation insurance providing coverage for all employees for the 
actual or threatened abuse or molestation by anyone of any 
person in the care, custody, or control of any insured, including 
negligent employment, investigation and supervision.  The policy 
shall provide coverage for both defense and indemnity with liability 

102



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 26 of 41 

limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) with a two 
million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit. 

20. Licenses and Permits 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, administrative 
orders, rules or regulations relating to its duties, obligations and performance under the 
terms of the Contract shall ensure that it has all necessary licenses, permits and/or 
certifications required by the laws of Federal, State, County, and municipal laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations and agrees to pay all fees and other charges required 
thereby. The Contractor shall maintain these licenses, permits and/or certifications in 
effect for the duration of this Contract. Contractor will notify the Commission 
immediately of loss or suspension of any such licenses and permits.  Failure to comply 
with the provisions of this section may result in immediate termination of this Contract. 

21. Health and Safety 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal to safety and health 
ordinances and statutes, including fire clearances, for each site where program 
services are provided under the terms of the Contract. 

22. Contract Compliance/Equal Employment Opportunity  

Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of all applicable Federal, State, and 
County Laws, regulations and policies relating to equal employment or social services 
to Participant(s), including laws and regulations hereafter enacted.  Contractor shall not 
unlawfully discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, or service 
Participant(s) on the basis of race, national origin or ancestry, religion, sex, marital 
status, age, political affiliation, sexual orientation, or disability.  Information on the above 
rules and regulations may be obtained from the Commission. 

23. Attorney’s Fees and Costs 

Contractor understands and agrees that any and all legal fees or costs associated with 
lawsuits concerning this Contract against the Commission shall be the Contractor’s sole 
expense and shall not be charged as a cost under this Contract.  In the event of any 
Contract dispute hereunder, each party to this Contract shall bear its own attorney’s 
fees and costs regardless of who prevails in the outcome of the dispute. 

24. 2-1-1 Registration 

Contractor shall register with 2-1-1 San Bernardino County Inland Empire United 
Way within thirty (30) days of Contract’s effective date and follow necessary 
procedures to be included in the 2-1-1 database.  The Contractor shall notify the 2-1-
1 San Bernardino County Inland Empire United Way of any changes in program 
services, location or contact information within ten (10) days of any change.  
Services performed as a result of being included in the 2-1-1 database, are separate 
and apart from the services being performed under this Contract and payment for 
such services will not be the responsibility of the Commission. 

25. Ownership Rights 

The Commission shall have a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to 
publish, disclose, copy, translate, and otherwise use, copyright or patent, now and 
hereafter, all reports, studies, information, data, statistics, forms, designs, plans, 
procedures, systems, and any other materials or properties developed under this 
Contract including those covered by copyright, and reserves the right to authorize 
others to use or reproduce such material. All such materials developed under the terms 

103



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 27 of 41 

of this Contract shall acknowledge the Commission as the funding agency and 
Contractor as the creator of the publication. 

26. Attribution  

 Contractor shall properly acknowledge the Commission per the requirements stated in 
the First 5 San Bernardino Media Guidelines 
http://first5sanbernardino.org/Portals/39/pdf/media_guidelines.pdf .  

27. Incongruous Activities 

 Contractor agrees it will not perform or permit any political promotion or religious 
proselytizing activities in connection with the performance of this Contract. 
Contractor will ensure no staff will conduct activity intended to influence legislation, 
administrative rule making or the election of candidates for public office during the 
time compensated under this Contract or under representation such activity is being 
performed under this Contract.  

28. Reports 

 Contractor, in a timely and accurate manner, shall submit reports on designated key 
aspects of the project as required by the Commission. Instructions, format and 
required information for the content will be provided by the Commission and 
available on the website: www.first5sanbernardino.org.  FAILURE TO SUBMIT 
REPORTS IN A TIMELY AND ACCURATE MANNER SHALL BE A MATERIAL 
BREACH OF THIS CONTRACT. 

 Report requirements include, but are not limited to, the following and may be 
subject to change. 

 Program Reports 

 Contractor will submit Program Reports which include monthly and year-to-date 
progress on actual achievement of program outcomes compared to projected 
achievements as detailed in Program Work Plan and other data collection 
information as requested by the Commission. Program Reports will include data 
on participants served as well as narrative information on lessons learned, 
course corrections and client success stories for the quarter. Contractor is 
required by the Commission to complete and submit Program Reports 
electronically via the Commission’s web based data system.  For each calendar 
month, Contractor shall provide the Commission with a Monthly Program Report 
within fifteen (15) calendar days from the end of the reporting period.   

 Contractor agrees that failure to submit reports as specified will be sufficient 
cause for the Commission to withhold any payment due until reporting 
requirements have been fulfilled. 

 Fiscal Reports 

 For each calendar month, Contractor shall provide the Commission with a 
Monthly Fiscal Request for Reimbursement/Invoice within fifteen (15) calendar 
days from the end of the reporting period.   

 Contractor shall submit any and all Final/Revised Fiscal Reports by July 31 for 
the previous fiscal year period or part thereof during the Contract term.  All 
reports submitted by July 31 will be considered final and no additional reports will 
be accepted after this date. 

  Contractor will fulfill evaluation and other reporting requirements as mandated by 
the Commission and the California Children and Families Commission.      

104

http://first5sanbernardino.org/Portals/39/pdf/media_guidelines.pdf
http://www.first5sanbernardino.org/


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 28 of 41 

 Asset Report 

Contractor shall report all assets worth $500 or more purchased with First 5 
funds utilizing tools provided by the Commission for that purpose.  The Straight 
Line method of depreciation will be applied to determine value.  Closing Asset 
reports shall be submitted to the Commission staff no less than thirty (30) days 
prior to the normal conclusion of a Contract.  If the Contract is terminated early 
under any fiscal provision or due to correction of performance deficiencies, 
Contractor shall submit the Closing Asset report within ten (10) business days of 
receiving notice of Contract termination. 

Contractor agrees that failure to submit reports as specified will be sufficient 
cause for the Commission to withhold any payment due until reporting 
requirements have been fulfilled.        

29. Pro-Children Act of 1994 

 Contractor will comply with the Environmental Tobacco Smoke Act, also known as the 
Pro-Children Act of 1994 (20 U.S.C. 6081 et seq.). 

30. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters  

 As required by Executive Order 12549 [51 Fed. Reg. 6370 (Feb. 18, 1986)] and 
Debarment and Suspension, And Other Responsibility Matters (45 C.F.R., section 
76): 

a. The Contractor certifies that neither it, its principals, nor any potential 
subcontractors:  

1)  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions (as defined at 
45 C.F.R. section 76.200) by any federal department or agency; 

2)  Have not within a three (3)-year period preceding this application been 
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission 
of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to 
obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction, violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification 
or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

3)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph (a) (2) of this certification; and  

4)  Have not within a three (3)-year period preceding this application had one 
or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or 
default; and  

b. Where the Contractor is unable to certify as true any of the statements in this 
certification, he or she shall provide a written explanation to the Commission 
prior to the execution of this Contract.  A failure to comply with this section may 
constitute grounds for termination of this Contract. 

31. Environmental Requirements 

The Commission has adopted a recycled product purchasing standards policy (San 
Bernardino County Policy 11-10), which requires Contractors to use recycled paper 
for proposals and for any printed or photocopied material created as a result of a 

105

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2011-title20/html/USCODE-2011-title20-chap68-subchapX.htm
https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/codification/executive-order/12549.html
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-sec76-200
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-sec76-200
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-sec76-200
https://www.sbcounty.gov/purchasing/home/pdfs/11-08.pdf
https://www.sbcounty.gov/purchasing/home/pdfs/11-08.pdf


Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 29 of 41 

Contract with the Commission.  The policy also requires Contractors to use both 
sides of the paper sheets for reports submitted to the Commission whenever 
practicable. 

C. COMMISSION RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Commission shall verify performance outcomes of Contractor according to the 
Program Work Plan and other data collection information requested by the 
Commission in meeting terms of this Contract and the quality and effectiveness of 
services provided, based on criteria agreed upon, as delineated in this Contract. 

2. Commission shall compensate Contractor for approved expenses in accordance 
with the Fiscal Provisions of the Contract. 

3. Commission shall specify all reports and deliverables required from the Contractor. 

4. Commission shall provide technical assistance as deemed necessary. 

5. The Commission will designate one individual to serve as the primary contact for 
the Contract and will notify the Contractor of this designee within 15 days of the 
Contract approval date. 

D. FISCAL PROVISIONS 

1. Payment Provisions 

The Commission will disburse funds on a reimbursement payment process 
based on the Contract budget amount for the applicable fiscal year and monthly 
report submissions.  

If requested in writing, a one-time advance of funds in an amount not to exceed 
15% of the annual contract amount may be issued the first month of the contract 
only. All subsequent monthly reimbursements will be determined by actual 
expenditures reflected on the monthly reports, projected costs and cash on hand 
collectively.  

If an advance is requested and approved, 10% of the total advanced amount will 
be withheld from the monthly reimbursements to recover the advanced funds 
over a ten (10) month period. 

The Commission reserves the right to reduce or withhold any payments from the 
Contractor for failure to submit reports in a timely and accurate manner or when 
the Contractor is not in compliance with the Contract.  Final payment under this 
Contract may be withheld until all requirements, including reports, for contract 
closure have been fulfilled by Contractor. 

2. EFT Payments 

 Contractor shall accept all payments from the Commission via electronic funds 
transfers (EFT) directly deposited into the Contractor’s designated checking or 
other bank account.  Contractor shall promptly comply with directions and 
accurately complete forms provided by the Commission required to process EFT 
payments. 

3. Allowable Costs  

Funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be expended by Contractor in 
accordance with the Program Budget.  

 Such specified expenditures will be further limited to those that are considered 
both reasonable and necessary as determined by the Commission. Contractor 

106



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 30 of 41 

agrees Commission may recover any payments for services or goods, including 
rental of facilities, which were not reasonable and necessary or which exceeded 
the fair market value. The recovery shall be limited to payments over and above 
reasonable or fair market amounts and any costs of recovery. 

 The reasonable and allowable reimbursement rate for use of motor vehicles, 
travel expenses and food is based on the current IRS allowable rate.  

 Costs must be incurred only during the Contract term, except when specifically 
approved by the Commission.  Contractor shall not use current year funds to pay 
prior or future year obligations. Contractor will not be reimbursed for expenditures 
incurred after the expiration or termination of this Contract.   

 Contractor shall obtain Commission approval for all overnight travel and out of 
State travel as it relates to services provided in this Contract.  Reimbursement as 
it relates to pre-approved travel will be based on the Federal allowable rate. 
Request must be submitted in writing thirty (30) days in advance of travel date 
and travel must be approved in advance by the Commission.   

Contractor shall adhere to the County’s Travel Management Policy (8-02) when 
travel is pursuant to this contract and for which reimbursement is sought from the 
Commission.  In addition, Contractor shall, to the fullest extent practicable, utilize 
local transportation services, including but not limited to Ontario Airport, for all 
such travel. 

4. Supplanting of Funds 

 In accordance with the Commission’s Supplantation Policy, Contractor shall not 
supplant any Federal, State or County funds intended for the purposes of this 
Contract with any funds made available under this Contract.  Contractor shall not 
claim reimbursement from Commission for, or apply sums received from 
Commission with respect to that portion of its obligations, which have been paid by 
another source of revenue.  Contractor agrees that it will not use funds received 
pursuant to this Contract, either directly or indirectly, as a contribution or 
compensation for purposes of obtaining funds from another revenue source without 
prior written approval of the Commission. 

5. Payment of Taxes 

 Commission is not liable for the payments of any taxes, other than applicable 
sales or use tax, resulting from this Contract however designated, levied or 
imposed, unless Commission would otherwise be liable for the payment of such 
taxes in the course of its normal business operations. 

6. Budget Line Item Changes 

 A Budget Revision Request may be submitted by the Contractor to the Commission 
to modify a line or lines of the approved budget.  The request must indicate the 
proposed line item changes, the budget as amended applying the requested 
changes and a written justification for each requested change.  The request cannot 
result in any alteration or degradation to the program services and performance 
outcomes as specified in this Contract.   

 The Executive Director, on behalf of the Commission, has the authority to approve 
(or deny) the request, provided that the modification does not deviate from the 
original intent of the contract or increase the total Contract amount.  Contractor is 
limited to two (2) Budget Revision Requests per fiscal year.  

107



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 31 of 41 

 The Contractor must submit any Budget Revision Requests to the Commission 
no later than February 28th of the fiscal year.  Budget Revision Requests may be 
submitted in hard copy form with original signatures or electronically in a PDF 
format.  Postmarked envelopes received after February 28th will not be accepted in 
lieu of receipt. 

7. Budget Line Item Variance 

Variances to the individual line items of Section A: Salaries and Benefits may be 
allowed if deemed reasonable and does not increase the total budgeted amount 
of Section A: Salaries and Benefits.  

Annual variances of up to 10% of individual line items within Section  B: Services 
and Supplies are allowable provided that the variance shall not result in a change 
to the total Contract amount or an increase to the administrative cost allocation of 
the approved budget. Annual variances in excess of 10% of line item cannot be 
made by the Contractor without prior approval of a Budget Revision Request by 
the Commission in accordance with Section V, Paragraph G of this Contract. 

8. Procurement 

 Contractor shall procure services or goods required under this Contract on a 
competitive basis, unless otherwise provided by law, and make selections based 
on obtaining the best value possible. When a non-competitive procurement is 
used, a written justification must be maintained and be made available upon 
request. 

9. Fixed Assets 

 The purchase of any equipment, materials, supplies or property of any kind, 
including items such as publications and copyrights, which have a single unit cost 
of $5,000 or more, including tax, and was not included in Contractor's approved 
budget, shall require the prior written approval of the Executive Director of the 
Commission. Any such purchase shall directly relate to Contractor's services or 
activities under the terms of the Contract.  

 Any item with a single unit cost of $500 or more, including tax, purchased with 
funds received under the terms of this Contract must undergo a 3-bid process. 
Items not fully consumed during the Contract term shall revert to be the property 
of the Commission, unless otherwise specified by the Commission. The 
disposition of such equipment or property must be approved by the Executive 
Director of the Commission upon Contract termination.  If the reversion of any 
asset is demanded and not made to First 5 San Bernardino, the Commission 
reserves the right to reduce or withhold the value of the asset from any payments 
due to the Contractor for non-compliance. 

Contractor shall maintain insurance against the loss, theft, or damage to any item 
with a single unit cost of $500 or more, including tax, purchased with 
Commission funds for the full replacement value thereof in accordance with the 
provisions of Indemnification and Insurance Requirements of the Contract.   

10. Payor of Last Resort 

 Contractor shall attain funding through other sources than the Commission to 
provide services or support to participants whenever possible. 

 In cases where a participant is qualified for benefits from another source such as 
MediCal, federal or state funded programs, personal insurance, etc., costs relating 
to services provided to that participant must be paid for by the primary payor first. 

108



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 32 of 41 

Only the costs not covered will be allowable under this Contract. Written verification 
shall be provided upon request. 

11. Fiscal Record Keeping 

Fiscal records shall be kept in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and must account for all funds, tangible assets, revenue and 
expenditures.      

E. RIGHT TO MONITOR AND AUDIT 

1. Right to Monitor and Audit 

The Commission or any subdivision or appointee thereof, and the State of 
California or any subdivision or appointee thereof, including the Auditor General, 
shall have absolute right to monitor and audit all records, books, papers, 
documents, corporate minutes, and other pertinent items as requested, and shall 
have absolute right to observe the performance of Contractor in the delivery of 
services provided under this Contract.  Contractor shall give full cooperation during 
any auditing or monitoring conducted. 

Contractor shall cooperate with Commission in the implementation and evaluation 
of this Contract and comply with any and all reporting requirements established by 
Commission. 

2. Availability of Records 

All records pertaining to service delivery and all fiscal, statistical and management 
books and records shall be available for examination and audit by the Commission, 
and State representatives for a period of five years after final payment under the 
Contract or until all pending Commission and State audits are completed, 
whichever is later.  Records, should include, but are not limited to participant files, 
monthly summary sheets, sign-in sheets, and other primary source documents. 
Contractor will have available for Commission review, all relevant financial 
records for the fiscal year being audited including documentation to verify shared 
costs or costs allocated to various funding sources as well as the basis for which 
the shared cost was allocated.  

Program data shall be retained and made available upon request or turned over to 
Commission. If said records are not made available at the scheduled monitoring 
visit, Contractor may, at Commission's option, be required to reimburse 
Commission for expenses incurred due to required rescheduling of monitoring 
visit(s).  Such reimbursement will not exceed $50 per hour (including travel time) 
and be deducted from the invoiced monthly payment.  

3. Assistance by Contractor 

Contractor shall provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and 
convenience of Commission's representatives in the performance of their duties. All 
inspections and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner as will not unduly 
delay the work of the Contractor. 

4. Independent Audit Provisions 

 On an annual basis, Contractor is required to hire an independent licensed Certified 
Public Accountant (CPA), who shall prepare and file with the Commission, an 
Independent Auditor’s Report for the term of the Contract.   

    

109



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 33 of 41 

5. Recovery of Investigation and Audit Costs  

Contractor shall reimburse the Commission for all direct and indirect 
expenditures incurred in conducting an audit/investigation when Contractor is 
found in violation of the terms of the Contract. Reimbursement for such costs will 
be withheld from any amounts due to Contractor. 

When additional information (receipts, paperwork, etc.) is requested of the 
Contractor as a result of any audit or monitoring, Contractor must provide all 
information requested by the deadline specified by the Commission.  A failure to 
provide the information by the specified deadline, will subject the Contractor to 
the provisions of Correction of Performance Deficiencies and Termination below. 

F. CORRECTION OF PERFORMANCE DEFICIENCIES AND TERMINATION 

Failure by Contractor to comply with any of the provisions, covenants, requirements, or 
conditions of this Contract may be a material breach of this Contract.  In such event the 
Commission, in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise 
specified in this Contract, may: 

1. Afford Contractor a time period within which to cure the breach, which period shall 
be established at the sole discretion of the Executive Director; and/or 

2. Request Contractor provide and implement an action plan to correct breach within 
a reasonable timeframe; and/or 

3. Discontinue reimbursement to the Contractor for and during the period in which 
the Contractor is in breach, which reimbursement shall not be entitled to later 
recovery; and/or 

4. Withhold funds pending duration of the breach; and/or 

5. Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by the 
Commission those monies disallowed pursuant to bullet 3 of this paragraph; 
and/or 

6. Immediately terminate this Contract with just cause and be relieved of the 
payment of any consideration to the Contractor should the Contractor fail to 
perform the covenants herein contained at the time and in the manner herein 
provided.  In the event of such termination, the Commission may proceed with the 
work in any manner deemed proper by the Commission.  The cost to the 
Commission shall be deducted from any sum due to the Contractor under this 
Contract and the balance, if any, shall be paid by the Contractor upon demand.  

7. The Executive Director of the Commission shall give Contractor notice of any 
action pursuant to this section, which notice shall be effective when given. 

8. The Executive Director of the Commission is authorized to exercise Commission’s 
rights with respect to initiating any remedies or termination of this Contract in 
his/her sole discretion and to give notice as set forth below in this Contract. 

VI. NONDISCRIMINATION 

A. General 

Contractor agrees to serve all clients without regard to race, color, gender, gender 
identity, religion, marital status, national origin, age, sexual orientation, or mental or 
physical handicap or disability pursuant to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
(42 U.S.C., Section 2000d), Executive Order No. 11246, September 24, 1965, as 

110



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 34 of 41 

amended, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and Age Discrimination 
Act of 1975. 

Contractor shall not engage in any unlawful discriminatory practices in providing 
services, employment of personnel, or in any other respect on the basis of race, 
color, gender, gender identity, religion, marital status, national origin, age, sexual 
orientation, or mental or physical handicap or disability. 

B. Americans with Disabilities Act/Individuals with Disabilities 

Contractor agrees to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well 
as all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, guidelines and 
interpretations issued pursuant thereto.  Contractor shall report to the applicable 
Commission Staff if its offices/facilities have accommodations for people with 
physical disabilities, including offices, exam rooms, and equipment. 

C. Employment and Civil Rights 

Contractor agrees to and shall comply with the County’s Equal Employment 
Opportunity Program and Civil Rights Compliance requirements: 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity Program 

Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Program of the County of San Bernardino and rules and 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto: Executive Orders 11246, 11375, 
11625, 12138, 12432, 12250, and 13672; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (and Division 21 of the California Department of Social Services Manual 
of Policies and Procedures and California Welfare and Institutions Code, 
Section 10000); the California Fair Employment and Housing Act; and other 
applicable Federal, State, and County laws, regulations and policies relating 
to equal employment or social services to welfare recipients, including laws 
and regulations hereafter enacted.   

2. Civil Rights Compliance 

Contractor shall develop and maintain internal policies and procedures to 
assure compliance with each factor outlined by State regulation.  Consistent 
with the requirements of applicable Federal or State law, the Contractor shall 
not engage in any unlawful discriminatory practices in the admission of 
beneficiaries, assignments of accommodations, treatment, evaluation, 
employment of personnel or in any other respect on the basis of race, color, 
gender, religion, marital status, national origin, age, sexual preference or 
mental or physical disabilities.  The Contractor shall comply with the 
provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 
pertaining to the prohibition of discrimination against qualified individuals with 
disabilities in all federally assisted programs or activities, as detailed in 
regulations signed by the Secretary of the United States Department of 
Health and Human Services, effective June 2, 1977, and found in the Federal 
Register, Volume 42, No. 86, dated May 4, 1977.  The Contractor shall 
include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this Contract in all 
subcontracts to perform work under this Contract.   

D. Sexual Harassment 

Contractor agrees that clients have the right to be free from sexual harassment and 
sexual contact by all staff members and other professional affiliates. 

111



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 35 of 41 

VII. EMPLOYMENT OF FORMER COMMISSION ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS 

The Proposer shall provide information on former Commission administrative officials (as 
defined below) who are employed by or represent your business.  The information 
provided includes a list of former Commission administrative officials who terminated 
employment within the last five years and who are now officers, principals, partners, 
associates or members of the business. The information should also include the 
employment and/or representative capacity and the dates these individuals began 
employment with or representation of your business.  For purposes of this provision, 
“Commission Administrative Official” is defined as a member of the Commission Board or 
such officer’s staff, and/or any previously employed staff member of the First 5 San 
Bernardino organization. 

Failure to provide this information may result in a rejected proposal to this RFP. 

VIII. IMPROPER CONSIDERATION 

Contractor shall not offer (either directly or through an intermediary) any improper 
consideration such as, but not limited to, cash, discounts, service, the provision of travel or 
entertainment, or any items of value to any officer, employee or agent of the Commission in 
an attempt to secure favorable treatment regarding this Contract. 

The Commission, by written notice, may immediately reject any proposal or terminate any 
Contract if it determines that any improper consideration as described in the preceding 
paragraph was offered to any officer, employee or agent of the Commission with respect to 
this Contract.  This prohibition shall apply to any amendment, extension or evaluation 
process once a Contract has been awarded. 

Contractor shall immediately report any attempt by a Commission officer, employee or agent 
to solicit (either directly or through an intermediary) improper consideration from Contractor.  
The report shall be made to the supervisor or manager charged with supervision of the 
employee or to the Commission.  In the event of a termination under this provision, the 
Commission is entitled to pursue any available legal remedies. 

IX. DISCLOSURE OF CRIMINIAL AND CIVIL PROCEEDINGS 

The Commission reserves the right to request the information described herein from the 
Proposer selected for contract award.  Failure to provide the information may result in 
a disqualification from the selection process and no award of contract to the 
Proposer.  The Commission also reserves the right to obtain the requested information by 
way of a background check performed by an investigative agency.  The selected Proposer 
also may be requested to provide information to clarify initial responses.  Negative 
information provided or discovered may result in disqualification from the selection process 
and no award of contract. 

The selected Proposer may be asked to disclose whether the agency or any of its 
partners, principals, members, associates or key employees (as that term is defined 
herein), has been indicted on or had charges brought against it or them (if still pending) or 
convicted of any crime or offense arising directly or indirectly from the conduct of the firms 
business, or whether the firm, or any of its partners, principals, members, associates or 
key employees, has been indicted on or had charges brought against it or them (if still 
pending) or convicted of any crime or offense involving financial misconduct or fraud.  If 
the response is affirmative, the Proposer will be asked to describe any such indictments or 
charges (and the status thereof), convictions and the surrounding circumstances in detail. 

In addition, the selected Proposer may be asked to disclose whether the agency, or any of 
its partners, principals, members, associates or key employees, has been the subject of 

112



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 36 of 41 

legal proceedings as defined herein arising directly from the provision of services by the 
agency or those individuals.  “Legal proceedings” means any civil actions filed in a court of 
competent jurisdiction, or any matters filed by an administrative or regulatory body with 
jurisdiction over the firm or the individuals.  If the response is affirmative, the Proposer will 
be asked to describe any such legal proceedings (and the status and disposition thereof) 
and the surrounding circumstances in detail. 

For the purposes of this provision “key employees” includes any individuals providing 
direct service to the Commission.  “Key employees” do not include clerical personnel 
providing service at the agency’s offices or locations. 

X. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

All information submitted in the proposal or in response to request for additional 
information is subject to disclosure under the provisions of the California Public Records 
Act (California Government Code section 6250, et seq.).  Proposals may contain financial 
or other data which constitutes a trade secret.  To protect such data from disclosure, 
Proposer should specifically identify the pages that contain confidential information by 
properly marking the applicable pages and inserting the following notice on the front of its 
response: 

NOTICE 

The data on pages_______ of this Proposal response, identified by an 
asterisk (*) or marked along the margin with a vertical line, contains 
information which are trade secrets.  We request that such data be used 
only for the evaluation of our response, but understand that disclosure will 
be limited to the extent that the First 5 San Bernardino Commission 
determines is proper under federal, state, and local law. 

The proprietary or confidential data shall be readily separable from the Proposal in order 
to facilitate eventual public inspection of the non-confidential portion of the Proposal. 

The Commission assumes no responsibility for disclosure or use of unmarked data for any 
purpose.  In the event disclosure of properly marked data is requested, the Proposer will 
be advised of the request and may expeditiously submit to the Commission a detailed 
statement indicating the reasons it has for believing that the information is exempt from 
disclosure under federal, state and local law.  This statement will be used by the 
Commission in making its determination as to whether or not disclosure is proper under 
federal, state and local law.  The Commission will exercise care in applying this 
confidentiality standard but will not be held liable for any damage or injury which may 
result from any disclosure that may occur. 

XI. SUBCONTRACTOR STATUS 

The  Primary Agency (defined as the agency submitting the proposal) will be fully 
responsible for any performance of the subcontracting agency. If the Primary Agency  
intends to subcontract any part of the services for which it is proposing to a separate and 
independent agency or agencies, it must submit a written Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with that agency or agencies with original signatures as part of the proposal.  The 
MOU must clearly define the following: 

1. The name of the subcontracting agency. 

2. The amount (units, measurements, etc.) and types of services to be rendered under 
the MOU. 

3. The amount of funding to be paid to the agency. 

113



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 37 of 41 

4. The agency’s role and responsibilities. 

5. A detailed description of the methods by which the Primary Agency will ensure that 
all subcontracting agencies meet the monitoring and program requirements 
associated with funding regulations. 

6. A budget sheet outlining how the subcontracting agency will spend the allocation. 

Any subcontracting agency must be approved by the Commission and shall be subject to 
all applicable provisions of any agreement “awarded” to the Primary Agency as a result of 
the RFP process.   

The Primary agency may not sub-contract actual participation in the IECC-FCSP 
Cooperative Expansion Project. (Exhibit A Program Funding Requirements and 
Expectations) 

The Commission will not reimburse contractor or subcontractor for any expenses due to 
services rendered by a subcontractor NOT approved by the Commission. 

XII. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION 

A. General 

1. All interested and qualified Proposers are invited to submit a proposal for 
consideration.  Submission of a proposal indicates that the Proposer has read 
and understands this entire RFP, to include all attachments, exhibits (as 
applicable), and addendum and agrees that all requirements of this RFP have 
been satisfied.   

2. Proposals must be submitted in the format described in this Section.  Proposals are 
to be prepared in such a way as to provide a straightforward, concise description of 
capabilities to satisfy the requirements of this RFP.  Expensive bindings, folders, 
colored displays, promotional materials, etc., are not necessary or desired.  
Emphasis should be concentrated on conformance to the RFP instructions, 
responsiveness to the RFP requirements, and on completeness and clarity of 
content. 

3. Proposals must be complete in all respects as required in this Section.  A proposal 
may not be considered if it is conditional or incomplete. 

4. Proposals must be received at the designated location, specified in Section I, 
Paragraph B – Correspondence, no later than the date and time specified in 
Section I, Paragraph E – Proposal Submission Deadline.  

5. All proposals and materials submitted become the property of the Commission. 

B. Proposal Presentation 

1. One original, with original signatures, which may be bound with a binder clip, 
and three (3) additional copies unbound of the written proposal are required.  (For 
a total of four (4) proposals.)  The original proposal must be clearly marked 
“Original Proposal”.  If one copy of the proposal is not clearly marked “Original 
Proposal”, the proposal may be rejected.  However, the Commission may at its 
sole option select, immediately after proposal opening, one copy to be used as the 
original proposal.  If discrepancies are found between two or more copies of the 
proposal, the proposal may be rejected.  However, if not rejected, the original 
proposal will provide the basis for resolving such discrepancies. 

2. The package containing the original and copies must be sealed and marked with 
the Proposer’s name and “CONFIDENTIAL – RFP 19-02 FCSP-E” 

114



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 38 of 41 

3. All proposals must be submitted on 8 1/2" by 11" paper with single sided printing, 
unless specifically shown to be impractical, with no less than 1/2" top, bottom, left 
and right margins.  Proposals must be typed or prepared with word processing 
equipment and double-spaced. Typeface must be no more than 12 characters per 
inch. Each page, including attachments and exhibits, must be clearly and 
consecutively numbered at the bottom center of the page. 

C. Proposal Format 

Response to this RFP must be in the form of a proposal package.  The content of the 
proposal must be submitted in the following sequence and format: 

1. Cover Letter 

 A letter, on letterhead stationery, signed by a duly authorized officer, employee, or 
agent of the Proposer submitting the proposal, which must include the following 
information: 

a. A statement that the proposal is submitted in response to the RFP 19-02 
FCSP-E. 

b. A statement indicating which individuals, by name, title, address, and phone 
number, are authorized to negotiate with the Commission on behalf of the 
Proposer. 

c. A statement certifying that the undersigned, under penalty of perjury, is an 
agent authorized to submit proposals on behalf of the Proposer. 

2. Table of Contents 

 Complete table of contents for the entire proposal with respective page numbers 
opposite each topic. 

3. Proposal Submission Checklist – Attachment A 

 Complete and include all items on this form, Attachment A. 

4. Statements of Certification – Attachment B 

 Complete and include all items on this form, Attachment B. 

5. Proposal Narrative Application Template– Attachment C 

a. Attachment C- Proposal Narrative Application Template must be completed 
within the template provided.  Narrative responses should relate to the 
questions or prompts provided and should address, but not be limited to, all 
items in Section IV, Paragraph C - Program Description and Exhibit A.  To 
support narrative within this form, attach the following: 

b. Include and attach an Organizational Chart. 

c. Include and attach a Logic Model and timeline. 

d. Include and attach a Board Roster and Meeting Calendar or Schedule of 
Meetings. 

 

6. Contract History – Attachment D 

With respect to contracts currently in effect, completed within the last five years, or 
terminated prior to the original expiration date within the last five years, Complete 
and include all items on this form, Attachment D.  If no contract history exists, so 
state and explain why. 

115



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 39 of 41 

7. Reportable Conditions – Attachment E 

a. Include a statement that the Proposer does not have any commitments or 
potential commitments which may impact on the Proposer’s assets, lines of 
credit, guarantor letters, or ability to perform the Contract. 

b. Complete and include all items on this form, Attachment E. 

8. Exceptions and Disclosures – Attachment F 

Complete and include all items on this form, Attachment F. 

9. Subcontractor Information – Attachment G 

If a Proposer plans to subcontract any portion of the service delivery described in 
the RFP, include a written justification for subcontracting. 

a. Complete and include all items on form, Attachment G. 

b. Attach a copy of the MOU (as outlined in Section XI. Subcontractor Status) 

Please note, any subcontracting agency must be approved by the Commission and 
shall be subject to the applicable provisions of any agreement “awarded” to the 
Primary Agency as a result of the RFP process.  The Primary Agency will be fully 
responsible for any performance of the subcontractor(s). 

10. Proposer’s Financial Capacity – Attachment H 

a. Submit the three most recent and complete annual audited financial 
statements; the most recent must be completed within the past 18 months.   

OR 

b. If you do not have audited financial statements, please submit unaudited 
financial statements for the three most current years (including balance 
sheets, income sheets, and statement of cash flow).  

AND 

c. Submit an unaudited financial statement to cover the period from the last 
audited statement to present, ending no more than 120 days prior to the 
submission of this proposal. 

d. Complete and include all items on this form, Attachment H. 

11. Insurance 

 Provide proof of insurance or a statement that the Proposer will obtain insurance in 
the amounts and coverages stated in Section V, Paragraph B, Item 19 - 
Indemnification and Insurance Requirements prior to the delivery of service.  

12. Program Budget and Budget Narrative 

 Any Contract(s) awarded will operate on a cost reimbursement Contract. Complete 
and submit a program budget and budget narrative for cost analysis purposes.  
Proposals must include a Program Budget and Budget Narrative for each fiscal 
year of the 3-year contract period. 

13. ONLY IF APPLICABLE:  Any Proposer applying as a 501c3 must provide proof of 
status. 

 

 

116



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 40 of 41 

XIII. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION 

A. Evaluation Process 

 All proposals will be subject to a standard review process developed by the 
Commission. A primary consideration shall be the effectiveness of the Proposer in the 
delivery of comparable or related services based on fiscal capacity, demonstrated 
performance and readiness to provide services.  

B. Evaluation Criteria 

 All Proposals will be subject to a standard review process developed by the 
Commission to yield the Proposer the proper due diligence in the evaluation phase of 
the RFP process. 

1. Administrative Review - All proposals will be initially evaluated to determine if they 
meet the following minimum requirements: 

a. The proposal must be complete as set forth in Section XII – Proposal 
Submission, paragraph C. Proposal Format including submission of all 
required documents, and be compliant with all the requirements of this RFP. 

b. Proposers must meet the requirements as stated in the Minimum Proposer 
Requirements as outlined in Section II, Paragraph D.  

Failure to meet these requirements will result in a rejected proposal.  
Incomplete proposals (those missing information/required 
documents) will be disqualified. No proposal shall be rejected, however, if 
it contains a minor irregularity, defect or variation if the irregularity, defect or 
variation is considered by the Commission to be immaterial or 
inconsequential.  In such cases the Commission may elect to waive the 
deficiency and accept the proposal.  Proposers unsuccessful in the 
Administrative Review phase will not have the option to submit an 
appeal.  

2. Fiscal Capacity Review – All proposals advanced past the Administrative review 
will be evaluated to determine if the Proposer demonstrates fiscal capacity on a 
pass/fail scale based on: 

a. Debt to income ratio 

b. Sufficient cash flow to operate proposed program on a reimbursement 
contract 

c. Financial Statement Integrity 

3. Program Evaluation – All proposals advanced past the Fiscal Capacity Review 
will be evaluated with a total of 100 points possible on the basis of the following 
criteria, (not necessarily in order of priority): 

a. Cost 

b.  Demonstrated ability to serve target population 

c. Proposed program services and strategies 

d. Readiness to provide services 

e. Experience 

f. Staffing levels and qualifications 

117



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                         First 5 San Bernardino 
FCSP-E for Children and Families               

 

    Page 41 of 41 

g. Appropriateness of facility and hours of operation (Geographic Service 
Area, near mass transit, facility layout, etc.) 

While cost is a major consideration in the evaluation process, selection will be 
based on the determination of which proposal will best meet the requirements of 
this RFP and the needs of the Commission which is defined as meeting the needs 
of children age 0-5 and their families, aligned with the First 5 San Bernardino 
Strategic Plan and obtaining measureable outcomes.   

C. Contract Award 

Contract(s) will be awarded based on a competitive selection of proposals received. 

The contents of the proposal of the successful Proposer will become contractual 
obligations and failure to accept these obligations in a contractual agreement may 
result in cancellation of the award. 

D. Appeals 

In response to a denied award, Proposers may protest, provided the appeal is in 
writing, is delivered to the address listed, and submitted within ten (10) calendar days 
of the date on the notification of a denied award.  Grounds for an appeal are that the 
Commission failed to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements 
specified in the RFP and any addenda or amendments; there has been a violation of 
conflict of interest provided by California Government Code Section 87100 et seq.; or 
violation of State or Federal law.  Appeals will not be accepted on any other grounds.  
Only an agency that has submitted a proposal in compliance with the RFP 19-02 
FCSP-E and addenda or amendments may present a protest to the Commission. An 
appeal submitted by any other parties or individuals, including potential 
subcontractors, employees or unrelated entities, will not be considered and shall be 
automatically rejected.   

In the event of an appeal, all appeals will be handled by a panel designated by the 
Commission.  The Commission will consider only those specific issues addressed in 
the written appeal.  A written response will be directed to the protesting Proposer 
advising of the decision with regard to the protest and the basis for the decision.  Any 
decision of the Commission will be final. 

The appeal must include the following: 1) reference to the RFP 19-02 FCSP-E 
Appeal; 2) basis of appeal; 3) supporting documentation and statements (optional); 
and 4) name, position, address, telephone, facsimile numbers, and email for agency 
point of contact for the appeal.    

E.  Final Authority 

The final authority to award a Contract rests solely with the Children and Families 
Commission for San Bernardino County. 

118



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 1 of 8 

 

Program Funding Requirements and Expectations 

Overview 

This RFP 19-02 FCSP-E is an intentional system component designed to bridge, support and expand the 

FCSP model in a manner that aligns with F5SB Strategic Plan and systems approach. In 2015, the 

Commission approved three-year contracts to provide Family Community Support Partnership (FCSP) 

framework and program support to improve parenting and family self-sufficiency outcomes for parents 

and caregivers of children 0-5 in San Bernardino County. During the initial three-year contract period, 

FCSP contracted agencies served 3,100 parents. The outcome data showed significant improvement in 

the parenting constructs overall. In structured case management, data indicates significant improvement 

in increasing Community Resources Knowledge, Social Interaction and Basic Household Necessities. 

FCSP data demonstrates potential impact to decrease the child abuse/neglect rate in San Bernardino 

County such as increase positive parenting practices. In 2017, FCSP was extended two additional years 

until 2020 for a cumulative investment of approximately $20 million. The justification for this extension 

was to ensure the Commission had a multi-year data set that was reliable to move forward with an 

expansion, as is being planned now.   

F5SB seeks to support collaboration to build systems to reduce the incidence of child abuse and neglect 

by investing in improved parenting and family self-sufficiency outcomes for parents and caregivers of 

children 0-5 in San Bernardino County through the Family and Community Support Partnership-

Expansion (FCSP-E). The FCSP-E objective is to build an evidence based prevention model that can be 

replicated for access to all parents in San Bernardino County to reduce the risk of child abuse and 

neglect.  This expansion will operate in tandem with the consultation of the Inland Empire Community 

Collaborative (IECC) – Family Community Support Partnership (FCSP) Cooperative Expansion Project. 

F5SB is committed to supporting services to families in San Bernardino County in need of skills 

consistent with the Strengthening Families Framework, which includes Five Protective Factors: parental 

resilience, knowledge of parenting and child development, social and emotional competence of children, 

social connections and concrete support in times of need.  Research shows when these Five Protective 

Factors are present, the likelihood of abuse and neglect diminish and creates healthy environments for 

the optimal development of all children.   

Strategic Priority Areas and Outcomes 

Family and Community Support and Partnerships - Expansion (FCSP-E) covers two of the F5SB 

Strategic Plan goals:  

 SPA 1: Children and Families: 

o Goal 1.3 Family and Community Support and Partnerships: 

Objective 1.3 a) Children are free from abuse and neglect,  

Objective 1.3 b) Parents provide developmentally appropriate care, and  

Objective 1.3 c) Families are resilient.   

 SPA 2: Systems and Networks: 

o Goal 2.2 Capacity Building: 

119



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Objective 2.2 a) Community organizations and groups are equipped to effectively serve 

children and families. 

Objective 2.2 b) Workforce is developed to effectively serve children and families. 

Program Model 

The FCSP-E model will utilize the evidence-based Nurturing Parenting Program (NPP) as the primary 

parenting education curriculum coupled with the structured Case Management (CM) using the Matrix 

Outcomes Model (MOM) Family Development Matrix (FDM) tool. Implementation of FCSP-E will be 

through the following the formats: Group; Home-Based; and Combination of group and home-based. 

The FCSP child abuse prevention model is the combination of NPP and FDM which data has 

demonstrated and has the potential impact to reduce the incidence of child abuse and neglect, improve 

parenting competency, family functioning and create healthy environments for the optimal development 

of all children. 

The FDM Family Empowerment Plan serves as the structured CM guide to triage the service delivery 

needs in support of families who are participating in the FCSP-E and work to improve Family Self-

Sufficiency (see Exhibit B- Program Model).     

First 5 San Bernardino will utilize the Inland Empire Community Collaborative (IECC) to bring the FCSP-

E initiative to scale and help form a true collaborative for the organizations offering the FCSP-E child 

abuse prevention model throughout the County. The IECC will also work with organizations offering 

FCSP-E to build capacity, create strong relationships, and increase financial resources across and 

within the organizations for the specific purpose of sustaining this service delivery model. 

Nurturing Parenting Programs (NPP)  

 

The Nurturing Parenting Programs are an evidence-based model 

utilizing certified facilitators.   

 

The Nurturing Parenting Programs are a family-centered trauma-

informed initiative designed to build nurturing parenting skills as an 

alternative to abusive and neglecting parenting and child-rearing 

practices.  

 

The Nurturing Programs target all families at risk for abuse and neglect with children birth to 18 years. 

The programs have been adapted for special populations, including Military families, Hispanic families, 

African-American families, Teen Parents, Foster and Adoptive Families, Families in Alcohol Treatment 

and Recovery, Parents with Special Learning Needs, and Families with Children with Health Challenges. 

The programs incorporate the currently recognized protective factors and feature activities to foster 

positive parenting skills and self-nurturing, home practice exercises, family nurturing time, and activities 

to promote positive brain development in children birth to 18 years. Lessons can be delivered in a home-

based setting, group-based setting, or combination of home and group settings. 

 

120



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 3 of 8 

 

Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM) 

The Matrix Outcomes Model provides a set of complementary 

assessment, case management and evaluation tools (FDM).  The 

Family Development Matrix (FDM) is a tool that is used in partnership 

with families to assess their strengths and issues of concerns. The 

FDM facilitates participation by the family and the worker in case 

management and it measures over time the progress of family 

outcomes and the effectiveness of interventions. The FDM is especially appropriate, but not exclusive, to 

use with families that are referred for risk of child abuse and/or neglect. All families considered at risk 

should benefit because the FDM is a strength based assessment and empowerment plan leading to 

measureable outcomes.  

The FDM data should be used by the worker to share ongoing results with the family. In addition, the 

data can be used to help justify the establishment of new programs, maintain the sustainability of 

programs, and to provide both resources and support to children and families in your community.  

 It is a tool that is completed in partnership with the family member to help you both better 

understand their current situation.  

 It can help the family worker prioritize how best to address the areas that are of most concern.  

 It identifies areas of strength that can be used as resource information.  

 Helps you to track their progress over time. 

121



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Program Funding Requirements and Expectations 

Proposers meeting the minimum requirements are encouraged to apply for this FCSP-E funding 

opportunity.  In addition to the minimum requirements outlined in the RFP, these specific and targeted 

program requirements, apply to the FCSP-E providers who must implement the Nurturing Parenting 

Program (NPP) and Structured Case Management using Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM) Family 

Development Matrix (FDM):   

Program Funding Requirements and Expectations 

1. Must serve parents of children 0-5. 

2. Must have demonstrated success in coordinating and implementing the Nurturing Parenting 

Program (NPP). 

3. Must have 2 or more years’ experience implementing  NPP. 

4. Programs must target services to families most at risk of abuse and neglect and/or specific age 

groups (e.g. teen parents), cultures and needs. 

5. Must have a secured site in the proposed area of service(s). 

6. Must be able to coordinate and implement the Nurturing Parenting Program (NPP) curriculum 

consistent with the fidelity of the NPP model offering no less than 16 lessons of NPP covering all 

five constructs. 

7. Fidelity of the model requires that pre and post assessments may only be completed once.  

8. If participant unable to complete 16 lessons of NPP, agency must develop procedures to actively 

obtain AAPI-2.1 Form B from the participant to capture outcome-based standards. The developed 

procedures should not include the practice of completing more than one AAPI-2.1 Form B.  

9. Must participate in building a coalition of sustainable FCSP providers in order to reduce the risk of 

child abuse in San Bernardino County.  

10. Agency must leverage First 5 San Bernardino’s investment in the FCSP-E initiative to other funders 

to bring the model to scale, demonstrating collaborative relationships with community service 

providers through: 

a. Participation in IECC-FCSP Cooperative Expansion Project to increase the collective amount of 

resources and funding for FCSP-E. 

b. Participation in the plans for FCSP-E scalability (i.e., sustainability plan includes outreach, 

advocate and market program services). 

c. Building the countywide data bank of evidence based child abuse prevention, risk prevention, 

and early intervention tools. 

11. Facilitators/Parent Educators must be certified by completing a Three-Day Facilitator Training and 

Seminar for NPP through the Family Development Resources, Inc. at the time of contract award. 

12. Identified facilitators/parent educators must have experience in group facilitation and/or home-

based facilitation and receive regular supervision. 

122



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 5 of 8 

 

13. Must provide FCSP programs at times that are convenient and accessible to parent’s schedules 

(weekends, evenings, etc.). 

14. Must utilize following evaluation tools including: 

 AAPI-2.1 Form A Pre-Assessment  

 Family Nurturing Plan tracked by parent educators 

 AAPI-2.1 From B Post-Assessment (procedure to capture participant if exiting prior 16 lessons 

of NPP) 

 Family Nurturing Journal for parents 

 FDM Family Empowerment Plan 

15. Must provide childcare with developmentally appropriate activities for the children in accordance 

with the selected NPP. 

16. Must provide Structured Case Management using the Family Development Matrix (FDM) based on 

Family Empowerment Plan and complete case management not to exceed 3 months (90 days) 

beyond completion of the NPP. 

17. Participants that are not currently enrolled in or dropped out of NPP may not receive on-going 
Structure Case Management using the FDM. 

18. Must demonstrate capacity to follow-up on referrals to ensure successful connections are made 

based on ASQ-3 and FDM results.  

19. Must demonstrate capacity to nurture relationships with families, collaborate with resource providers 

to follow-up on referrals to ensure successful connections are made, to meet ongoing family needs 

and link families to community services as needed/appropriate. (i.e., Help Me Grow, Maternal 

Health Network, Quality Start San Bernardino: Quality Rating Improvement Systems, Screening, 

Assessment, Referral & Treatment/Early Identification & Intervention Services (SART/EIIS), First 5 

Breath-mobile, Departments in County of San Bernardino, Footsteps 2 Brilliance etc.) 

20. Must attend F5SB Quarterly Report Meeting and present on the following: 

 Capacity to capture, track and analyze information (type of referral, referred to whom, referred 

by whom, connections made, satisfaction, effectiveness and value of treatment).  

 Report performance outcomes to ensure continued quality improvement. 

 Report success/concerns regarding FCSP-E and agency operation. 

21. Must demonstrate effective capacity to nurture relationships with families, collaborate with resource 

providers, outreach, advocate, and market program services. 

22. Actively participating in the IECC-FCSP Cooperative Expansion Project. 

Priority Consideration 

1. Priority consideration will be given to proposers that address removing transportation barriers. 

2. Priority will be given to proposers that address Nurturing Fathers and link to resources that 
support fatherhood engagement.  

123



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Program Restrictions for FCSP – E 

Nurturing Parenting Programs & Matrix Outcomes Model  

1. Participant supports are limited to items purchased to remove transportation barriers and/or to 

provide motivation to participants upon completion of the program.  Items purchased should be 

relative to the program objectives.  Gift cards and vouchers are not an allowable expense. 

 

 

124



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Activities and Indicators 

OBJECTIVES ACTIVITIES INDICATORS 

Scale FCSP 

Initiative 

System Wide 

Development  

 Participation in IECC-FCSP Cooperative Expansion Project 

Improve 

Parenting 

Competency 

Parenting Sessions 

 Group 

 Home-Based 

 Combination of 

group/home-based 

 Utilizing Nurturing Parenting Program curriculum 

 Pre-Assessment through Adult-Adolescent Parent Inventory 

(AAPI-2.1 From A) 

 Enroll High-Risk and/or Medium-Risk range Families as 

identified on AAPI-2.1 Form A 

 Refer out if Low-Risk range in all Five Constructs on AAPI-

2.1 Form A 

 Process evaluation through Family Nurturing Plan tracked 

by parent educators and Family Nurturing Journal for 

parents 

 Post-Assessment through Adult-Adolescent Parent 

Inventory (AAPI-2.1 Form B) 

 Successful outcome criteria: 

1. Enter program at High-Risk in any/all Five Constructs, 

must exit out of High-Risk range in all Five Constructs 

2. Enter program at Medium-Risk in any/all Five 
Constructs, must demonstrate an average improvement 
of at least 1.5 sten score from AAPI-2.1 Form A to AAPI-
2.1 Form B excluding Low-Risk scores  

A. Developmental Expectations 

B. Parental Level of Empathy 

C. Belief in the use of Corporal Punishment 

D. Reversing Parent-Child Family Roles 

E. Oppressing Children’s Power and Independence 

 If after completing 16 lessons of NPP and AAPI-2.1 Form B 

has any constructs remaining in High-Risk, continue to 

work with family 1:1 to decrease specific construct from 

High-Risk down to Medium or Low-Risk range up-to 90 

days 

125



         Exhibit A 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Improve Family 

Self-Sufficiency  

Structured Case 

Management (CM) 

Sessions 

 Utilizing the Matrix Outcomes Model (MOM) Family 

Development Matrix (FDM) evaluation tool 

 Develop Family Empowerment Plan 

 Families will reach a status level of at least safe on all 

indicators of the FDM 

 Case Management services are available up to 90 days 

after successful completion of the NPP curriculum 

 

 

126



  EXHIBIT B 
Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  

Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Determine Risk Assessment 

(AAPI-2.1 Form A) 

Low Risk 

Medium Risk** 

High Risk 

Refer out to appropriate 

Services 

Enroll in FCSP 

 Family Empowerment 
Plan 

NPP Curriculum 

(Offered no less than 16 lessons: 

Group Based/Home-Based/Combo) 

Post-Assessment  

(AAPI-2.1 Form B) 

Structured CM 

(MOM-FDM) 

High Risk reduced in All 
Five Constructs 

If High Risk in 
Any Constructs 

Targeted 1:1 
NPP Lessons 

(<90 days) 
Structured CM 

Contacts 

MOM-FDM  

Safe/Stable in All 
Indicators 

Successful Completion 

** Enter program at Medium-Risk in any/all Five 
Constructs, must demonstrate an average improvement 
of at least 1.5 sten score from AAPI-2.1 Form A to 

AAPI-2.1 Form B excluding Low-Risk scores. 

FCSP Program Model 

Process Evaluation 
throughout 16 lessons 

127



 
EXHIBIT C 

Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02) for  
Family and Community Support and Partnerships-Expansion (FCSP-E) 

 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Participate in IECC-FCSP 
Cooperative Expansion Project 

  

Individualized Assessment 

& Development 

Infrastructure Strategic Business & 

Sustainability Planning 

Infrastructure Grant 

Development 

Revenue Generating Fund 

Development 

FCSP-Expansion Model 

 

FCSP-E Program Model 
Sustainability 

F
Y

 2
02

0 
- 

20
21

 
F

Y
 2

02
1 

- 
20

22
 

Continue Cooperative 
Expansion 

  

128



Request for Proposals (RFP 19-02)                                                                                              First 5 San Bernardino                                   

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT A 

Page 1 of 1 

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION CHECKLIST 
Use this checklist to ensure that all items have been Included.   

This form is to be completed and included in the proposal. 

 
 

 Items Completed 

Number 
of 

Pages 

1. Cover Letter 
 

2. Table of Contents 
 

3. Proposal Submission Checklist (Attachment A) 
 

4. Statement of Certification (Attachment B) 
 

5. Proposal Narrative Application Template (Attachment C) 
 

6. Organizational Chart 
 

7. Logic Model 
 

8. 
Board of Directors Information- Board Roster and Board Meeting 
Schedule/Calendar 

 

9. Contract History (Attachment D) 
 

10. Reportable Conditions (Attachment E) 
 

11. Exceptions and Disclosures (Attachment F) 
 

12. Subcontractor Information (Including MOU and Attachment G) 
 

13. 
Financial Capacity (Including applicable financial documents) and 
Attachment H 

 

14. Insurance (Submit proof or ability to obtain proof) 
 

15. 
Program Budget and Budget Narrative (Include a program budget and 
budget narrative for each fiscal year, for 3 years) 

 

16. IF APPLICABLE: Proof of 501c3 status, if applying as such 
 

 

129



Request for Proposals  (RFP 19-02)                                                                                                                          First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT B 

Page 1 of 1  

STATEMENTS OF CERTIFICATION 
RFP 19-02 

 
 
 

STATEMENT 
AGREE 
(Initial) 

DISAGREE WITH 
REQUIREMENT 

(Initial and explain 
in Attachment F-

Exceptions) 

1. 
Services will be provided as described in the Request for 
Proposals, beginning July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023. 

  

2. 
The offer made in the proposal is firm and binding for 180 days 
from the date the proposal is opened and recorded. 

  

3. 

All declarations in the proposal and any attachments are true 
and shall constitute a warranty, the falsity of which shall entitle 
the County to pursue any remedy by law. 

  

4. 

All aspects of the proposal, including cost, have been 
determined independently, without consultation with any other 
prospective Proposer or competitor for the purpose of 
restricting competition. 

  

5. 

The proposer agrees that all aspects of the RFP 19-02 and the 
proposal submitted shall be binding if the proposal is selected 
and a Contract is awarded. 

  

6. 

Proposer will provide the Commission with any other 
information that the Commission determines necessary for an 
accurate determination of the Proposer’s ability to perform 
services as proposed. 

  

7. 
If selected, the Proposer agrees to comply with all applicable 
rules, laws and regulations. 

  

8. 

Proposer agrees to the right of the County, State and Federal 
governments to audit the Proposer’s financial and other 
records. 

  

9. 

Will permit official representatives of First 5 San Bernardino 
access to its facilities, staff, and records in conducting pre-
award correspondence and/or site visits in connection with this 
proposal. 

  

10. 

Hereby authorizes First 5 San Bernardino to contact any 
references and/or sources named, herein, in order to verify 
funding, accreditation, performance, and other information 
deemed necessary for review of this proposal. 

  

 

____________________________________________            ____________________________________  
Print Name        Signature (Authorized Signer)   
           
____________________________________________  ____________________________________  
Agency/Company       Date 

 
____________________________________________ 
Address 

130



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                                                  First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT C 

 

Page 1 of 3 

PROPOSAL NARRATIVE APPLICATION TEMPLATE 
 
 

 

Brief synopsis of the Proposer’s understanding of the Commission’s needs as outlined in the RFP 
19-02 and how the Proposer plans to meet these needs.  This should provide a broad 
understanding of the Proposer’s entire proposal. Responses applies to FCSP Program Model 
(Exhibit B) only, not FCSP-E Program Model (Exhibit C).  

 

A narrative description of the proposed program and the plan to achieve the Commission’s desired 
outcomes.   

 

Describe the program objectives. 

  

Describe program activities.   

 

Describe the program outputs. 

 

Describe the expected outcomes. 

 

Describe any additional evaluations tools utilized beyond those required in the RFP and Exhibit A. 

 

Describe staffing for the program, including basic level of responsibilities, duties, supervisory 
structure, level of authority and experience of staff members, and licensure.  

 

Include the organizational chart indicating lines of authority for staff in the context of the proposed 
program. 

 

State the address of the facility and hours of operation and explain why it is appropriate for the 
services proposed (in targeted Geographic Service Area; near mass transit; user friendly; facility 
layout; etc.).   

 

Include the area/region the Proposer plans to serve, and cities within that region. 

 

Describe the marketing strategies to engage target population(s), collaborate with resource 
providers, and conduct outreach and advocacy efforts. 

 

131



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                                                  First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT C 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Describe the Organization’s experience and number of years providing proposed services. 

 

Explain the connections the Organization currently has in place to support the proposed program 
(collaborative, partners, etc.)  List like services in your proposed region and services that 
compliment/enhance your delivery of service. 

 

If Parent-Peer is being utilized in your service delivery approach, describe how it would be 
implemented to support the proposed program. What are the expected outcomes?  

 

Estimate the number of unique or unduplicated participants that will complete the program 
achieving the Commission’s expected outcomes and describe your outreach methods for ensuring 
that estimated number. (Reference Exhibit A.)  

 

Estimate the anticipated cost per positive outcome, explain the method for estimating such cost, 
and your Organization’s methods for achieving outcomes cost effectively.    

 

Describe your Organization’s plans for sustainability and system-wide collaboration. 

 

Statement of Readiness – Describe your Organization’s state of readiness to implement the 
proposed project. 

        

Logic Model – Attach a model illustrating objectives, inputs, outputs activities, and expected 
outcomes as applicable to the proposed programs.  Include in the logic model: 

a. A timeline for the proposed program 

b. Target population(s) 

c. Dosage 

d. Method of delivery (in-home, center-based, etc.)  

e. Explanation of any assumptions and/or constraints. 

 

Statement of Experience – Include the following in this section of the proposal: 

a. Business name of the Proposer and legal entity such as corporation, partnership, etc. 

b. Number of years the Proposer has been in business under the present business name, as 
well as related prior business names. 

c. A statement that the Proposer has a demonstrated capacity to perform the required 
services. 

d.  List any applicable licenses or permits presently held and indicate ability to obtain any 
additional licenses or permits that may be required. 

132



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02)                                                                                  First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT C 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Board of Directors – Describe the level of board involvement currently in effect, include the 
following information: 

1) Board Roster 

2) Calendar or Schedule of Board Meetings 

3) Describe the recruitment for new board membership, membership requirements and term 
limits 

4) Describe board activities and frequency of fundraising and review of Organization policies 
and procedures 

5)      Describe the board approved hiring policies  

6) Describe board fiscal and administrative oversight 

 

A statement that the Proposer has an organization that is adequately staffed and trained to perform 
the required services or demonstrate the capability for recruiting such staff. 

 

Describe experience of principal individuals of the prospective Proposer's present organization in 
the areas of financial and management responsibility, including names of principal individuals, 
current position or office and their years of service experience, including capacity, magnitude and 
type of work. 

 

 

133



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02) First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT D         

Page 1 of 1  

 
CONTRACT HISTORY 

 
 

 

With respect to contracts currently in effect, completed within the last five years, or terminated prior to the original expiration date within the last five 
years, show for each such contract: 

Contract Period 
(From-To) 

Type of 
Service 

Total Award 
Amount and 

Annual Amount 
Service Location/Area 

Contract Contact 
Name, Title, Agency, 

Address 
Phone #, Email 

Current Completed 
Terminated 

(State 
Reason) 

Example: 
7/1/11-6/30/15 
3 year contract 
and 1 year 
extension 

Parent 
Education 

$1,000,000 
(200,000 annually) 

West End  
(Ontario, Chino, Chino 
Hills, Montclair, Upland) 

Dr. Wendy Lee 
Staff Analyst II 
First 5 San Bernardino 
735 E. Carnegie Drive 
San Bernardino, CA 92408 
(909) 252-4254 
Wendy.lee@cfc.sbcounty.gov 

 X  

        

        

        

        

        

        

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________            ____________________________________  
Print Name        Signature (Authorized Signer)        
____________________________________________  ____________________________________  
Agency/Company       Date 
 
____________________________________________ 
Address 

134



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02) First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT E 

Page 1 of 1  

 
REPORTABLE CONDITIONS 

 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT 
NONE TO 
DISCLOSE 

(Initial) 

DISCLOSURES 
(Initial and explain in 

Attachment F-
Exceptions/Disclosures) 

1. Former County Officials 
  

2. Similar Contracts 
  

3. Terminated Contracts 
  

4. Current Contracts 
  

5. Controlling Interest 
  

6. Financial Interest 
  

7. Pending Litigation 
  

8. Convictions or adverse court rulings 
  

 

 

____________________________________________            ____________________________________  
Print Name        Signature (Authorized Signer)   
     
____________________________________________  ____________________________________  
Agency/Company       Date 
 
____________________________________________ 
Address 

135



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02) First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT F 

Page 1 of 1  

 
EXCEPTIONS AND DISCLOSURES TO RFP 19-02 

 
 

 

Proposer has reviewed the RFP and Contract Requirements and terms in their entirety and has the following 
exceptions: 

(Please list your exceptions by indicating the section or paragraph number, and page number as applicable.  Be 
specific about your objections to content, language, or omissions.  Add as many pages as required.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DISCLOSURES 
Proposer reports the following: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of Authorized Representative:             
 
Signature of Authorized Representative:             
 
Title:          Date:         

136



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02) First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT G 

 Page 1 of 1  

 

SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 

 

Subcontractor Name: (name of firm, entity or organization): 

 

Name And Title Of Proposer’s Contact Person: 

 

Mailing Address: 

 

 

Telephone Number:  

Fax Number:  

Email Address:  

Federal Employer Identification Number: 

Number of years under current name: 

% of the total work of the proposal: 

Justification for Subcontracting: (Work) 

Capacity to Perform the Required Services Statement: 

Subcontractor’s Authorized Signature: 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the information above is correct and agrees to  serve as a 

subcontractor on and  perform all work as indicated above and will comply with all items as indicated in 

Section XI of the RFP 19-02 FCSP-E 

 

I have attached an MOU to this sheet for Commission review. 

 

Signature:         Date: 

 

Print Name:         Title: 

 

 

137



Request for Proposal (RFP 19-02) First 5 San Bernardino 

Family Community Support Partnership – Expansion (FCSP-E)  ATTACHMENT H 
 
 

 
PROPOSER’S FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 

Use this page as a cover sheet for financial documents. 
 
 

Section XII, Sub Section C, Item #10 of this RFP 
 
(Check applicable documents) 

□ a. Submit the three most recent and complete annual audited financial statements; the most 

recent must be completed within the past 18 months.   

OR 

□ b. If you do not have audited financial statements, please submit unaudited financial 

statements for the three most current years (including balance sheets, income sheets, 
and statement of cash flow).  

AND 

□ c. Submit an unaudited financial statement to cover the period from the last audited 

statement to present, ending no more than 120 days prior to the submission of this 
proposal. 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 

138


	Agenda Item 6 SEI for Capacity Building Academy.pdf
	Action:
	Moved:
	Opposed:
	Abstained:
	Comments:
	Witnessed:

	Contract Packet IC033 A1 SEI CON FY 19-21.pdf
	A. Contract Amount
	X. NONDISCRIMINATION
	continued on next page
	ATTACHMENTS

	Contract Packet SI032 Inland Empire Breastfeeding Coalition CON FY 19-20.pdf
	I. DEFINITIONS
	II. CONTRACTOR’S SERVICE RESPONSIBILITIES
	III. CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES
	IV.     COMMISSION RESPONSIBILITIES
	V.      FISCAL PROVISIONS
	A. Contract Amount
	B. Payment Provisions
	Variances to the individual line items of Section A: Salaries and Benefits may be allowed if deemed reasonable and does not increase the total budgeted amount of Section A: Salaries and Benefits.
	Annual variances of up to 10% of individual line items within Section  B: Services and Supplies are allowable provided that the variance shall not result in a change to the total Contract amount or an increase to the administrative cost allocation of ...

	VI. RIGHT TO MONITOR AND AUDIT
	VII.    CORRECTION OF PERFORMANCE DEFICIENCIES AND TERMINATION
	VIII. TERM
	IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS
	B. Commission shall have Power of Attorney to pay delinquent debts and unpaid wages from accounts payable to Contractor in the event debts and wages have not been paid on a current basis.
	C. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed as creating a joint venture, partnership or employment arrangement between the parties hereto, nor shall either party have the right, power or authority to create an obligation or duty, expresse...
	D. Contractor agrees any alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of the provisions of the Contract, shall be valid only when reduced to writing, executed and attached to the original Contract and approved by the person(s) authorized to do s...
	E. Any alterations, variations, modifications, or waivers of provisions of the Contract, unless specifically allowed in the Contract, shall be valid only when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed and approved by the authorized representative...
	     
	F. If any provision of the Contract is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or contrary to law, it shall be modified where practicable to the extent necessary so as to be enforceable, giving effect to the intention of the part...
	G. The parties acknowledge and agree that this Contract was entered into and intended to be performed in San Bernardino County, California.  The parties agree that the venue of any action or claim brought by any party to this Contract will be the Supe...

	X.    NONDISCRIMINATION
	XI.     IMPROPER CONSIDERATION
	XII.     DISCLOSURE OF CRIMINAL AND CIVIL PROCEEDINGS
	XI.  CONCLUSION

	Packet RFP 19-02 FCSP-E.pdf
	Packet RFP 19-02 FCSP-E
	Attachment A- Proposal Submission Checklist
	Attachment B- Statements of Certification
	Attachment C- Proposal Narrative Application Template
	Attachment D- Contract History
	Attachment E- Reportable Conditions
	Attachment F- Exceptions and Disclosures
	Attachment G- Subcontractor Information
	Attachment H- Financial Capacity




